Public Document Pack

CITY
LONDON

Epping Forest & Commons Committee

Date: THURSDAY, 18 JULY 2024

Time: 10.00 am

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 2 - 2ND FLOOR WEST WING, GUILDHALL

Members: Benjamin Murphy (Chairman) Eamonn Mullally (Ex-Officio Member)
Caroline Haines (Deputy Chairman) David Sales
George Abrahams Philip Woodhouse
Jaspreet Hodgson Verderer Michael Chapman DL
Alderman Vincent Keaveny, CBE Verderer William Kennedy
Gregory Lawrence Verderer Paul Morris
Alderman Sir Nicholas Lyons Verderer Nicholas Munday

Alderman and Sheriff Bronek Masojada

Enquiries:  Callum Southern
Callum.Southern@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Accessing the virtual public meeting
Members of the public can observe all virtual public meetings of the City of London
Corporation by following the below link:
https://www.youtube.com/@ CityofLondonCorporation/streams

A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of
the public meeting for up to one civic year. Please note: Online meeting recordings do not
constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available on the
City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of the
proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material.

Whilst we endeavour to livestream all of our public meetings, this is not always possible
due to technical difficulties. In these instances, if possible, a recording will be uploaded
following the end of the meeting.

lan Thomas CBE
Town Clerk and Chief Executive


https://www.youtube.com/@CityofLondonCorporation/streams

AGENDA

NB: Certain matters for information have been marked * and will be taken without
discussion, unless the Committee Clerk has been informed that a Member has questions
or comments prior to the start of the meeting. These information items have been collated

in a supplementary agenda pack and circulated separately.

Part 1 - Public Agenda
1. APOLOGIES

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

3. MINUTES

To agree the minutes and non-public summary of the previous meeting held on 22"
May 2024.

For Decision
(Pages 5-12)

4. MATTERS ARISING

a) *Action Log (Pages 13 - 18)
Report of the Town Clerk.

For Information

5. 2024/25 COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS
Report of the Town Clerk.

For Decision
(Pages 19 - 34)

Epping Forest

6. *UPDATE ON THE WORK OF THE HERITAGE TRUST

The Committee to receive a report of the Epping Forest Heritage Trust.

For Information
(Pages 35 - 40)

7. *EPPING FOREST - ASSISTANT DIRECTOR'S UPDATE

Report of the Executive Director, Environment.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

For Information
(Pages 41 - 56)

The Commons

*THE COMMONS - ASSISTANT DIRECTOR'S UPDATE

Report of the Executive Director, Environment.

For Information
(Pages 57 - 142)

PROPOSAL FOR A CONFERENCE ON THE BIODIVERSITY OF POLLARDED
TREES

Report of the Natural Environment Director.

For Decision
(Pages 143 - 148)

THE GROTTO, WANSTEAD PARK UPDATE

Report of the Natural Environment Director.

For Decision
(Pages 149 - 168)

Chamberlain's

*REVENUE OUTTURN - 2023/24

Joint Report of the Chamberlain and the Natural Environment Director.

For Information
(Pages 169 - 182)

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

MOTION: The following matters relate to business under the remit of the Court of
Common Council acting for the City Corporation as charity Trustee, to which Part VA
and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 public access to meetings
provisions do not apply. The following items contain sensitive information which it is
not in the best interests of the charity to consider in a public meeting (engaging
similar considerations as under paragraphs 3 and 5 of Schedule 12A of the 1972 Act)
and will be considered in non-public session.



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

For Decision

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda

NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

To agree the non-public minutes of the previous meeting held on 22" May 2024.

For Decision
(Pages 183 - 188)

MATTERS ARISING

a) *Action Log (Pages 189 - 192)
Report of the Town Clerk.

For Information

REQUEST FOR THE PROVISION OF A DEED OF GRANT EASEMENT

Report of the Natural Environment Director.

For Decision
(Pages 193 - 230)

NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND
WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

Part 3 - Confidential Agenda

SERVICE PROVISION OPTIONS

Report of the Natural Environment Director.

For Decision



Agenda Iltem 3

EPPING FOREST & COMMONS COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 22 May 2024

Minutes of the meeting of the Epping Forest & Commons Committee held at
Committee Room - 2nd Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Wednesday, 22 May 2024 at
10.00 am

Present

Members:
Benjamin Murphy (Chairman)
Caroline Haines (Deputy Chairman)
George Abrahams
Jaspreet Hodgson
Alderman Vincent Keaveny, CBE
David Sales
Verderer Paul Morris
Verderer Nicholas Munday

Officers:
Anna Cowperthwaite - Comptroller & City Solicitor’s
Clem Harcourt - Chamberlains
Jack Joslin - City Bridge Foundation
Emily Brennan - Environment Department
Anna Cowperthwaite - Environment Department
Jacqueline Eggleston - Environment Department
Joanne Hill - Environment Department
Alex MacDonald - Environment Department
Bob Roberts - Environment Department
Geoff Sinclair - Environment Department
Maria Traynor - Environment Department
Tristan Vetta - Environment Department
Blair Stringman - Town Clerk’s Department
Joseph Smith - Town Clerk’s Department

1. APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Verderer H.H. William Kennedy.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
There were no declarations.

3. *ORDER OF THE COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL
Received the Order of the Court of Common Council dated 25th April 2024,
appointing the Committee and setting its Terms of Reference.

4. ELECTION OF CHAIR

Page 5



RESOLVED, that - in accordance with Standing Order 29, to elect Benjamin
Murphy as Chairman of the Epping Forest and Commons Committee.

ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIR
RESOLVED, that - in accordance with Standing Order 30, to elect Caroline
Haines as Deputy Chairman of the Epping Forest and Commons Committee.

MINUTES
RESOLVED, that — the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting
held on 215t March 2024 be approved.

MATTERS ARISING

7.1  *Action Log
Members received the actions log and during the discussion, the following points
were noted:

a) The Lodge: Income Generation report, in relation to Action 2022-1, had
been completed and would be discussed at the Epping Forest &
Commons Committee away day. The Corporate Plan and Strategies
would also be discussed at the away day.

b) The officer confirmed that the installation of The Warren Battery Storage
Facility, in relation to Action 2023-3, was imminent.

c) The officer confirmed, in relation to Action 2023-4, that it was hoped the
Wi-Fi at Coulsdon Common would be installed during the re-wiring of the
site during July and August 2024.

d) Chairman confirmed that Action 2024-6 — Matters Arising from 25 January
2024 could be closed.

e) Officers indicated they would provide an update on Action 2024-7:
Funding at the July meeting of the Committee.

f) Officers explained, in relation to Action 2024-9: Phone-In Reporting
Service, that there were issues with the reporting service and committed
to providing an update at the next Committee meeting.

g) Officers confirmed, in relation to the Action 2024-10 on Trustees Annual
Financial Reporting, that the annual returns would come to Committee for
information before being received by the Charity Commission. Chairman
noted for this to be added to the Forward Plan and the Action closed.

h) Officers agreed to provide a presentation, in relation to Action 2024-11, to

the Committee on apprenticeships at The Commons and report on tree
numbers at the next meeting of Committee.

Page 6



i) Officers agreed to raise the question of holding police horses at Epping
Forest with the City of London Police.

2024/25 COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS
RESOLVED — That Members,

a) Endorse the continuation of the appointment and composition of the
Consultative Committees and Groups made last year as outlined in the report.
Thereafter reappoint, following the Epping Forest and Commons Committee
away day for its next committee meeting.

b) endorse the continuation of the appointment of the representative to the
Natural Environment Board. Thereafter reappoint, following the Epping Forest
and Commons away day for its next committee meeting as a local observer for
this Committee.

*EPPING FOREST - ASSISTANT DIRECTOR’S UPDATE (SEF 11/24)

The Committee received the Assistant Director's update which summarised
Epping Forest’s progress against objectives since March 2024 with updates of
note.

During the discussion, the following points were noted:

a) Members asked for an explanation of the difference between utilities
compound and utilities income. Officers explained that utilities compound
related to the taking over of a piece of land, usually one of the
Corporation’s car park extensions as a base camp. Utilities income was
usually a wayleave arrangement to dig up the forest and put things in.

b) Members asked if there was a plan on the reduction in filming income.
Officers noted that filming income was set to rise significantly next month
due to a major feature film and there were plans by officers to increase
the film team centrally.

c) The Chairman queried whether an Asset Maintenance Plan was in place
for the golf course. Officers indicated there was a plan in place and major
investments had been done in the last three years.

d) An internal Officer Project Board had been established to manage right
concurrent projects taking place at Wanstead Park. Officers indicated
there were plans to establish a stakeholder advisory group to support
project delivery and assist in communication of progress with complex,
multi-year projects.

e) The Chairman enquired why planning permission being sought was not
part of the original plan. Officers indicated they would confirm the answer
and suggested that most of the delay was related to getting a contractor
on board.

Page 7



10.

11.

RESOLVED, that — the report be noted.

THE TEMPLE CONSERVATION MANAGEMENT PLAN (SEF 10/24)

The Committee received the Assistant Director's report which presented the
Conservation Management Plan, Maintenance Plan and associated documents
for The Template, Wanstead Park.

During the discussion, the following points were noted:

a)

b)

f)

)

h)

Members raised questions related to health and safety concerns flagged
in the commissioned report and whether funding was already allocated
from CWP or Local Risk to remediate urgent works, such as leaks in the
roof. Officers assured it was already covered, some of the work did not
require a 2 year wait for the consultation and feasibility study.

Officers indicated that a business case needed to be established before
fundraising occurred and purpose of report was intended as a starting
point for discussion.

Officers wanted to get stakeholder organisations together in July and
launch a consultation following that meeting, followed by feasibility studies
on the ideas raised.

The Parkland Plan needed a refresh to examine priorities and what to
fundraise against which would take 18 months to 2 years to develop.

Members raised the possibility of Pro Bono work being carried out when
approaching contractors. Officers indicated they would discuss it with
procurement officers.

Members emphasised that the refreshing of the Parkland Plan needed to
be part of a bigger re-imagining of the park and its use.

Works that needed to take place in The Temple over the next 12 month
would be examined once Conservation Management Plan was approved.

Officers confirmed that Community Payback was used in relation to sports
grounds.

RESOLVED -That, Members endorse the Temple Conservation Management
Plan as a resource to guide maintenance and management decisions

*THE COMMONS - ASSISTANT DIRECTORS UPDATE FEBRUARY 2024 -
MARCH 2024

The Committee received the Assistant Director's update which summarised
activities across The Commons between February 2024 to March 2024.

During the discussion, the following points were noted:

Page 8



12.

a)

b)

d)

Members enquired into why volunteer numbers had decreased. Officers
assured that volunteer numbers were still very healthy, and they did tend
to fluctuate.

Members expressed concern about the budget overspend. Officers
confirmed that the forecast budget overspend presented to the last
committee had been managed back to within the budget envelope for
year-end reporting.

The Committee questioned data showing that there had been a sustained
period of reporting accidents in the Commons, followed by a sudden halt
of all accidents and considered whether there might be a backlog. Officers
assured this was not the case; there were no accidents in the previous
quarter and the next report would contain the figures for the new year.

The Hill Fort mobile application celebrated Burnham Beeches’ role in the
Second World War and, given the forthcoming eightieth anniversary of the
Battle of Britain, the Committee enquired whether it was a good time to
promote the application.

The Committee considered whether usage data on the Hill Fort mobile
application could be extracted and presented as part of the next Assistant
Director’s report; Officers indicated they would investigate it.

RESOLVED, that — the report be noted.

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE REPORT

The Committee received the Business Planning and Compliance Manager’s
report which provided the Committee with assurance of risk management
procedures in place within Environment Department and its Natural Environment
Division.

During the discussion, the following points were noted:

a)

b)

d)

Officers, discussing ENV-NE-EF 017: Tree failure, informed they had
been given a date from UK Power Network to fell the trees along the M25.

Clarity was sought on the impact of the cyclical works programme and
local risk on asset maintenance. Members were keen to understand the
level of risk from funded and unfunded remediation.

It was confirmed that the visitor pressure to Epping Forest was picked up
in the risk register but was not included in summary as it had not changed.

Officers indicated they would provide a detailed response on why ENV-
NE-EF 012: Loss of Forest land and buffer land/or concession of
prescriptive rights was flagged as RED on the risk register.

RESOLVED - That Members confirm, on behalf of the City Corporation as
Trustee, that the risk registers appended to this report satisfactorily identify the

Page 9



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

key risks to each of the five charities and that an appropriate risk management
process is in place.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
There was one item of urgent business concerning the establishment of a
SharePoint site for Members relating to Epping Forest with committee reports,
operational structure charts, media releases and corporate information which
would be updated monthly. Access to the site would be granted to Members
shortly.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED - That, the following matters relate to business under the remit of
the Court of Common Council acting for the City Corporation as charity Trustee,
to which Part VA and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 public
access to meetings provisions do not apply. The following items contain sensitive
information which it is not in the best interests of the charity to consider in a public
meeting (engaging similar considerations as under paragraphs 3 and 5 of
Schedule 12A of the 1972 Act) and will be considered in non-public session.

NON-PUBLIC MINUTES
RESOLVED, that — the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 215t March
2024 be approved.

MATTERS ARISING
Members received the actions log.

DEER MANAGEMENT REPORT (SEF 12/24)
The Committee received a report of the Natural Environment Director and the
Interim Executive Director, Environment.

EPPING FOREST WAYLEAVES SEF 09/24
The Committee received a report of the Interim Executive Director, Environment.

BURNHAM BEECHES AND THE COMMONS HANDGATES
The Committee received a report of the Interim Executive Director, Environment.

LANDSCAPE SCALE WORKING AROUND BURNHAM BEECHES
The Committee received a report of the Interim Executive Director, Environment.

CARBON REMOVAL - PRE-GATEWAY 5 PROJECT CLOSURE
The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk’s Department.

NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF

THE COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

Page 10



24. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND
WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED
There was one item of urgent business.

The meeting ended at 11.34 am

Chairman

Contact Officer: Blair Stringman
Blair.Stringman@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



¢T obed

Epping Forest & Commons Committee

Action Log e aled
Number | Recommendation Progress Update Owner Creation Target date
date
2022-1 | Lodges: Income Generation: Members discussed 18 May 2023 — Verbal Bob Roberts/ Jo 21 Nov Report due
vacant lodges that required investment. The Update to be provided Hurst 2022 in May

Executive Director, Environment noted that a
structure and aspiration were required for a long-
term approach. It was requested that a business
case on potential funding be brought back to the
Committee regarding the costs of refurbishing
lodges.

at the next meeting.

13 July 2023 - Verbal
Update to be provided
at the next meeting.

14 September 2023 -
Update provided by the
Director of Natural
Environment at the
meeting

23 November 2023 -
Information shared by Jo
Hurst about ongoing
work to audit income
generation across
different portfolios,
including lodges.

e Wal| epuaby



T abed

Epping Forest & Commons Committee

Action Log

ANE No

Y
o Rer

Emphasis on both long-
term goals and short-
term opportunities for
additional income.

May 2024

Epping Forest Lodge
Residency Strategy is in
place and recruitment
processes still underway
to potential residential
roles.

Approval of legacy
maintenance funding to
CSD is in initial planning
stages and NE continue
to work closely with CSD
about destination of
funds and prioritisation.
Committee to be
updated after majority
of recruitment
complete.

2023-2

Target Operating Model Review: The Director to
perform a formal review of the Target Operating
Model changes in Epping Forest and the Commons

25 January 2024 - A
review will be led by the
Director in summer
2024 and Members will

Emily Brennan

14 Sept
2023

28
November
2024




GT obed

Epping Forest & Commons Committee

in May 2024, which will include engagement with have an opportunity to
staff, Members and Verderers. feed back into this.

2023-3 | The Warren Battery Storage Facility Introduction: The battery system is Jacqueline 14 Sept TBC
the Superintendent of Epping Forest, in conjunction | installed and awaiting Eggleston 2023

with City Surveyor, to determine how to celebrate
the good news story of the installation of a solar
electricity battery storage facility at The Warren

connection to the EF
electrical supply system
managed by the City
Surveyor. The City
Surveyor has received
guotations for the
connection work.

25 January 2024 -
Recommendations
Approved at the last
committee.

May 24

The battery storage has
now been connected. (1
may) This will be
promoted through
various channels




9T abed

Epping Forest & Commons Committee

Action Log M%?%\
2023-4 | Digital Enablement: the Superintendent of the Update: (13/11/2023) Geoff Sinclair 14 Sept 21 March
Commons to identify a solution to the lack of Wi-Fi no progress 2023 2024
at Coulsdon Common, which is also impacting the
educational offering on site. 19 January 2024:
Contractors have been
engaged to assess and
price the works
required. Outcome
pending
2023-5 | Corporate Plan and Strategies: Brief discussion on 25 January 2024 - Bob Roberts 23 Autumn
the corporate plan update and strategies for Epping | Update provided, look November | 2024
Forest and other areas to be brought to the next to review delivery 2023
committee. mechanisms, including
site management plans
and policies, to ensure
alignment with the
newly developed
strategies for the natural
environment.
2024-7 | Funding: Environment team would be looking at Emily Brennan 22 May
further opportunities, such as biodiversity credits, 2024

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and more
general funding applications to trusts and
foundations, and the resulting action plan would be
presented to the Committee.




/T obed

Epping Forest & Commons Committee

Action LOg \‘y%mmc?%\d
2024-8 | Risk Management:

1. Update on forthcoming meeting with utility
company in respect of the M25 Closure to be
brought to the next committee

2. Declining Condition of Assets Risk - Chairman
asked about the impact of new funding from the
cyclical works programme on reducing the declining
condition of assets risk and the Executive Director
agreed to review this

3. Concerns on suitable staff and workforce
planning to be considered by Executive Director
4. Director to look at Superintendent’s additional
workload

5. Consideration on where governance could be
placed in risk register

May 2024

1. An update will be
provided at the 22 May
Committee.

Joanne Hill

Bob Roberts

Bob Roberts
Emily Brennan

Bob Roberts/Emily
Brennan

2024-9 | Phone-In Reporting Service: Officers to inform the Bob Roberts 22 May
committee when contact was due for renewal. 2024
2024-11 | The Commons: 22 May
1. Director agreed to investigate why numbers on Geoff Sinclair 2024
trees do not correspond with the ancient tree form
2. Committee to receive a presentation on Simon Glynn 18 July
apprenticeships 2024




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Agenda Iltem 5

Committee(s) Dated:
Epping Forest and Commons Committee 18t July 2024
Subject: Public
2024/25 Committee Appointments

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate Plan N/A

does this proposal aim to impact directly?

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or capital No
spending?

If so, how much? N/A

What is the source of Funding? N/A

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the Chamberlain’s | N/A
Department?

Report of: For Decision
Town Clerk

Report author:
Callum Southern, Town Clerk’s Department

Summary

At a recent informal Away Day of your Committee, it was agreed that nominations to
the various consultative groups associated with the Epping Forest & Commons
Committee would be aligned with specific lead roles, based on skill sets. This work is
still underway.

This report seeks approval for delegated authority to the Town Clerk, in consultation
with all Committee members, to consider and approve recommended appointments to
the various consultative Groups associated with the Epping Forest & Commons
Committee.

Recommendations
It is recommended that:-

1. Members grant delegated authority to the Town Clerk, in consultation with the
Epping Forest & Commons Committee, to consider and approve the
appointments to the following consultative groups, following recommendations
by the Natural Environment Director (based on the existing skills audit):

e Epping Forest Consultative Group;

Ashtead Common Consultative Group;

Coulsdon Commons, West Wickham & Spring Park Consultative Group;
e Burnham Beeches and Stoke Common Consultative Group; and
e Deer Management Oversight Group.

2. In facilitating the above, Members instruct the Town Clerk to seek expressions
of interest in the roles.

3. Note the corresponding Terms of Reference set out in appendices 1-5,
including updates that reflect administrative changes.

Page 19



Main Report

Background

1.

The Committee makes a number of appointments to Consultative Groups that fall
within its remit. This exercise was undertaken at your May meeting, at which your
Committee agreed to roll-over existing appointments until it was able to consider
the approach at its subsequent Away Day.

. At the informal Away Day, it was suggested that there would be merit to making

appointments more strategically, based on both interest and skills. Consequently,
it was requested that officers go away and make recommendations on how best to
strategically place individuals on the various Groups.

This work is still ongoing and consequently, a delegated authority is sought in order
to allow for appointments to be made ahead of your next meeting. It is proposed
that all members of the Committee are consulted (rather than just the Chairman
and Deputy Chairman).

It was agreed from the previous Governance Review that local consultative bodies
be removed from formal centrally administered structures and granted greater
autonomy to be run locally.

As agreed last year, the terms of reference for the consultative bodies detailed in
this report have replaced Town Clerk with local officers, to reflect the decision for
these bodies to be supported locally to allow suitable freedom to better reflect their
role as consultative rather than decision making bodies. Also, the terms of
reference should be updated to accurately reflect correct job titles where they have
changed.

Implications
There are no financial, legal or risk implications.

Conclusion

That consideration be made to endorsing appointments to the various Consultative
Committees and groups last year and reappoint following the Epping Forest and
Commons Committee away day. Also, that the terms of reference be updated as
suggested to reflect current administration responsibilities and correct job titles.

Appendices

e Appendix 1 Epping Forest Consultative Group Terms of Reference

e Appendix 2 Ashtead Common Consultative Committee Terms of Reference

e Appendix 3 Coulsdon Commons, West Wickham & Spring Park Consultative
Group Terms of Reference

¢ Appendix 4 Burnham Beeches and Stoke Common Consultative Group Terms
of Reference

e Appendix 5 Deer Management Oversight Group Terms of Reference

Callum Southern
Town Clerk’s Department, City of London Corporation
E: Callum.Southern@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 20


mailto:Callum.Southern@cityoflondon.gov.uk

tAuthor: Jo Hurst
Date: September 2022

e

: % Epping

on  HFOTEst

Registered Charity

Epping Forest Consultative Group -
Terms of Reference

Table of Contents

PUIMDOSE OF GrOUD cuuiiiieiiiiee ettt e ettt e e e etae e e e eeaa e e e e eetaeeeeeeanaeeeeenes 2
Conduct, attendance and other PrinCIPIES ......vvvvveeeeiieeeecceeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 2
Scheduling, location and PUBIIC ACCESS .....uueieeecieiieeeciieee e 3
AlIOCOTON OFf POSITIONS .ttt e e e e et e e e eeeees 3
Requirements and reSpONSIDIIITIES .....vvvieeiiieeciieeeeee e 6

Terms of Reference EF ConsultatiPageddRevised Sep 2022 Page 1 of 6



Purpose of Group

1.

The Epping Forest Consultative Group considers and discusses areas of
current concern or debate at Epping Forest. It receives public reports prior
to their consideration by Epping Forest and Commons Committee and
provides advice or opinion on those matters.

Members of the Epping Forest and Commons Committee (EF&CC) will be
in attendance to listen to views expressed by consultees, and to represent
them back to the EF&CC where necessary and appropriate.

Minutes of meetings and outcomes of the Consultative Group's discussions
are considered by the Epping Forest and Commons Committee in a
public report to inform decision making. Likewise, most recent minutes of
the Epping Forest and Commons Committee are to be reviewed by the
Consultative Group.

The EF Consultative Group is not a formal decision-making body, but views
will be noted in formal reports to the Epping Forest and Commons
Committee.

Consultative Group meetings are to be scheduled several weeks prior to
alternate Epping Forest and Commons Committee meetings to consider
papers and matters arising, with sufficient time scheduled for revisions to
papers to be made for Epping Forest Committee, and minutes to be
included in documentation.

Conduct, attendance and other principles

6.

The City of London Member's Code of Conduct 2018, associated
guidance, declarations appendices establishes the principles of
behaviour and conduct expected by Members of this Group.

Should an attendee fail to attend 2 or more out of four consecutive
meetings, their place may be forfeited. The Epping Forest and Commons
Committee may choose to reallocate this space to an alternative
interested organisation.

Although not a decision-making Committee, deliberations should be
sufficiently well attended for advice to the Epping Forest and Commons
Committee to be considered representative. For those reasons, minimum
aftendance of four representatives of locally interested organisations is
required.

Terms of Reference EF ConsultatiPag@dakevised Sep 2022 Page 2 of 6



9. Consultative Group Members are representatives of their organisation,
aoffiliates and theme of interest, but Code of Conduct and other legal and
administrative requirements apply to individuals. Every effort will be made
to accommodate attendance by nominated proxy in unavoidable
circumstances, but such substitutions may not always be possible and
must not be considered routine.

Scheduling, location and public access

10.Meetings are scheduled at Loughton (as far as is possible), as the
geographic centre of Epping Forest. Alternative venues may be
considered by agreement, including wholly or partially ‘virtually hosted’
meetings using suitable internet communications technology.

11.Meetings are on a weekday evening, avoiding school and public
holidays.

12.There will be a minimum of three meetings a year.
13.Should a change of frequency or location, including peripatetic meetings
be preferred by this forum, that request must be made to the Epping

Forest and Commons Committee.

14.Meetings will be held in public (numbers subject to venue capacity).
Public questions are at the discretion of the Chairman.

Allocation of positions

15.The EF Consultative Group has representation from Members of the EF&CC
including Verderers. Chairman and Deputy Chairman may attend
according to availability and agenda.

16.Meetings are chaired by the Assistant Director Environment (previously
Superintendent of Epping Forest) or other nominated Officer or Member in
their absence.

17.0ther City of London officers will attend as required.

18.The meetings are administered by a nominated City of London
Environment Officer.

19. Attendants are nominated members of groups that hold a specified
interest in Epping Forest, and that have a comparably large membership,
and/or a broad geographically spread membership from across the Forest
and with knowledge or interest in the themes of heritage; recreation/sport;

Terms of Reference EF ConsultatiPag@dRevised Sep 2022 Page 3 of 6



conservation; general/informal use or voluntary and friends’ groups.

20.Tenants, business partners or other organisations with commercial interest
in Epping Forest (or wider City of London Open Spaces) are not invited to
attend as other routes exist for such input. Local authorities of all tiers also
have access to direct liaison forums and are not invited to attend.

21.In the interests of impartiality and equality, political parties and religious
groups are not invited to attend.

22.0rganisations with or supportive of extremist policies or views including
supporting, planning or carrying out criminal activity motivated by a
political or ideological viewpoint are prohibited

23.Groups nominating a representative must be formal, constituted
organisations. This may include rule books, artficles of association, standing
orders or other formal agreement to which members sign-up to and
adhere. This must include their own definitions of formal memibership and
their subscription terms, meetings and voting rights.

24.Groups must also ensure that their constitution (or equivalent) includes or
makes reference to that groups Equality Statement or policy, which must
be provided to the City of London on request.

25.Invitations to express inferest and to nominate representatives are
advertised through press release, social media, email and direct
correspondence by City of London.

26. Applications require details of how the nominating organisation meets the
above criteria and must include:

e The theme of interest the organisation wishes its application to be
considered under.

e A brief (maximum 150 words) explanation of the purposes and
aims of the organisation.

e Number of members at fime of application (see definition at 29
below)

¢ Name and contact details of nominated representative.

e Copies of Constitution, Equality Statement and other relevant
documentation.

e Any otherrelevant and necessary information requested by
Officers at the time of application.

27.A balance of themes of interest is ideally met as follows:

Nature Conservation 3
Conservation groups in Forest, or with wider remit
Friends/Voluntary 3

Terms of Reference EF ConsultatiPagedéRevised Sep 2022 Page 4 of 6



Formal working groups e.q. litter pickers groups, ‘Friends of' efc.
Heritage 2
Historical societies, rural preservation etc.
Informal users 2
Schools, Youth groups, families associations, local forums and interest
bodies
Recreation 3
Recreational user groups — e.q. walkers, riders, cyclists
Sports 3
Formal organised sports on Forest e.g. Golf, Football, cricket running etc.

16

28.Should more expressions of interest be received than can logistically be
accommodated, selection will be made by members of the Epping Forest
and Commons Committee by the following (not in order of importance):

Size of membership

Geographical area of interest (i.e. area of Forest covered)

Theme of interest

Record of attendance (if existing attendee)

29. Where membership numbers are declared by an applying organisation or
group, these must be active members —i.e. those who have actively
subscribed or joined providing full name and contact details; agree to a
constitution or similar as aforementioned, including invitation to attend
and vote at annual general meetings; and requirement to renew
periodically (typically annually), most usually with an associated fee.
Members must be counted as individuals subject to such terms, and not
households or groups. ‘Membership’, for the purposes of this definition
does not include customers paying for goods or services or ‘passive’
subscriptions or sign ups to mailing lists either electronic or hard copy, or
followers or group members to social media broadcasts, chats and
communications.

30.Epping Forest and Commons Committee may appoint further members or
co-opt representatives (for example subject matter experts) to attend
where it deems appropriate.

31.The Consultative Group serves as established for three years (starting in

2018), after which the invitation and nomination process outlined above is
repeated.

Terms of Reference EF ConsultatiPaged&Revised Sep 2022 Page 5 of 6



Requirements and responsibilities

32.Nominated representatives must meet criteria similar to those set out by
the Electoral Commission for eligibility for local government election:

e Afleast 18 years old

e Not employed by the City of London, or another organisation
holding a commercial interest in Epping Forest or other Col open
spaces.

e Have not been sentenced to a term of imprisonment of three
months or more (including suspended sentences), without the
option of a fine, during the five years before nominations close.

e Not disqualified under the terms of the Representation of the
People Act 1983 (which covers corrupt or illegal electoral
practices and offences relating to donations).

33.Representatives must commit to representing the views of their
organisation and members. Organisations that have applied but could
not be accommodated will be advised to communicate with members
representing their theme of interest either formally (e.g. affiliation) or
informally and such communication is encouraged.

34.Representatives must share agenda and documentation internally within
their organisation (subject to confidentiality) as well as minutes and
outcomes of discussions.

35.Any representative or organisation found to contfravene any of the terms
herein may be excluded from the Consultative Group permanently and
without notice by order of the Chairman of the Epping Forest and
Commons Committee.

Terms of Reference EF ConsultatiPaged&Revised Sep 2022 Page 6 of 6



Ashtead Common Consultative Group

Terms of Reference

Purpose

The main purpose of the Ashtead Common Consultative Group is to assist the delivery of
the latest Ashtead Common Management Plan which itself is a product of extensive
stakeholder consultation. The aim of the Management Plan is to ensure an appropriate
balance between the needs of access and nature conservation and thereby protect and
conserve Ashtead Common in perpetuity.

1. To consider the annual work programme as set out in the management plan.

2. To identify and agree areas where further public consultation may be required.
3.
4

. To consider, where appropriate, issues raised by the local community, or visitors

To consider any major changes to the plan that may arise from time to time.

and to assist the Assistant Director in resolving them.

¢ |n addition, outcomes of Ashtead Common Consultative Group meetings
should not:
o Compromise the long-term welfare of the site
o Conflict with the site’s use for quiet enjoyment
o Harm the conservation status of the site

Membership

5.

Members of the group are invited to attend a series of meetings on the basis that,
together, they ensure a broad representation of the local community and/or belong
to organisations and bodies that are closely associated with, or have a direct interest
or effect upon, the work carried out at Ashtead Common.

The City of London has statutory responsibilities and interests and will always be
represented at the Group. Other bodies such as Natural England and Historic
England also have statutory interests in the management of the sites and they will
be invited to attend as meeting agendas dictate.

The Ashtead Resident’s Association, Ashtead Common Volunteers, Surrey County
Council and Mole Valley District Council will each have the right to a representative
at the Group.

Otherwise, membership of the Consultative Group will be for a period of four years
after which you may be invited to serve for a further period of four years.

The Consultative Group will identify and welcome additional participants who have
an interest in the management of Ashtead Common and accept the terms of
reference

Page 27



Attendance by members of the public.

10.Members of the public may attend. Any member of the public wishing to bring an
issue to the attention of the Consultative Group must provide a minimum two weeks
written notice and provide details as required, to the Chairman and Assistant
Director who will consider its inclusion on a future agenda as appropriate.

General
11.The Chairman of the Epping Forest & Commons Committee or his nominated
representative shall be Chairman of the Committee.

12.Outputs from the Ashtead Common Consultative Group will inform the Epping
Forest and Commons Committee, which remains the decision making body.

13.Meetings will be held not less than once per year (plus an annual ‘external site
meeting’ to view works carried out and discuss forthcoming project issues).

14.The Group will meet formally in January or February each year.

15. Meetings shall take place locally to Ashtead Common.

16.The Town Clerk to convene the meetings and prepare and circulate the agendas
and be responsible for the minutes, supported by local Officers where appropriate.

17. A further meeting or site visit may be arranged each year should circumstances
require — see Appendix 1.

Appendix 1
Protocol for additional meetings site visits

For additional meetings/visits to be held for consideration of essential business by Officers
or Members of Consultative Committees/Groups between scheduled meetings.

i. A minimum of five members of the Consultative Committee/Group, the Chairman and
Deputy Chairman must be in agreement to do so.

ii. ~ The minimum notice period for calling an additional meeting/visit is 28 days.

iii.  The nature of the issue must be submitted in writing to the Chairman, Deputy
Chairman and Assistant Director at least 14 days before the meeting.

iv. ~ The Chairman or Deputy Chairman and the Assistant Director will preside at all
additional meetings/visits.

Page 28



Coulsdon Commons, West Wickham & Spring Park Consultation Group

Terms of Reference

Purpose

The main purpose of the Coulsdon Commons, West Wickham & Spring Park Consultation
Group is to assist the delivery of the latest management plans for the Commons which
themselves are a product of extensive stakeholder consultation. The aim of the
management plans is to ensure an appropriate balance between the needs of public access
and nature conservation and thereby protect and conserve the Coulsdon Commons, West
Wickham & Spring Park in perpetuity.

1.
2.
3.

To consider the annual work programme as set out in the management plans.
To identify and agree areas where further public consultation may be required.

To consider any major changes to the management plans that may arise from time
to time.

To consider, where appropriate, issues raised by the local community, or visitors
and to assist the Superintendent in resolving them.

In addition, outcomes of the Consultation Group meetings should not:

o Compromise the long-term welfare of the sites.
o Create conflict with each site’s use for quiet enjoyment.
o Harm the conservation status of the sites.

Membership

7.

Members of the group are invited to attend a series of meetings on the basis that,
together, they ensure a broad representation of the local community and/or belong
to organisations and bodies that are closely associated with, or have a direct interest
or effect upon, the work carried out at the Coulsdon Commons, West Wickham &
Spring Park.

The City of London has statutory responsibilities and interests and will always be
represented at the Consultation Group. Other bodies such as Natural England and
Historic England also have statutory interests in the management of the sites and
will be invited to attend as meeting agendas dictate.

Membership of the Consultation Group will be for a period of four years after which
you may be invited to serve for a further period of four years.

10.The Consultation Group will agree and welcome additional participants who have an

interest in the management of the Coulsdon Common, West Wickham & Spring
Park and accept the Terms of Reference.

Attendance at meetings by members of the public.

11.Members of the public may attend meetings of the Consultation Group.

Page 29



12. Any member of the public wishing to bring an issue to the attention of the
Consultation Group must provide a minimum two weeks written notice and provide
details as required, to the Chairman and Superintendent who will consider its
inclusion on a future agenda as appropriate.

General
13.The Chairman of the Epping Forest & Commons Committee or his nominated
representative shall be Chairman of the Committee.

14.Outputs from the Coulsdon Commons, West Wickham & Spring Park Consultation
Group will inform the Epping Forest and Commons Committee, which remains the
decision making body.

15.Meetings will be held not less than once per year (plus an annual ‘external site
meeting’ to view works carried out and discuss forthcoming project issues).

16.The Consultation Group will meet formally in January or February each year.
17.Meetings shall take place locally to Coulsdon Commons, West Wickham & Spring
Park.

18.The Town Clerk to convene the meetings and prepare and circulate the agendas
and be responsible for the minutes, supported by local officers where appropriate.

19. A further meeting or site visit may be arranged each year should circumstances
require — see Appendix 1.

Appendix 1
Protocol for additional meetings site visits

For additional meetings/visits to be held for consideration of essential business by
Officers or Members of Consultation Groups between scheduled meetings.

i. A minimum of five members of the Consultation Group, the Chairman and Deputy

Chairman must be in agreement to do so.
ii.  The minimum notice period for calling an additional meeting/visit is 28 days.

iii.  The nature of the issue must be submitted in writing to the Chairman, Deputy
Chairman and Superintendent at least 14 days before the meeting.

iv. The Chairman or Deputy Chairman and the Superintendent will preside at all
additional meetings/visits.

Page 30



Burnham Beeches and Stoke Common Consultative Group

Terms of Reference

Purpose

The main purpose of the Burnham Beeches and Stoke Common Consultative Group is to
assist the delivery of the latest Burnham Beeches and Stoke Common Management Plans
which themselves are a product of extensive stakeholder consultation. The aim of the
Management Plans is to ensure an appropriate balance between the needs of access and
nature conservation and thereby protect and conserve Burnham Beeches and Stoke
Common in perpetuity.

1. To consider the annual work programme as set out in the management plans.
2. To identify and agree areas where further public consultation may be required.
3.
4

. To consider, where appropriate, issues raised by the local community, or visitors

To consider any major changes to the plans that may arise from time to time.

and to assist the Assistant Director in resolving them.

¢ |n addition, outcomes of Burnham Beeches and Stoke Common Consultative
Group meetings should not:
o Compromise the long-term welfare of the site
o Conflict with the site’s use for quiet enjoyment
o Harm the conservation status of the site

Membership

5.

Members of the Group are invited to attend a series of meetings on the basis that,
together, they ensure a broad representation of the local community and/or belong
to organisations and bodies that are closely associated with, or have a direct interest
or effect upon, the work carried out at Burnham Beeches and Stoke Common.

The City of London has statutory responsibilities and interests and will always be
represented at the Group. Other bodies such as Natural England and Historic
England also have statutory interests in the management of the sites and they will
be invited to attend as meeting agendas dictate.

The Ward Councillor(s) local to the Open Space may be represented on the Group
according to the duration of their election in that specific role.

Otherwise, membership of the Group will be for a period of four years after which
you may be invited to serve for a further period of four years.

The Group will identify and welcome additional participants who have an interest in
the management of Burnham Beeches and Stoke Common and accept the terms of
reference.

Page 31



Attendance by members of the public.

10.Members of the public may attend. Any member of the public wishing to bring an
issue to the attention of the Consultative Group must provide a minimum two weeks
written notice and provide details as required, to the Chairman and Assistant
Director who will consider its inclusion on a future agenda as appropriate.

General
11.The Chairman of the Epping Forest & Commons Committee or his nominated
representative shall be Chairman of the Committee.

12.Outputs from the Burnham Beeches And Stoke Common Consultative Group will
inform the Epping Forest and Commons Committee, which remains the decision
making body.

13.Meetings will be held not less than once per year (plus an annual ‘external site
meeting’ to view works carried out and discuss forthcoming project issues).

14.The Group will meet formally in January or February each year.

15. Meetings shall take place locally to Burnham Beeches.

16.The Town Clerk to convene the meetings and prepare and circulate the agendas
and be responsible for the minutes, supported by local Officers where appropriate.

17. A further meeting or site visit may be arranged each year should circumstances
require — see Appendix 1.

Appendix 1
Protocol for additional meetings site visits

For additional meetings/visits to be held for consideration of essential business by Officers
or Members of Consultative Groups between scheduled meetings:

I. A minimum of five members of the Consultative Group, the Chairman and Deputy
Chairman must be in agreement to do so.

ii.  The minimum notice period for calling an additional meeting/visit is 28 days.

iii.  The nature of the issue must be submitted in writing to the Chairman, Deputy
Chairman and Assistant Director at least 14 days before the meeting.

iv. ~ The Chairman or Deputy Chairman and the Assistant Director will preside at all
additional meetings/visits.

Page 32



Epping Forest Deer Management Oversight Group (DMOG)
Draft Terms of Reference
Purpose

e DMOG will provide oversight of the implementation of the Epping Forest Deer
Management Strategy approved by the Epping Forest and Commons Committee
(“the Committee”)

e DMOG oversight will include:

o Making recommendations to the Committee to ensure the discharge of its
duties under Epping Forest Acts 1878 & 1880 section 4 duty to ensure deer
are ‘preserved as objects of ornament in the Forest’.

o To review annually the Epping Forest Deer Management Strategy to ensure
relevance and appropriateness and make recommendations to the
Committee.

o To monitor the implementation of the Deer Management Strategy
throughout the year and to bring to the attention of the Committee any
issues that may affect the appropriate implementation of the strategy or give
rise to other concerns that should be brought to the attention of the
Committee.

o To make recommendations to the Committee on the most effective and cost-
efficient method to implement the Deer Management Strategy.

e DMOG will consider the scientific and best practice basis for deer management
activity based upon evidence provided by officers

e DMOG will scrutinise officer population projections of wild and parkland deer herds
based on evidence obtained by officers regarding the species, sex, and age of the
deer together with cull data from adjoining estates where this is made available

e DMOG will review and provide an assessment of officer’s annual recommendations
to the Committee, based on stocking rates furnished by the Independent Review on
a proposed cull figure range for both the Birch Hall Park Deer Sanctuary and the
Buffer Land

e DMOG will satisfy itself that the Epping Forest risk assessments, safe systems of
work, food hygiene arrangements, carcass handling and waste disposal records are
suitably legally and financially compliant for the management of deer management
operations

1
Page 33



e DMOG will appraise regular assessments of the welfare of the Birch Hall Park deer
regarding weight and condition of the deer herd and ancillary activity designed.

Other Business

e Officers, will regularly update DMOG on broader plans for the management of Birch
Hall Park the buffer land including statutory works, grant applications, government
consultations and liaison with neighbouring landowners.

Membership

e DMOG will have 4 members, drawn from the elected members of the Committee.

e The members will be appointed with the approval of the Committee and will be
members of DMOG in a personal capacity.

e One member of DMOG will be appointed by the DMOG members as the Group's
Chair.

e DMOG will be provided with the services of an independent and suitably qualified
deer manager.

Governance

e Membership of DMOG will be based on a one-year term renewed through the
annual Committee appointment process conducted in January each year.

Meetings

e DMOG meetings will be held bi-monthly during the fallow deer season and by
arrangement outside the season.

e Officers will provide papers to support DMOG's oversight together with a summary
record of the meetings proceedings.

e All papers will remain confidential and be subject to the City of London Corporations
Members Code of Conduct

e The groups status will be as an informal meeting outside CoL Committee
arrangements

2
Page 34



\_/" Agenda Iltem 6

Epping Forest Heritage Trust’'s community engagement and
conservation activities - July 18, 2024

Peter Lewis. Chief Executive, Epping Forest Heritage Trust (EFHT)

1. Executive summary

The City of London Corporation has 4 new environmental strategies
which include objectives to increase outreach and engagement to more
diverse audiences, and to engage local communities more in
conservation activities.

This paper updates the Committee on EFHT's work in these policy
areas, reaching out to more diverse communities around the Forest,
engaging them in the heritage, culture and ecology of the Forest, and
involving them in hands-on conservation activities to increase
biodiversity in the Forest.

2. Background

The City of London’s Access & Recreation strategy Theme 3. Equal
Access, objective 2 states it will “Work with partners to develop
outreach to ensure wider audiences are aware of and able to access
sites”. The City’s Community Engagement Strategy Theme 2 on
removing barriers states “ensure diverse and representative
participation in our work and spaces”.

EFHT's strategy has a core value of being inclusive, and is underpinned
by a Theory of Change that says that unless people come to know the
Forest, they will not come to love or care for it, or want to protect it for
generations to come. Polling undertaken in partnership with Waltham
Forest Council in 2023 showed that 30% of Black & 48% Asian residents
had never visited the Forest compared to 17% of white residents,
reflecting the visible reality that people from more diverse communities
visit the Forest less than white people.

This has led to EFHT investing its own reserves, and securing support
from the City Bridge Foundation, City Central Grants Team, Awards for
All, Save Our Wild Isles Community Fund, and the general public
through crowdfunding appeals, to increase its community engagement
activities and grow its efforts to diversify its conservation volunteers.

3. Community engagement: approach, data, feedback, learnings
a. Approach

EFHT first researched and contacted 100 local community

organisations, and made contact with the voluntary sector lead bodies

in each of the 4 adjacent local authorities. From those initial contacts we

Page 35



have engagement with 36 organisations and have an ongoing
relationship with 16 of them.

With each organisation we have co-created an activity to meet the
needs of their community, whether in relation to location, walk length,
additional activities, access to toilets, the need for prayer breaks or
being led by people from their community. This provides better
experiences for communities and people who have previously been
nervous of coming to the Forest, and in these small ways the Forest
becomes more accessible, and in turn many of the attendees feel more
confident to come again.

b. Data

Working on this basis over the last year EFHT has led 2 large walks with
Muslim Hikers (each of 200 people, and with the support of the City of
London Keepers for road crossings and with welcomes from Ben and
Caroline), 4 family walks with Black Girls Hike and 12 other walks and
activities with a range of different community organisations. These
walks have so far involved over 700 local people from diverse
communities, most of whom had never visited the Forest before.

The organisations we have worked with are: Muslim Hikers, Black Girls
Hike, Sustainably Muslim, Wanderlust Women, Muslim Women
Connect, Wanderers of Colour, Epping Forest Pride, VaChina, the Moja
Collective, Redbridge Rainbow Group, Home Girls Unite, Fences &
Frontiers and Behnu-Ki-Millan from the Trinity Project.

Walk in the Forest with ihfergehratinal 'grop, Muslim Women
Connect.

c. Feedback
We have been really delighted with the feedback from the events which

tends to focus on people feeling safe, not worrying about getting lost,
and learning about the heritage and ecology of the Forest.

Page 36



Nawaal: “The walk was amazing as | got to meet other likeminded
people and gain more insight into nature. | would recommend
anyone to come even if you're nervous as everyone is so kind and
welcoming.”

Nazia, Sustainably Muslim: “Immersed in the beauty of Epping
Forest, it was great to learn about its trees and wildlife while
connected with likeminded souls! Thank you so much to the team
at Epping Forest Heritage Trust for the guided walk!”

“I had the most incredible, wholesome time. | met inspiring women
and really enjoyed the guided meditation and learning about the
forest. It's the first time I've been to Epping and I'm excited to come
back again.” Anon, walk participant

“I enjoyed the opportunity to hear about the history and current efforts

to manage the Forest”
Participant in our walk with Muslim Hikers.

“There is a need to remove barriers to access for many diverse
communities to Epping Forest; to share stories and build community
knowledge and leadership about its heritage.” Haroon Mota, Founder
and Director, Muslim Hikers.

The Muslim Hikers group in front of the Hunting Lodge.

d) Learnings

e Each community of people is different, and it is really important to
listen to each community organisation, and co-create an event that
meets their needs. This can be time-consuming, but it pays

dividends in the end.

For example, Muslim Hikers wanted a long walk, but not a linear one,
so we designed a 14 mile hike in the north of the Forest; Black Girls
Hike wanted to pilot family walks, so we partnered with the Hive to

Page 37



ensure the children and women had a great experience, Behnu-Ki-
Millan, an older Asian women group from the Trinity project in
Newham wanted do a short walk and an activity, so we enabled them
to do traditional block printing in the Visitor Centre at High Beach.

e The majority of people on these bespoke community walks,

although very local to the Forest, have never visited the Forest. A
pretty typical testimonial is:
“Loved the hike, | live 10 minutes from Epping Forest & haven't
ventured out on any of their trails so it was lovely to do it with Muslim
Hikers & my friends :) | have now joined the Epping Forest mailing list
so look forward to joining them on their monthly walks & also
venturing out alone :)”

e Barriers forindividuals visiting the Forest include fears around safety
and getting lost, having the right type of gear (footwear or
waterproofs) , as well as a feeling that “the space is not for them”.

e We are gaining credibility with local community organisations. Since
the walks with Muslim Hikers and Black Girls Hike local community
organisations are now approaching us to work with them, which is a
lovely virtuous circle. We are also getting a lot more approaches
from local schools and youth groups.

e Some smaller community organisations would like to work with us
but do not have the capacity to do so - whether to engage their
community in a potential event, or have support workers, for
example, to come on an event.

e Our main free monthly walk programme, and the annual Big Walk,
is attracting a more diverse set of participants.

4. Conservation. Approach, data, feedback, learnings.

a) Approach
All of EFHT's volunteer conservation sessions are as directed by the
City's Epping Forest Conservation team, and deliver outputs/outcomes
against the City’s Countryside Stewardship Funding.

EFHT has been running its regular Thursday Green Team and its Friday
Happy Lopper team of people with learning difficulties for many years.
The Green team is a group of regular volunteers, who participate each
week and who are mostly, but not exclusively, white men, many of
whom are retired. The Happy Loppers are also mostly men. Together
last year they contributed over 2,600 hours of volunteer conservation
activity to the Forest.

Nick, the Conservation Officer who runs the Green Team and Happy
Loppers also manages our corporate conservation sessions, including
ones recently for Alpha Financial Software and Apple.

As part of our work to be more inclusive, and to engage a wider diversity
of people in the Forest, we secured funding from City Bridge
Foundation for an initial 2-year project to engage a broader diversity of

4

Page 38



people in our conservation work. The funding pays for a Community
Engagement Officer, Robyn, 2 days per week. Since September she has
managed a combination of public sessions booked through Eventbrite,
some for women* only (for women, non-binary and trans people), and
bespoke sessions for community organisations.

For the public sessions we have varied timetabling, with some sessions
at the weekend and some during the week.

b) Data

Since September last year this project has engaged 122 new people in
new conservation activities through publicly advertised sessions: 60%
under 45; 75% women*; 36% Asian. These new volunteers
contributed 437 hours of activity over 23 sessions improving Forest
biodiversity, removing invasive holly, birch, sycamore and hawthorn
from sensitive wood pasture.

It also engaged 5 community groups involving over 100 people in
bespoke walk/conservation sessions. The groups we have worked with
are Trans Femme Social, Hiking in Skirts, Redbridge Rainbows, the
Tower Project and Muslim Women Connect. Bespoke sessions are also
planned for Muslim Hikers, Black Girls Hike and Wanderlust Women.

ight to rescn the Forest floor, Rekping to
re-estabish ciant and snmal e

+ Bespoke®* sessi . Siver bren
lover1s 8nd other young trees 10 open 1 the.

o
“For women. non-binary and rans people
“* Please enquire admin@emt.on uk
'

Epping Forest @OV tppingForestHT
Heritage Trust e oMt org uk

c) Feedback
The feedback from these sessions has also been phenomenally
positive, with a Net Promoter Score of plus 90. For example:
“This was the most fulfilling day | have had for a very long time. Helping
with conservation at Epping Forest, nothing better!”
“It was so rewarding spending a day helping to maintain a small area of
Epping Forest. | met some lovely people, enjoyed a good physical
workout and learned loads about how the local biodiversity is managed
and nurtured.”

Page 39



“It was fantastic to learn more about why conservation is important and
gain new skills working with the hand saw to coppice silver birch”

“It was great to do some hands-on conservation work with other like-
minded women".

Trans Femme/Hiking in Skirts Bespoke Conservation Day

d) Learnings

We have learnt that:

e thereis demand for more ad hoc, easy-to-book, conservation
sessions, where people come just as a one off, or more irregularly

e some people prefer the ability to volunteer at the weekend

e many local community organisations say that capacity is a real
barrier for them partnering with us

e itis a big step for people to go from no involvement in Epping
Forest to doing hands-on conservation sessions. Some
people/organisations need a more gradual introduction such as a
guided walk to get comfortable in the space before doing a
conservation session

e a significant number of one-off participants use the allowed
“volunteering day” from their employer to come and do a
conservation session.

5. Next steps

We are seeking funding from the National Lottery Heritage Fund for a
3-year programme, "Epping Forest Heritage for All”, to build on our
community engagement work so far. We are grateful to the City for their
formal written support for this application, and the offer of in-kind
support for its delivery.

This autumn, in partnership with the Essex Cultural Diversity Fund and
the City, we will be launching a new podcast series by artist Talia Randall
about different communities, and their relationship with the Forest.

We are hoping to extend our City Bridge Foundation funded
conservation programme for a further 3 years, based on our learnings
so far.

6

Page 40



Agenda Item 7

Epping Forest — Assistant Director’'s Update
(SEF 13/24)

Committee(s) Dated:
Epping Forest and Commons 18/07/2024
Epping Forest Consultative Group 16/10/2024
Subject: Public

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?

All 6 outcomes

Chamberlain’s Department?

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or No
capital spending?

If so, how much? N/A
What is the source of Funding? N/A
Has this Funding Source been agreed with the N/A

Report of:
Emily Brennan, Director Natural Environment
Department

Report author:
Jacqueline Eggleston — Superintendent/ Assistant
Director of Epping Forest

For Information

Summary

The purpose of this report is to summarise Epping Forest’s progress against
business plan objectives since your last committee along with end of year
performance indicator summaries for 2023/ 24 financial year.

Of particular note, a long-standing problem with a drug taking encampment at
Wanstead Flats has been addressed through joint action. An annual summary of the
work of partner organisation Field Studies Council is presented.

Recommendation(s)
Members are asked to:

¢ Note the report.

Page 41



Main Report

Key performance measures

1. This report reports on end of year performance figures in line with the financial
reporting quarters.

2. Monthly income for car parking in Financial Year 2023/24 is approximately the
same as that received in the previous financial year totalling £458,850 net
surplus.

End of year car park income

£460,500.00

£460,000.00

£459,500.00
£459,000.00
£458,500.00
£458,000.00 .
£457,500.00

2022/23 2023/24

Licencing

Licences and Income

@Fiiming @Sports/Health/Wellbeing @ Utilities/compound @ Filming income @ Fitness income @ Utilities income

20 B0K

40K

0K

2023 Apri 2023 May 2023 June 2023 July 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024 March
August September  October November December January February

3. The largest proportion of income from licences continues to be from sport and
wellbeing — this includes sponsored runs, major charity walks and the like.
Filming continues to provide a healthy income, totalling £81,804 in the last
financial year.

Page 42



Golf

Golf Course Income

Sales

Green Fees
£0.00620,000£2m, 00048, 000£ED, 00& 000,00012Mm, 000161, 000 1BED, 00H1@M,000.00

Green Fees Drinks Hire Sales Total Golf
Sales
W 2024/25 £147,099.25 £1,979.30 £7,979.00 £8,008.09 £165,065.64
m2023/24 £146,836.50 £1,648.85 £7,138.00 £7,569.15 £163,192.50
m2024/25 m2023/24
Number of Fly Tips
70
) “ '
@ Asbestos
50 - - @Euilders
Camp
40
- e
= BN = B ...
o — —— @®Focd
[ ¢ | ®Garden
20 - Household
- : @ Other
< @ Vinite goods
AEpBNcENEEEE
L 7
o
2023 April 2023 May 2023 June 2023 July 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024 March

August  September October Movember December  lanuary  February

Waste Disposal costs
5. Costs of disposal of litter and fly tips. All waste is recycled.

Page 43

#
Fly tipping
4, General

household waste
continues to
dominate the fly
tips experienced
across Epping
Forest followed
by builder’s
waste.



Waste Disposal Costs

£6,000.00

£5,000.00
£4,000.00
£3,000.00
£2,000.00
£1,000.00 I I I I I
£-
A S S S S S S S S

?S?« @'b\\, \o« N ¢ V\)Qé c,)e,Q' o(y $o\\/ OQ/C \/b‘\’ <<é°/ @’b*' VQ« ng

Volunteering

Velunteer hours by group

489

500

o
- 3
5
s
&
o =
E B
2 =z -
2 8 3 @EFCY
>
E @ EFHT Conservation activities - funded by City Bridge Trust
300 o EFHT Green Team
w 5 @ EFHT Happy Loppers
@ HBVC
= . o
“ 5oz L - @ Highams Park Snedders
& = a
1 = @ Litter Picking
200 2 - 2 2 = w
- 2 - = = 2- - = Volunteer Wardens
- E - 3 =
3 . - sls @ Cattle
= 2 - @ Conservation team volunteers
= o
. - Communications
& kS
1 20 2
B =
g L+
o E
B B I = B B B | B B
b x t I E [ 4 |
= = = ) 3
2023 April 2023 May 2023 Jume 2023 July 2023 August 2023 2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024 March
September  October ~ Movember December  January February

6. Our new Engagement and Volunteering Officer, Joanna Stokes, joined the
team on 1 May and has made excellent progress already reviewing
volunteering and establishing great links with our volunteering partners.

Complaint and enquiries trends

7. A new performance measure has started to be collected with the results
below so far:

Page 44



Chart Title

Annual Summary from the Field Studies Council based at High Beach.
FSC Education — annual summary

8. The City of London Corporation supported Field Studies Council (FSC)
service, engaged with over 200 different schools and 16,700 students at the
Epping Forest Field Centre, consisting of primary, secondary, and A-Level
students studying curriculum science and geography in outdoor classrooms
and learning locations throughout Epping Forest. Learner numbers are back
in-line with pre pandemic levels; however, cost of living is impacting on
customers.

9. They welcomed over 150 attendees to their Family Eco Adventures during the
school holidays, where children could take part in nature-based games and
activities and over 50 adults attended the Field Studies Council Biodiversity
courses at Epping Forest.

10. Through the City of London Educational Trust grant funding, the FSC
delivered Young-Naturalist courses to young people aged 11-16 in Wanstead
Park, bringing those with an interest in ecology together. This grant also
included Teacher Training delivered by an expert tutor, designed to introduce
non-specialists to the ecology of Wanstead Park to increase teacher
confidence in delivering curriculum ecology.

11.Through the Adventures Away from Home Fund, the FSC reached out to
those who are under-represented in the outdoor sector and welcomed 30
SEND young people at Epping Forest where they took part in outdoor nature-
based games and activities to promote good mental health and local
community.

Page 45



12.The FSC continue to promote and participate in the Signs of Spring campaign
in partnership with The Royal Society of Biology (as featured on The One
Show in January 2024).

13. Summary statistics for FSC EF delivery:

e Over 2180 primary school students in curriculum Science and
Geography in our outdoor classrooms and learning locations
throughout Epping Forest.

e Over 12,700 secondary school students predominantly carrying out
Geography GSCE Rivers fieldwork at Loughton and Debden Brook.

e Over 1,700 A-level students studying Biology (Ecology and
Ecosystems) at Rushey Plain and Paul’s Nursery.

Updates and progress against business plan objectives (April, May, June)

Unauthorised Occupations
14.There was 1 traveller incursion on Monday 13 May when 12 vehicles and 12
caravans entered Forest Land at George Green. They were quickly moved on
without Police assistance.

Enforcement
15. Epping Forest Enforcement Officers have investigated a total of 22 matters
between 1 April and 31 May 2024, comprising the following types -
e Flytips—19
e Byelaw breaches — 1
e Anti-social behaviour (all matters relate to the use of Quad / motorcycle)
-1
e Dog related incidents — 1
e Poaching-0

16.The team currently manage 24 on-going investigations. 3 matters resulted in
an FPN for parking byelaw breaches. 1 Fly tip matter has been referred for
prosecution / summons.

17.Quad / Motorcycle ASB in the Forest — Joint working with Essex police /
EFDC continues under the operation title ‘Spring action’. The one current EF
investigation arises from a total of 23 separate reported incidents notified to
Epping Forest between the relevant dates. This matter has been referred to
ColL lawyers for advice on civil prosecution options after the police declined to
take any further action. Police have increased patrols in the hotspot areas and
the number of reports has seen a decrease during May compared to the
previous month of April which in turn is lower than the high point in March (28
reports). Consideration to restrict access (to pedestrians) next to an identified
gate within Copped Hall, being used by electric powered motorcycles to enter
and return from the wider forest has been referred to Tris and then John
Phillips.

Page 46



18.Rough sleeper / drug use encampment at Wanstead Flats - On Wednesday
5 June 2024, a joint working initiative was undertaken with neighbourhood
officers from the Met police. An area opposite the CoL cemetery beside
Aldersbrook Road, was cleared of waste, with a longer-term aim of
discouraging drinking and drug taking. Numerous complaints from Forest
users and residents have been received due to the large amounts of rubbish,
alcohol containers and drug paraphernalia littering as well as several
makeshift shelters. Epping Forest officers along with the police and external
waste clearance contractors undertook this hazardous task to clear the area.
Daily keeper and police patrols are actively preventing a return to the previous
poor condition.

Before and after

%

Skylark Fencing Wanstead Flats

19.The frequency and extent of vandalism to the skylark fencing at Wanstead
Flats has continued to fall. No incidents reported since 8 May. Monitoring
continues. Wren Group members observed seven adult skylarks including two
breeding pairs and nesting activity."

Golf

20.Golf Course income rose for April & May 2024/25 compared to the previous
year by £1,873.14 (1.15%) which considering the intermittent weather
conditions is promising for the remainder of the season. Staff completed
chainsaw & woodchipper training allowing more versatility across the grounds
team when carrying out tree clearance work for better playability on the golf
course. Outdoor machinery is better secured and protected under the newly
constructed lean-too on the building which was ready for use at start of April.

Volunteer’s Week

Page 47



W

Epping
Forest

¥,

in one of the most
beautiful places
in London, and it
helps maintain a

udle
Epping A
Forest & |\ :

B it light exercise

29

) ! “We make a
& sife of immense :
#2 natural value... It difference
< adds a real sense anytime
"~ @S of meaning and anywhere -
4 | purpose fo our nickname
P spending fime is the A-
#8 outdoors.” Teaml”

Dan - Epping Forest
Conservation
Volunteer

David - Volunteer
Warden

;OLUNTEERS'

WEEK

;OLUNTEERS'
WEEK

21.Every opportunity was taken to celebrate the outstanding contribution
volunteers make towards taking care of the protected ancient woodland
during national Volunteer's Week. The Epping Forest Guide to volunteering
https://bit.ly/EFvolunteers was revised and promoted and all the various
volunteers, from City of London official volunteers, volunteer partner
organisations and volunteering individuals received thanks and promotion on
Epping Forest’s social media throughout the week. A new monthly
‘Volunteering Information Session’ was launched at the Epping Forest Visitor
Centre, to recruit new volunteers for specific City of London volunteering
roles. In addition a series of volunteer activities targeting youth volunteering
was developed and will be promoted to take place throughout the summer
holidays.

Grazing & Grasslands

22.The Grazing and Landscape Manager hosted a visit with The Essex Wildlife
Trust and Bird Life Cyprus to look at the use of NoFence Technology for
managing cattle and general conservation management.

23.The Grazing and Landscape Manager also hosted a visit with the RSPCA and
Nofence to look at the history of collar-based animal containment in the UK
and how we manage the technology to ensure high animal welfare and
considerations for its use case on other sites.

24.Due to the wet spring and cold temperatures the cattle were delayed going
out to pasture. This was to protect the soil and prevent vegetation getting
grazed to low to quickly which would impact on the plant’s growth for the rest
of the year.

25.Lousewort has been discovered on Ludgate Plain by the Biodiversity officer.

This is the first time it has been recorded there and shows how the
transposition of plants can occur through cattle grazing.

Page 48


https://bit.ly/EFvolunteers

26.A Longhorn herd TB test was completed, this 3 clear test in 18 months takes
us out of TB radial restrictions which had been imposed due to a TB
breakdown in a local Goat herd.

27.Grassland cutting was delayed due to ground conditions remaining very wet.
The grassland team is a 3-person team with 2 new members, this year they
will be reviewing sites as they work and incorporating reactive works into
longer term work programmes.

28.Earlier overseeding at Chingford has produced successful results in early
summer including :_Red Clover, yellow rattle, buttercup, bird foot trefoil and
knapweed

Conservation and Arboricultural

29.A new air pollution monitoring network has been installed across Epping
Forest spanning sites from the Lower Forest to Leyton Flats. This is being
funded through Natural England’s Shared Nitrogen Action Plan programme
which is targeted at issues of nitrogen pollution on Special Area of
Conservation. Each site measures concentrations of nitrogen dioxide and
ammonia in the air. This will continue until April 2025.

30.The Conservation and Arboricultural Team hosted 17 Institute of Chartered
Foresters (ICF) members on the afternoon of 5 June 2024. They were given a
tour to Bury Wood to see the re-pollarding work, use of NoFence and
conservation cattle grazing, and Barn Hoppit to view ancient oak trees and
their management. Followed by a tour of QEHL.

31.A re-prioritisation exercise of tree work identified through existing and most
recent surveys is taking place to help to streamline and consolidate the ‘jobs’.
Three new arborists will be starting in July 2024 and a new team and task

Page 49



structure is being implemented to tackle the backlog of works as rapidly and
efficiently as possible.

32.0ak processionary moth (OPM) numbers are significantly down compared to
2023 (as of 10 June 2024, only one nest was recorded adjacent to Butlers
Retreat), this is likely down to weather conditions. Epping Forest Arborist
team supported the Forestry Commission with a OPM Awareness Day on 10
June 2024. This year the team will be undertaking the annual OMP survey
and bringing this inhouse rather than contracting out as an internal member of
staff will be available temporarily to perform light duties at work.

Recruitment

33. Since your last committee, the following appointments have been made with
start dates due in the next couple of months:

Arborist — three appointments

Estate Manager

Countryside Manager ( Forest Keeper Team Leader) — two appointments
Waste and Recycling Manager

34.The Conservation Manager post will be readvertised as interviews in May
2024 unfortunately resulted in no appointment.

35.Forest Keeper posts are currently advertised (4.5FTE). Posts shortly to be
advertised include Estate Supervisor, Conservation Assistant and Assistant
Forest Keepers.

36. Further recruitment is taking place once line managers have completed
induction or when project timetables require. At the time of writing this report
vacancies stand at 30%. Recruitment of the keepers will reduce this to 15%.

Education
NE Learning Team

37.The Natural Environment Learning Team has worked with 770 school
students during April and May 2024. School students have enjoyed exploring
the forest and taking part in activities including tree studies, eco art,
orienteering and pond dipping.

38.The team also facilitated a session for unaccompanied asylum seekers,
working in partnership with the City of London Virtual School.

Field Studies Centre High Beach

Page 50



39.In partnership with The City of London, Field Studies Council engaged with 50
different schools and approximately 2750 students at the Epping Forest Field
Centre in April and May 2024.

40.School Programme summary statistics for curriculum geography and science:
e Over 280 primary school and early years students

e Over 2180 secondary school students

e Over 285 A-level students

41.Many families attended the Eco Adventures during school holidays to enjoy
nature-based activities and a group of adults attended a Biodiversity
workshop on Wildflowers using Epping Forest as their outdoor classroom.

42.The Field Centre also welcomed approximately 200 participants of the Muslim
Hikers event, organised by the Epping Forest Heritage Trust. Walkers were
able to use the facilities and learn about the Field Studies Council’s
environmental education programmes and its partnership with The City of
London as part of their hike.

43.In April and May 2024, the Field Centre welcomed over 3,300 visitors
equating to over 18,100 learner hours in total across all programmes.

Estates

Car Park Improvements
44.The Estates Team have made considerable progress with improvements to
car parks including at Snaresbrook, Hill Wood and the Boating Lake

45.The Estates Team constructed new planters for the Visitor Centre in
Chingford, these are now being planted up.

Page 51



46.The popular deer sculptures at the Visitor Centre have been restored, giving
them a new lease of life.

Projects

River Roding Pump house
47.City Surveyors have appointed a consultant Spaflow who are designing and
specifying the new pumphouse and filtration system that will be required to
reinstate the up-cascade pumping system from the River Roding whilst it is in
spate in winter months. The aim of this project is to help to reduce or eliminate
the need for abstraction that currently takes place from the aquifer to the
Heronry Pond.

Countryside Stewardship Grant Scheme
48.A grant of £2.37m has been offered by DEFRA for the second Countryside

Stewardship grant, the Environmental Stewardship Officer is working with the
RPA to receive their final corrected versions and SSSI consent for these
works will be submitted in early June 2024. Tender submissions for the first of
the contracted works have been reviewed and a contractor will be selected wc
17™ June 2024. Work to deliver the first Countryside Stewardship agreement
will continue this year through a combination of in-house and contractor
delivery. This will include large scale habitat restoration at the north of Leyton
Flats, as well as notable works at Highams Park, Woodbury Hollow, the Lops
next to Woodford Golf Course, and around the glades next to Oak Hill in
Woodford Green.

Great Gregories Yard — Roofing improvement and Barn Project
49.The new attenuation pond, slurry store tank and new pad prep works are
complete.

Climate Action Strategy — Carbon Removals Project
50. Interviews were held in May 2024 for a dedicated project manager and a
project officer in June 2024. The new project manager has been selected and
will start in July 2024 and an offer to a project officer will be made wc 17 June
2024.

Deer Sanctuary Fencing Repairs
51.Repairs will start to a section of deer fencing in the deer sanctuary this
summer following appointment of a contractor in June 2024. This is being

Page 52



coordinated by the Wildlife Management Officer and City Surveyors under
City Bow-wave funding for Forest infrastructure.

Deer Exclosure Plots (SEF 18/23)
52.Thirty deer exclosure plots will be installed in Epping Forest and Buffer Lands

this summer 2024. Monitored over a period of a few years, in combination
with deer counts and regular vegetation damage assessments, the plots will
provide an indication of the impact of deer grazing on the Forest understorey
and tree regeneration. The Conservation team are undertaking a site visit in
June 2024 to select the locations and signage to inform the public on the
purpose of these plots has been prepared.

Highams Park Lake Bank Restoration Works
53. City Surveyors are planning restoration works to embankments of Highams

Park Lake. Sections of the embankment have improvements and wharfing of
timber, however, in places these have deteriorated, and restoration works are
proposed. Proposals cover eight locations and include new post and planks
with coir rolls (that will be planted) which will be reviewed by Epping Forest
Officers. City Surveyors plan to have this work carried out in Autumn 2024.

Events

Worshipful Company of Information Technologists

54.0n 11 May we welcomed the Worshipful Company of Information

Technologists to the Epping Forest Visitor Centre at Chingford. The group
enjoyed a tour of the Visitor Centre and Queen Elizabeth’s Hunting Lodge as
well as a talk on the grazing programme, focussing particularly on the
pioneering use of the ‘No Fence’ technology. The visit was a great success
and we hope it will lead to future collaboration.

Epping Forest Visitor Centre Exhibitions

55. Interpreting Epping Forest an exhibition by Judith Whitehouse, Jenny

Blanchard and Linda Simmonds is at the Epping Forest Gallery from 14 May
to 7 July.

56.Nick Bowman’s exhibition The Longhorn Cattle of Epping Forest, which

opened on 19 March, continues to run in the Lower Gallery at the Visitor
Centre untill5 September and is receiving great feedback from visitors. Nick
Bowman will be launching his book to accompany the exhibition at an event
on Sunday 30 June, 1 — 5pm.

Staff Conference

57.The first of a new style staff conference took place in June as the first in a

series of presentations and activities for the induction of new team members
as well as a refresher for existing staff or those that have joined in the last few

Page 53



years and not received the full induction.
: P e 5

58.The History of Epping Forest was presented as a quiz and there were three
educational walks explaining the work of the arborists and tree protection;
conservation, grazing and wood pasture management; and managing visitors

7 e ]

§ TN e,

< e ‘:Y::x, =
$; >R
£ n

59.in the Forest. The day concluded with 8 teams challenged to complete their
section of a jigsaw of Epping Forest. We then collated all the completed jigsaws
together to create the entire map of Epping Forest, demonstrating how we are
all individually pieces in the jigsaw taking care of Epping Forest and how much
we can achieve when we work together collaboratively as one team, Team
Epping Forest!

Page 54



60. Further sessions like this are planned for new staff in the Autumn and video
presentations for other areas of work have also been created and will be
made more widely available.

Jacqueline Eggleston
T: 0208 532 1010
E: jacqueline.eggleston@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



Agenda Iltem 8

Committee(s): Dated: 18/07/2024
Epping Forest and Commons Committee — For
Information

Subject: The Commons — Assistant Directors Quarterly Public

Update July 2024
Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate | ¢ Flourishing public
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly? spaces
e Leading sustainable
development
Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or No
capital spending?
If so, how much? N/A
What is the source of Funding?
Has this Funding Source been agreed with the N/A
Chamberlain’s Department?
Report of: Bob Roberts, Interim Executive Director For Information

Environment Department
Report author:
Geoff Sinclair, Assistant Director The Commons

Summary

The purpose of this report is to present key data for Burnham Beeches and the
Commons for the period January 2024 -March 2024. Updates on wider activity cover
a longer period to ensure it is as current as possible.

Of note, volunteers contributed 4655 hours of work over the reporting period while
over the year 16,770 hours of support has been given by volunteers across the
Commons. The Commons local risk budget was £3,066.94 overspent at the end of
the financial year against a total budget of £1,635,000. We are currently 2 staff down
at West Wickham and Coulsdon Common with a fifth recruitment underway to fill the
Conservation Officer role where the post holder is planning to retire. A development
funding application to prepare plans and proposals for a wetland project at Ashtead
Common using funding from the Water Restoration Fund has been submitted. The
2023-24 annual reports for the Strategic Access Management & Monitoring Strategy
(SAMMSs) and section 106 are presented in the appendices.

Recommendation(s)

Members are asked to:

¢ Note the report.

Page 57



Main Report

The Commons Key Data

Budget
£2,000,000.00
The Commons, Budget and Actual by Type (Q4 Jan to Mar
2024)

£1,500,000.00
B Budget M Actual YTD
£1,000,000.00

£500,000.00

£(500,000.00)

£(1,000,000.00)

o

Q & < & &

[ S > < 9 Q N 2 >

& S 9 & & 'b*@ & 2 Q¥ ‘\Q'(Q &°
& & & & & < N > Q &
& < N ¢ R S < «
S & & L a)s@ QR & X2
& © ¥ @ S & Q &
n & <8 S QS o <

1. Burnham Beeches and the City Commons were £3,066.94 overspent on its local
risk budget at the end of the 2023/24 financial year against a total budget of
£1,635,000 net expenditure. Across the year income from government grants (eg
Countryside Stewardship Scheme) and customer client receipts (eg Filming and
café income) were nearly 40% higher than budgeted. We have been fortunate to
have at least one major film a year in recent times. The over 300% increase in
other grants reflects the income from the Buckinghamshire Council’s Strategic
Access Management and Monitoring Scheme (SAMMS) much of which is held in
a restricted reserve of the Burnham Beeches and Stoke Common charity for use
in future years.

Page 58



Car Parking

The Commons: Car Parking Gross Income (Q4 Jan-Mar
2024)

25000

20000

15000

10000

5000

Apr May—%rklng income (A V& 21- Zl?)ep Parkmg thcome f623 24 Feb Mar

2. Overall for the year (Apr-Mar) car parking income is about 94% of the annual
average. The drop is largely attributable to the weather with periods of wet and
inclement weather reducing visits. The wet weather seems to have had an
impact on the first three months of 2024 with parking income around 80% of the
average for the same period.

Page 59



Licences

10

o)

~N

[e)]

(€]

S

w

N

[N

NUMBER OF LICENCES (Q4 Jan to Mar 2024)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

3. 15 licences were issued by local staff during quarter 4 (Jan-Mar 2024) against

a total of 68 for the year. Typically, these are for events held by third parties
such as schools and event providers.

4. A large film unit has been working at Burnham Beeches during May and

June with 4 days of film shoot in total — the shoot’s ‘strike’ is still in progress.

Volunteering

2000

1800

1600

1400

1200

1000

800

600

400

200

The Commons, Volunteer Hours (Q4 Jan to Mar 2024)

e 2023-2024 e AVERAGE (2018-2023 exc 2020)

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OoCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

Page 60



5. Volunteers undertook 4655 hours (665 seven-hour days) of work during the
period, the equivalent of £46,550 using the National Lottery Heritage Fund’s
match funding calculator. Overall, in the twelve months since April, 16,777
volunteer hours have been given to the Commons, the equivalent of £167,770
of much appreciated ‘matched funding’ from local people.

6. Volunteers at Ashtead Common have been preparing for the arrival of 10
Belted Galloway cows by establishing a temporary enclosure. Work to
maintain dead hedges has continued, along with the renovation of sign boards
and finger posts. In addition to practical tasks, volunteers have been
surveying butterflies and river flies. The latter involves kick sampling to test
water quality in the Rye Brook.

7. At the West Wickham and Coulsdon Commons all of the winter work has now
been completed with a significant contribution from volunteers to reduce scrub
across key habitats such as chalk grassland, woodland and heathland.
Volunteers and Rangers have finished laying hedges at Farthing Downs,
Coulsdon Common and Spring Park as part of a rotational programme of
cutting and laying. Hazel coppicing has also continued with areas cleared on
Kenley Common, Coulsdon Common and Spring Park. Additional tasks
undertaken by volunteers across WWCC have included: litter picking to stock
checking and maintaining heritage features.

8. The Riddlesdown Ranger has been continuing with hosting monthly volunteer
tasks on the Common in partnership with the Riddlesdown Collegiate for
students with special educational needs and disabilities. Tasks have included
scrub clearance, coppicing and helping to maintain footpaths and rights of
way.

9. At Burnham Beeches and Stoke Common Volunteers completed habitat
works by the end of March And have since turned their attentions to site
maintenance, including path repairs and car park works, helping set up for
grazing schemes and supporting a wide range of survey work in support of
the conservation officer.

10.17 volunteers from the friends of Stoke common have participated in a whole

site reptile survey at the common undertaking 103 survey visits, and
contributing 157 hours of survey effort and 1386 species records.

Page 61



Events and Educational Activities

THE COMMONS: NUMBER OF EVENTS (Q4 Jan to Mar 2024)

30

25

2
1
1 ‘ ‘
. [
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

11. 35 events were held across Burnham Beeches and the City Commons with
933 people attending these events during quarter 4 (Jan-March 2024). The
total number of events for the year was 212 with an estimated attendance of
6916.

o

(6]

o

(€]

12.To celebrate National Nature Reserve Week (20 to 31 May) we ran three
guided walks between sites in the South London Downs NNR to celebrate its
unigue landscape, flora and fauna. Highlights included a visit to the
Riddlesdown Quarry to see orchids, wild juniper and the goats that graze the
chalk cliffs. Several spring wildlife events were held in April and May including
wildflower walks at Farthing Downs, Kenley Common and Spring Park as well
as a dawn chorus walk on Coulsdon Common.

13.The Big Wild Walk took place on Kenley Common for a second year running.
This large event organised by the Rangers is a self-guided trail for families
around the Common and airfield with multiple stops where people can learn a
bit about the work of the Rangers and volunteers and take part in nature-
based activities. Over 110 people attended; mainly young families who we
have not previously engaged with.

14. At Ashtead educational visits were delivered for students from Sparsholt
College and Barnett Wood Infants School. A scout group spent a day with the
rangers to gain the Forest Badge. A guided walk introduced people to the
benefits of No Fence grazing.

Page 62



15. At Burnham Beeches events have included Easter & %2 term trails, guided
walks and meet the Rangers sessions, just 2 of these attracting and engaging
with over 280 people.

16. The Community Engagement rangers have run a series of walks for residents
of the Horlicks Quarter, encouraging the residents to explore green spaces
close to home as part of mitigation activity.

17. The Beeches team hosted a visit by colleagues from the Environment
Departments Business Support team — providing a tour of the open space and
an opportunity for colleagues to get to know one another and understand what
we all do and how we can support each other.

Energy Use and Production

The Commons: Energy Use and Production kWh (Q4 Jan to
== Fnergy use (2021-24 Ave) Mar 2024)

18000

16000
) (024 Energy Use
14000 (Gas/Electric)
2024Energy Production
12000
== Energy Production (2018-
10000 24 Ave)

8000
6000

2000

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

18.PV energy production was down by 4% in the period January -March on the
six-year average. January was a particular good month with 45% more PV
energy produced than the average for the month however February and
March were especially poor production months. 6.5% more energy was used
during the period (Jan to Mar) than on average. Overall, for the year Apr-Mar
PV energy production was 80% and energy use 99.2% of the six-year
average,

Page 63



Accidents

The Commons: Accident Numbers (Q4 Jan -Mar 2024)

1.2

0.

0.6
0.
8| 1 |
0 I
APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

W 2023-2024 ™ Mean (2017-2024)

2]

>

N

19. During the quarter period (Jan to March 2024) we had no reported accidents.
Overall, for the year we had 5 reported accidents against a 7-year average of
3.4. 61% of the accidents are linked to either task related incidents (38%) or
vehicle related (23%).

Additional Important Updates
Recruitment and Apprentices

20.Across the Commons we have 2 roles currently vacant, representing 6% of
the staff resource. Support Services Officer West Wickham and Coulsdon
Commons and Conservation Ranger (Ecology) at West Wickham and
Coulsdon Commons. In addition, we are looking at recruiting an apprentice for
Ashtead Common.

21.The fifth round of recruitment for the Burnham Beeches and Stoke Common
Conservation Officer was in progress at the time of writing and a verbal
update will be given.

22.A Support Services Officer has been recruited at Ashtead and is likely to start
in September.

Training and Development
23. All team members for the West Wickham and Coulsdon Commons attended a
refresher course in conflict management and personal safety. Two Rangers

attended a 3-day refresher course for chainsaw operation, cross cutting and
small felling with rangers from Ashtead Common. Another two Rangers

Page 64



completed training in the use of wood fed chippers and another in the use of
ride-on mowers

24.The Ashtead team all successfully completed their First Aid at Work with
Forestry add-on training.

25. At Burnham Beeches 2 staff members have completed the IOSSH managing
safely course and the team has attended a refresher course in conflict
management and personal safety.

Livestock

26.The main herd of Sussex cattle at WWCC have finished calving in March with
17 new calves. Since mid-April, the herd were moved from the barn to graze
Woodplace Farm Field and Tollers on Farthing Downs and New Hill. Two
smaller herds of Sussex cattle have been grazing areas of species-rich
grassland since January utilising the NoFence satellite fencing on Kenley
Common and Farthing Downs. The goats have been removed from the main
section of the Riddlesdown Quarry ahead of the first chalk grassland
wildflowers emerging and will be temporarily staying in a smaller grazing area
on the top of the Quarry until they come back to the Merlewood Estate yard for
spring/summer.

27.The cattle at Burnham Beeches have returned to the nature reserve and are
grazing the Beeches both in invisible (NoFence) and traditional fenced areas.
This is the 13" season that invisible fences have been used at Burnham
Beeches. Ponies have also returned from their winter quarter to the Beeches
and Cattle are also back at Stoke Common on both the main and west
commons.

28.At Ashtead Common the cattle contracted in from and managed by Surrey
Wildlife Trust are successfully grazing using NoFence. As this is the first time
NoFence has been used at Ashtead Common back-up electric fencing is in
place as a precaution.

Project work

29. At Ashtead Common a remote water quality sensing device has been installed
at the surface water outlet into the Rye Brook to monitor pollution. This
information will supply baseline data for a reedbed project to tackle pollution
from a surface water drainage network that discharges into the Rye Brook.

30.The Ashtead team has worked with the South East Rivers Trust to develop a
wetland project using funding from the Water Restoration Fund. If successful
the design will be developed to a level sufficient to submit a grant application
to implement the project if this, or any other, funding stream becomes
available again.

31.The Burnham Beeches Strategic Access Management & Monitoring Strategy
(SAMMSs) and section 106 funded Community Engagement Rangers (CERS)

Page 65



completed their first full year in post during the period. The SAMMs provides
funding for a CER and projects for 80 years via developer contribution relating
to developments within 5.6 Km of the Beeches within Buckinghamshire. The
106 CER is funded by payments from 1 development in Slough — the Horlicks
guarter - for 5 years. Annual reports of activity by the CERs are attached as
appendices 2 and 3

32. The Beeches team have been Supporting Buckinghamshire and Slough
councils with running Local Nature Recovery Strategy meetings whilst high
lighting the importance of the Beeches and stoke Common

33. Buckinghamshire highways have implemented the first part of long-awaited
parking restrictions around Burnham Beeches with adjacent roads in Farnham
Common having parking restrictions introduced.

Survey and monitoring.

34.As part of the SAMMSs project a new monitoring strategy to guide the CERs
and Beeches staff on what monitoring to undertake to monitor the impact of
recreation on the SAC was completed. The CERs have started implement
actions to establish recommended monitoring systems to measure future
changes. Their focus currently and for the next year includes areas like path
widths and weatr/ particular species monitoring and habitat fragmentation.

Consultative Committees

35.Nothing to report.

Appendices

Appendix 1 — The Commons Local Risk Financial Summary
Appendix 2 — Buckinghamshire 2023-24 SAMMS report
Appendix 3 — Slough 2023-24 SAMMS report

Geoff Sinclair
Assistant Director, The Commons

T: 01753 647358
E: geoff.sinclair@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 66


mailto:geoff.sinclair@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Appendix 1: The Commons performance against budget to end March 2024 (Period 12-24, 100% of
FY)

Summary of The Common’s Expenditure and Income for the year to date (12 months)

Exp/Inc P&L Header DOS Budget Actual YTD
Customer, Client
Income Receipts AC -3,000 -28,347.97
Customer, Client
Income Receipts BB -258,000 -333,329.65
Customer, Client
Income Receipts ww -113,000 -150,536.77
Expenditure Employees AC 325,000 342,719.43
Expenditure Employees BB 735,000 696,698.18
Expenditure Employees SC 23,000 19,470.78
Expenditure Employees ww 618,000 574,731.88
Income Government Grants AC -20,000 -52,696.53
Income Government Grants BB -35,000 -46,650.00
Income Government Grants SC -25,000 -27,946.05
Income Government Grants WW -50,000 -54,596.40
Other Grants,
Reimbursements and
Income Contributions AC 0 -2,929.03
Other Grants,
Reimbursements and
Income Contributions BB -110,000 -342,573.97
Other Grants,
Reimbursements and
Income Contributions ww 0 -3,212.84
Expenditure Premises AC 81,000 113,231.31
Expenditure Premises BB 89,000 137,195.17
Expenditure Premises SC 23,000 33,907.95
Expenditure Premises ww 141,000 174,395.01
Expenditure Supplies and Services AC 31,000 58,209.45
Expenditure Supplies and Services BB 103,000 155,952.11
Expenditure Supplies and Services SC 5,000 654.77
Expenditure Supplies and Services ww 35,000 74,227.59
Expenditure Third Party payment SC 1,000 157.00
Expenditure Third Party payment BB 0 28.6
Transfer from
Income Reserves ww 0 -8,426.97
Transfer from
Income Reserves BB 0 -57,070.62
Expenditure Transport AC 11,000 10,920.86
Expenditure Transport BB 14,000 16,491.70
Expenditure Transport ww 14,000 30,697.25
Income Investment Income SC 0 -4014.13
Expenditure Transfer to Reserve BB 0 293,052.49
Expenditure Transfer to Reserve SC 0 4,014.13
Expenditure Transfer to Reserve ww 0 12,916.21
Expenditure Transfer to Reserve AC 0 726
Total 1,635,000 1,638,067

Page 67



Appendix 1: The Commons performance against budget to end March 2024 (Period 12-24, 100% of
FY)

Progress Against Budget for the year to date (Twelve months)

EXPENDITURE
£2,249,000 122%
Sum of Budget Actual by Budget

£2,750,397.87
Sum of Actual YTD

INCOME
-£614,000 181%
Sum of Budget Actual by Budget

£1,112,330.93
Sum of Actual YTD

Page 68



CITY
LONDON

MONITORING STRATEGY
- APRIL 2024

APRIL 2023

)
Z.
<C
T
i
Ll
=
L
)
<C
7,
<C
=
(Vp)]
Ll
)
@)
<
O
L
o
<
o
T
wn

-

o
I o
"H" LiJ

o
fL._Fh
=
: 2
Y
MU
> n
nK“ LL1
UR
m Y

O

oz

o




-

L]

SAIR%2) 1NDU 0207
§52194u} DUHUSIDS |P1PRAS 10 AWS

UOWWOD N0\

-_—— =

LETE BT

rire it

TR T I I

D) by s

268 1.7 )
e eksaate l

oron
ony of ihe ancien?!

wees
fuits, flowers
grow.

You can help protect
widilie thot mokes
Ihe Reserve so special
. Don't mave aten of
stocked wood fo
make dens.
. Don'tchmbin
T
ond fungl 10

To protect fres 0ol
and reduce 558

domage. 31y o0

the
the main poms.
. Keepyour o9

clongside.

‘.!.I.lr

& -
S5y 2R X -

ars old.

20999
A

s




BURNHAM BEECHES SAMMS: progress report to Buckinghamshire Council
April 2023- March 2024

CONTEXT
Burnham Beeches Special Area of Conservation (SAC)

In 2005, Burnham Beeches, a primarily wooded area in
southern Buckinghamshire, was designated a Special Area of
Conservation (SAC). This was to protect the ‘beech forest on
acid soil’ habitat, and acknowledges the mosses, lichens,
insects and other invertebrates that depend on the ancient
trees. All SACs are protected under the Conservation of
Habitats and Species Regulations (2017), giving these areas
the highest degree of protection available in law.

Image 1. Burnham Beeches, Special Area of
Conservation, National Nature Reserve and Site of
Special Scientific Interest.

The northern part of the SAC is private woodland, only
accessible by public footpaths and a small number of
permissive paths. The southern part, Burnham Beeches
National Nature Reserve, is a Public Open Space owned
and managed by the City of London Corporation as a charity. Other habitats on the reserve include wood
pasture, heathland, grassland, mire and valley mire, grassland, ponds and streams.

To protect the reserve, Burnham Beeches NNR is managed through a series of 10-year management plans,
drawn up with and given consent by Natural England. The current Burnham Beeches management plan runs
from 2020 to 2030.

Although only 220 ha (approximately one square mile), the reserve receives approximately 600,000 visits each
year, with an estimated 35-40% of those visits bringing at least one dog. It is extremely vulnerable to damage
from overuse as well as from external stresses such as drought, fire or pollution.

Evidence has suggested that additional visitors to Burnham Beeches NNR, generated through additional local
housing development, will harm the integrity of the SAC (Footprint Ecology Report: Urban Development and
Burnham Beeches SAC). To alleviate the projected impact, no new dwellings are permitted within 500 m of the
boundary of the SAC and all new developments within a 5.6km
‘zone of influence’ (see Appendix A for map) are required to
make a financial contribution to Buckinghamshire Council.

The Burnham Beeches Strategic Access and Monitoring
Strategy (SAMMS) was adopted by Buckinghamshire Council in
November 2020. It runs for 80 years and is currently being
delivered through six core projects that specify how funds
received by Buckinghamshire Council will be used to directly
manage and avoid the negative impacts of an increase in
recreation at Burnham Beeches National Nature Reserve.

Full details of each project may be found in Appendix B. Image 2. Ancient beech pollards at Burnham
Beeches National Nature Reserve.

Page 71


https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/Green-Spaces/burnham-beeches-2020-to-2030-management-plan.pdf
https://www.footprint-ecology.co.uk/reports/Liley%20et%20al%202012%20-%20Burnham%20Beeches%20and%20Urban%20Development.pdf
https://www.footprint-ecology.co.uk/reports/Liley%20et%20al%202012%20-%20Burnham%20Beeches%20and%20Urban%20Development.pdf
https://buckinghamshire-gov-uk.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/Burnham_Beeches_Adopted_SPD_1_ur0JiMw_HURqdJZ.pdf
https://buckinghamshire-gov-uk.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/Burnham_Beeches_Adopted_SPD_1_ur0JiMw_HURqdJZ.pdf

BUDGET

The SAMMs contributions collected must cover expected expenditure for the first 10 years of project delivery
and ultimately for the 80 years of the SAMMs agreement.

Project summary and expenditure 2023/24

Project scope Current agreed 10 yr expenditure 2020/21- Exp 23/24
2029/30
Project 1: provision of bespoke electronic | £17,000 for bespoke interpretation 1x in 10 £0
information, to help visitors to the SAC years, likely to be 2025/26 onwards
understand the impact of their visit
and/or actions.
Project 2: events and promotion of Project 2 - annual spend of £2,800 for CER to use | £353.34
activities to raise awareness of recreation | for event/activities
pressure and of alternative places to visit.
Project 3: appointment of a Community Project 3 - <£52,118 annually to employ a
Engagement Ranger. Community Engagement Ranger (CER) to £39,792.63
undertake range of engagement activity (10 months’
*10 months’ salary due to CER resigning on salary*)
31/01/23 and replacement not in post until
01/04/2024.
Project 4: visitor surveys. Project 4 - £10,000 — visitor survey /count £0
1 x every 10 years. Project not due before 25/26.
Project 5: monitoring visitor impacts on Project 5 — £20,000 every 10 years, to be spent £7925.76
soils and the ecology of the SAC. at an average of £2000 /year on monitoring
visitor impacts on features at Burnham Beeches
SAC (ecology/lichens /soils etc)
Project 6: production of access Project 6 - £15,000 for the one-off production of | £0
plan/carrying capacity study. action plan /carrying capacity study
Total £48,071.73
Budget summary to date 2020/21 - 2023/24
Income received from SAMMS contributions to date
Year Contributions collected Number of developments Number of
properties
2020/21 £26,310.31 8 12
2021/22 £452,986.74 25 224
2022/23 £177,537.22 33 85
2023/24 £162,583 24 78
Total £819,417.27 90 399

Page 72




Ten-year expenditure summary to date — no expenditure prior to 2022/23 (year 3)

Project 10 year value Amount spent to Amount left to
date spend

Project 1 — Electronic Interpretation £17,000 0 £17,000

Project 2 — Events/promotion £28,000 £353.34 £27,646.66

Project 3 — CER employment £521,180* £51,349.94 £469,830.06

Project 4 — Visitor survey £10,000 0 £10,000

Project 5 - Monitoring visitor impacts £20,000 £7925.76 £12,074.24

Project 6 - Access Strategy £15,000 £9,875 £5,125

Totals £611,180 £69,504.04 £541,675.96

*CER not employed until Jan 2023

PROJECT OUTLINE AND PROGRESS

A: Project 1: provision of electronic information, to help visitors to the SAC understand the impact of

their visit and/or actions.

e No action 2023/24.

B: Project 2: events and promotion of activities to raise awareness of recreation pressure and of

alternative places to visit and Project 3: appointment of a Community Engagement Ranger

The objectives of the CER post are to:

. Mitigate the potential for harm to the protected habitats within Burnham Beeches and its SAC by
being a public face and catalyst to effect behaviour change by visitors to the nature reserve;

° Work with the wider Ranger team to deliver a visible, approachable and proactive Ranger service to
achieve sustainable outcomes for the reserve alongside a positive visitor experience;

. Undertake outreach, engaging with potential visitors off-site and promoting the use of other local

natural greenspaces as alternative visitor destinations.

It is worth noting that there are two CERs at Burnham Beeches, with one post being funded by
Buckinghamshire Council and the other by mitigation payments to Slough Borough Council from the Berkeley
Group for the residential development at the Horlicks Quarter. The two Rangers are employed by the City of
London Corporation and are based at the Burnham Beeches office. They work closely together, with the relevant
officer taking responsibility for outreach work in their respective local authority areas. They support each other
delivering their respective work programmes — each has different skills which bring more benefits to the delivery

of both schemes/agreements than possible working as individuals.

The Buckinghamshire CER left the post at the end of January 24 due to personal reasons. As of April 1 2024, the
position was filled by the Slough CER and as of April 15 2024, the Slough CER position was filled.

Page 73



B.1 ACTION ON THE NNR

B.1.1 Patrols

Four regular patrol routes have been established, which are patrolled on
different days and times each week. The schedule ensures equal
coverage of the on-lead and off-lead areas.

Patrols are either undertaken with the Slough CER or alone; these have
been on foot or by e-bike. When on foot, the CER also deals with any
litter; this not only has a positive practical impact (studies have shown
that 2+ pieces of litter tends to attract additional litter) but also offers a
talking point that leads into conversations about other issues affecting
the reserve.

Image 3. Map of four patrol routes across Burnham
The most common reasons to intervene with negative behaviour on Beeches.
the reserve relate to breaches in the Public Spaces Protection Orders
(PSPOs). Appendix C shows the PSPO areas. In these instances, visitors have been given verbal advice about the
on and off lead areas and the fragility of the reserve, and maps/ supporting literature where needed. Where
necessary, the CER has ensured dogs have been put on lead. All incidents are recorded immediately after the
PSPO breach and later recorded on a central log with further action (formal letter or enforcement action) being
authorised by the Head Ranger/Assistant Director, as required by the Burnham Beeches PSPO enforcement
protocol. TN BN

Image 4. Visitor engagement
Other interventions have related to: about tree safety work.

o fires

e visitors approaching or feeding grazing livestock
e fungi picking

e off-road cycling

e quad bike incursion

e moving deadwood and den-building

Engagement has also included chatting or answering questions about wildlife,
reasons for visiting or responding to particular needs such as giving directions.
Where possible, core messages have been integrated into these conversations. As the CER’s knowledge of the
wider area has grown, it has also been possible to suggest other places visitors might enjoy visiting.

Over 99% of engagement has been positive, even when enforcing PSPOs.

There has also been multiple ‘engagement weeks’, where other members of staff patrolled with a CER, aiming to
share their proactive approach to engagement.

Patrol engagement April 2023 to April 2024 PSPO enforcement April 2023 to April 2024
e 296 hours and 25 minutes of patrol from 01/04/2023 to No. int tions by CER 236
09/01/2024 (manual/handwritten surveys). O- Interventions by >
e 66 hours and 27 minutes of patrol from 10/01/2024 to No. interventions by all team 552
31/03/2024 (surveying using Survey123). members
e Total of 362 hours and 52 minutes of patrol from CERs have enforced 42.75% of the total
01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024. number of PSPOs enforced by the whole

Ranger team in 2023/24.
e An average of 30 hours of patrol per month.

Page 74



B.1.2 Monitoring

Patrol engagement

Version 3 of patrol monitoring includes the following: Observations for
01/04/23 -
09/01/24

Number of visitors (the number of people seen at Burnham Beeches, including from | 8288
a distance where there is no opportunity for engagement).

Number of dogs (the number of dogs seen at Burnham Beeches). 2173
Visitors exhibiting positive behaviour (for example, a dog is on-lead in the on-lead 8041
area).

Visitors exhibiting negative behaviour (for example, a visitor walking off the path). 281
Positive engagement with visitors. 2704
Negative engagement with visitors (for example, a conversation where the visitor 6

disagrees with the Public Spaces Protection Orders).

The routes, frequency and monitoring of patrols has been evolving over the first year. Information from
meetings with other SAMMS in 23/24 and data from existing transects has helped to inform the final
procedures. Data in the key areas (as above) has been gathered on an ongoing basis, however from the 10*" of
January 2024, a new patrol monitoring system has been used (Appendix D). This new way of monitoring using
Survey123 (an ArcGIS application) does not include the number of visitors or dogs seen, but records more
information about the types of engagement, problems observed and mitigation (see also Project 4). This method
of monitoring also enables the CERs to monitor patrols in wet weather conditions and no extra time is needed to
upload the data to a spreadsheet after the patrol. The CERs now use two surveys whilst on patrol:

e One that is monitoring the whole patrol which includes information such as date, time, weather
conditions, location, number of visitors greeted, number of dens dismantled, and the number of
negative behaviours witnessed (such as dog fouls not picked up).

e The second survey is more focussed on engagement when on patrol and records information about
conversations with visitors (Appendix E). This survey records information such as the number of visitors
interacted with, location, the main topic of conversation, whether the visitor was aware of a particular
issue such as soil erosion, whether the visitor was aware of rules in place, and if the visitor was aware of
the wildlife value of Burnham Beeches.

Patrol monitoring using Survey123: Observations for
10/01/24 -
31/03/24

Number of visitors greeted (hello, good morning) 630

Number of visitors engaged with (full conversations had with visitors) 287

Number of negative behaviours witnessed (dog fouling not picked up, foraging) 81

Page 75



It is clear from this first year of monitoring that the issues affecting the National Nature Reserve are only
occasionally those of overtly negative behaviour such as graffiti, littering or aggressive dogs. Although there is an
on-going issue with dogs being off- lead in the on-lead area, or being far from the paths, or not under effective
control in the off-lead area, these represent a relatively small proportion of the dogs walked on the reserve.
Damage seems to result largely from the volume of footfall in relation to the fragility of the Beeches and
conversations indicate lack of visitor awareness and/or interest about the value of the reserve or consequences
of overuse (47% of visitors spoken to since 10/01/24 were aware of the wildlife value of Burnham Beeches).
Fewer than 1% of the visitors seen were walking through undisturbed vegetation with the majority being on
some kind of existing trail. The main topic of conversation had with visitors was a general chat (33% of
engagements since 10/01/24) which could be about the walker’s dog, the weather or a catch up. The next most
common topic of conversation was regarding PSPOs, whether that was discussing the rules or enforcing the rules
(16% of engagements since 10/01/24).

The new monitoring technique will enable the CERs to adapt messaging and create materials specific to topics
that visitors are unsure about, providing a more targeted approach to mitigation.

Other monitoring

Two ‘dog transects’ are carried out each month. These follow two set
routes around the reserve (Appendix F), and count the number, gender mix
and approximate age of visitors in each section of the route, the number of
dogs and whether these dogs are on or off-lead. Data from 24 transects
conducted by the CERs in 2023/24 adds to records dating back to 2015 and
is used to inform the three-yearly review of Public Space Protection Orders.
It will now also be used to also help assess the impact of the CER presence.

Each H&g =Tfoul

Mess I Three new ‘flag the poo’ transects (counting the number of dog faeces left
7 and placing flags next to them to raise awareness) have been established at
Burnham Beeches: the first and second are along the two footpaths at the
main entrance; the third is a stretch of path leading into Egypt Wood
(Appendix G). The data from these transects, conducted quarterly, will add
to the data collected from the two transects at Stoke Common and the two
existing long-term dog poo transects which have shown a significant
reduction in fouling in both the on-lead and off-lead areas.

Image 5: ‘Flag the Poo’ sign board at the main entrance to Burnham Beeches.
The board includes information about dogs and their fouls.

In area 2 at Stoke Common, Flag The Poo at Stoke Common
the number of fouls being -
flagged has decreased,
however the number of fouls
being flagged in area 1 has
remained high since July
2023. This could be due to
area 1 being the most
common entrance used by
visitors at Stoke Common. 24/04/3023
Further messaging needs to Date
be created to help stop dog
fouls being left.

[ R T TR R

[E——

(=T B T = A~ A =

Mumber of dog fouls flagg ed

Page 76



The number of dog fouls Flag The Poo at Burnham Beeches
flagged at Burnham Beeches 20

has decreased since the start 18
of Flag The Poo in May 2023. 18

14
12
10

Whilst conducting Flag The

Mumber of dog fouls flagg ed

Poo at Burnham Beeches and 6

Stoke Common, many visitors 4 _,,.——'-/ /&
approach the CERs to ask 2

guestions about the flags and i 14/05/2023 10/8/2023 3/11/2023 10/2/2024
primarily comment on how Date

awful it is to see so many — Aresdl o Area?d o Ares3

flags.

B.1.3 Practical mitigation

B.1.3.i Trampling and erosion

One of the main issues affecting the reserve is the number of desire
lines (tracks created by visitors walking the line that seems natural to
them) that were created or widened over Covid lockdowns, when an
estimated additional 250,000 visits were made to the Beeches. Many
are continuing to widen as paths become muddy. As a result,
vegetation and soil damage is occurring across the majority of the
reserve.

Action included: )
Image 6: This stretch of dead hedge

e Creating 5 dead hedges across the entry points to block protects an area of woodland damaged by

desire lines off surfaced paths and protect vulnerable areas.  Visitors cutting through from one surfaced
track to another.

e Identifying further areas for the Burnham Beeches
volunteers to dead-hedge to reduce path edge erosion.

e Creating informal path blocks using fallen or cut
material

e Roping off particularly vulnerable areas for the winter
months.

e Supporting practical action with signage and social
media to explain why action is needed.

e Improvement of path sections so all main paths are
clearly marked and accessible.

Image 7: Winter ground conditions exacerbate
the impact of footfall, hence some areas are
closed.

Page 77



Recommendations

e Continue to carry out practical work as in 23/24 as
opportunities arise, working alone and with
volunteers;

e Work with the other staff and visitor data to draw up a
map of which paths should be retained and prioritise
closures and measures to encourage visitors to use
particular paths, and use this to plan future practical
work;

e Investigate ways to waymark desired routes; N T o '

Image 8: Blocking a desire line, helped by staff and

e Integrate actions with the monitoring proposals students from Berkshire College of Agriculture.
under Project 4.

e Liaison with information team regarding routes of
any trails produced.

B.1.3.ii Damage to decaying wood

Much of the ecological value of Burnham Beeches relates to the animals,
plants, fungi and lichens that depend on decaying wood for part or all of
their life cycles. The scarcity, diversity and number of these species was a
factor in the designation of Burnham Beeches as a Special Area of
Conservation, and the subsequent need for the SAMMS. It is therefore
critical that there is mitigation action to protect the volume and quality of
this habitat.

Dead and decaying wood is found in the ancient trees, in standing and fallen
or felled dead trees, in habitat piles built of cut wood and in the fallen

branches that have been left where they fell. Image 9. Decaying wood provides
shelter and food for rare and
Damage to this habitat and the associated wildlife is caused mainly by endangered species.

visitors climbing on or in the ancient trees or by visitors moving sticks
and logs, primarily to build dens.

Protecting ancient trees

The Beeches tree management programme already includes measures to
deter visitors from getting too close to the ancient trees. These include

creating barriers around vulnerable trees from cut material, or re-routing
paths. The CER input has been primarily information-based (section B.1.4)

In January 2024, however, the CERs created a solution to a particularly
vulnerable tree; this was adjacent to a busy path and showing accelerated
disintegration from the number of people standing in or on it for a ‘selfie’.
This temporary barrier will be replaced by a palisade fence, and may be used
for other trees at high-risk.

Image 10. Protecting the ‘Fairy Tree’.

Page 78



Dens

Den building is seen as a fun, harmless activity, and is indeed
promoted elsewhere as a way to encourage families to enjoy being
outdoors. It is, however, not appropriate at Burnham Beeches.
Although the wood may appear to be undamaged, movement
changes light and moisture conditions needed by the animals,
plants, fungi and lichens that had colonised the wood in its original
location.

It is therefore vital that action is taken to protect particularly
vulnerable trees and that dens are spotted and dealt with

promptly to raise awareness that this activity is not permitted. Image 11. A dismantled den. Each den uses a large

number of logs and sticks and causes severe
localised habitat disruption.

Image 12. Some dens use fresh Image 13 and 14. The sticks used in this den were used to block a desire line.
materials too. Many attract litter. Friendly signage explains the importance of this habitat and asks visitors to leave it

All the dens found have been dismantled and the wood either scattered around the surrounding habitat or built
into a habitat pile. Where visitors have been seen building a den, the CER Ranger has explained the value of the
wood and nature reserve to both the adults and the children, and encouraged them to help dismantle the den
carefully and to try to replace the wood where they found it.

Prior to the creation and use of Survey123, the number of dens dismantled this year was not recorded formally,
although it is estimated to be in the region of 25+, with 5 direct interventions with families. Since January with
the use of Survey123, 13 dens have been dismantled and recorded, along with images and the locations of each
den.

Recommendations
e To continue to dismantle dens and engage with public, as required.
e To work with the Ranger team to ensure a consistent approach.

e To log locations and take pictures of dens, and a) target information and b) work with the Conservation
Officer to agree removal of decaying materials to less accessible areas of the reserve.

Page 79



B.1.4 Message and resource development

In 22/23 the following key points were identified for on-site information/interpretation and integration into one-

one conversations with visitors.

Core message

Simple supplementary information to increase understanding that
Burnham Beeches is a National Nature Reserve

The number of visitors here is
damaging the nature reserve

Burnham Beeches is one of the most important places for wildlife in
Europe.

Stay on the main paths

The number of visitors is causing damage to soil structure: erosion
and compaction is affecting the nature reserve.

Pick up after your dog

Nutrients impact on the nature reserve.

This is part of the nature
reserve where dogs need to be
on a lead at all times

The nature reserve is heavily used; the on-lead area is a ‘safe space’
not just for wildlife but for our many visitors who may not like dogs.

Always keep your dog in sight

Information about the variety of wildlife on the nature reserve that
may be disturbed; impacts of fouling out sight.

In 23/24, the additional key points were added.

Core message

Simple supplementary information to increase understanding that
Burnham Beeches is a National Nature Reserve

We understand you love being
here and don’t mean any harm.

This is one of the most important places in Europe for certain species
and habitat. It is only one square mile, very popular, and the number
of visitors puts it in danger of being loved to death.

Keep your dog alongside.

A dog doesn’t have to chase wildlife to disturb it. Every time an animal
is disturbed, it stops it from resting, feeding or breeding. This includes
small birds, mammals and invertebrates you don’t see.

Do not climb in or on the
ancient trees.

There are things living in and around decaying wood that depend on it
for all or part of their life cycle. Many are rare or endangered. The mix
of species suggest these woods have been here since the Ice Age. The
species are only here because the habitat is so old. This is the 3 most
important place in the UK for saproxylic species.

Leave logs and sticks on the
ground. No den-building.

As above. Plus, once wood has been moved, the light and moisture
conditions are not those needed by the things living there. It can
never be put back in exactly the right place. Moving dead wood also
directly disturbs and may damage the wildlife in/under it.

Do not approach or feed the
COWS Or ponies.

These are working animals, not pets. They are helping the reserve
become better for wildlife using a traditional method. They create a
better mix of plants for wildlife than mowing or cutting. Plus safety
and nutrition information.

No fires or BBQs; no litter.

The value of NNR, as above.

Page 80




Over the course of the year, the CER has researched the facts and figures underpinning these statements to be
able to construct meaningful ‘arguments’ to underpin information delivery. Information aims to be as specific as
possible so that visitors understand not just what is required but also why restrictions or changes in behaviour
are required and how these will benefit the nature reserve.

SUHUNITIAVIC 1 1115 ISV 53 W1 Gl IS 111y,

The majority of information materials produced this year
have included the five core behaviours (see Image 15) we

Five easy ways from a distance instead of .. . .

youcanhelp Y | AT rewiackaccaanae — want to encourage, aiming to establish a baseline

AT demage cross the reserve. . .
protect the nature. awareness of appropriate behaviour.
reserve.

|| Admiring the ancient frees

Staying on the main paths.

? The focus now is to:

B e e |

: R | a) make it easy for visitors to be aware of what is needed and
ey, i 7 ' : how to comply. Note: this work needs to be linked with

practical measures; at present, for example, it is not always
Image 15 Display ending with the core easy to tell which unsurfaced paths are the main paths.

behaviours. b) recognise the mismatch between visitor expectations (a

park for recreation) and reality (a highly fragile and important
area of conservation);

c) raise awareness and love of the things that make Burnham Beeches unique.
Note: this work supplements and overlaps with that of the existing information team.

The following approach is used for all
resource development, from flyers to
guided walks, to ensure that all action is
meaningful.

i Looking after the

5% National Nature Reserve
Burnham SiSG
Beeches Our ancient trees

Whilst some materials are purely
informational, others are interpretative,
aiming to link the visitor’s experience
with the needs of the reserve. All aim to
incorporate:

The ancient pollards are
% hundreds of years old.
Our oldest tree, Druids Ock, §
o was here at the time of the
4% Crusades.
The cracks and hollows in
®  the thick branches are home fo rare and
unusual minibeasts, mosses. lichens and
fungi. Masses of insects live in each tree,
providing food for larger animals, including
bats living in the lorger crevices.

(a) What feature/species/ habitat is
being impacted by a particular

Important information for visitors

i . Please do not climb in or on
behaviour; Image 16. The picture on the ' the ancient frees.
P : They are easily damaged and ireplace-
(b) Why action is needed (usually why outside ‘of the CL{be/e 9f. S e s
. . L something the visitor is likely o
a particular feature/species/habitat is o )
to see on the reserve. el g omhariescre 3

important;

(c) What the threat is, e.g. trampling, disturbance, fire; Image 17. Information on the inside of the

(d) How visitors can help. cubicle relates to that image.

A suite of information was developed for the toilet block. The poster on the outside of the door highlights (a). The
inside panel explains (b), (c), and (d).

The six cubicles cover grazing (separate panels for cows and ponies), ancient trees, decaying wood, wildlife disturbance and picking
flowers.

Page 81



B.1.4.i Displays at the information point

The information point is in the busy café area on the Main Common, and next to the toilet block. Although small,
it has a display case, three notice boards and a leaflet rack. The display case and largest notice are available to

the CERs for seasonal displays.

Image 18 and 19. Spring display

The summer display targeted families with
children, aiming to raise awareness of the five
core behaviours. It was styled to complement
a summer ‘bucket list’ of low impact activities
organised by the information team and the
CER summer engagement week activities.

Image 20 and 21. Summer flyer promoting other places
to visit, and summer display.

The autumn display addressed
the seasonal problem of fungi
picking and aimed to educate
visitors about the importance
of fungi in the food chain. The
core messages of keeping to
the path and keeping dogs
alongside were set in the
context of the variety of life in
leaf litter.

Image 22 and 23. Autumn display.

The winter display covered all
five core messages again, with

In spring, the display
highlighted core behaviours
that would help reptiles and
amphibians coming out of
hibernation.

'STEP INTO NATURE  §

Bumham Beeches s an GMazng nalure reserve, bul
there are o host of other ploces nearby whare you
won' need fo wotty Gboul oboul Gisluibing rare cnd
wiinerabie widife.

Peppared witn paths, lanes, cycieways, bridieways
and wolerways, the Chilterns Area of Oufstanding
Natural Beauly provides endiess opporunities for ol
Kinds of acfivifies, for oll ages ond obilies. Whelher
you want o build a den, cycle off-oad or simply dck
afoolball around - there ore many more green
spaces to discover and expiore.

AV

NS

CHILTERNS

JI

/

TS Ol L ALY

an additional safety message
about ice. It also reinforced
the autumn ‘no foraging’
messaging by highlighting the
scarcity of food for wildlife at
this time of year.

Image 24 and 25. Winter display

Page 82



B.1.4.ii Portable materials

In order to display information across the nature reserve in
different areas and target a wider audience, a portable table was
purchased. However, the table was difficult to carry on foot or
by bike across the reserve. Therefore, a cargo bike was designed
and purchased to solve this problem and help transport
materials and displays to different parts of Burnham Beeches.
The CERs aim to use the cargo bike regularly, especially during
seasonal engagement weeks. The bike also enables the CERs to
target specific problem areas and places where there is higher
visitor pressure. The design shows visitors the various habitats
within Burnham Beeches and highlights key aspects of the
reserve such as the ancient pollards, decaying wood and fungi.

Image 26. Cargo bike.

It was agreed that the most important areas to target through
interpretative and information materials were the ancient trees and
decaying wood. Although they are a highly visible part of the
reserve, conversations with visitors suggest that understanding of
their importance is minimal.

A tabletop display was created to explore how the previous
community use of Burnham Beeches created the ancient pollards.

Organised by past, present and future, it details the value and
variety of wildlife that depends on the old trees and the associated
decaying wood.

It is accompanied by a ‘treasure box’ that provides talking points
for the CER to explain in more detail about some of the species
that need the trees and threats facing them.

It has been used at the village Orchard Day and in autumn
engagement week, and will be used to support future pop-up
events on the Reserve.

Recommendations Image 28. A fungi display created by the Slough
CER, also used for autumn/winter engagement to
e Further development of ancient tree and deadwood expand wildlife messaging.

resources with:
e Taxidermy specimens, such as an owl or woodpecker, to raise interest.

e Bowls made from different woods, containing the relevant nuts or
berries that help support wildlife on the Reserve.

e Duplicate treasure boxes, for use with school groups.

e Note cards for the treasure box, to enable other staff or volunteers to
use the display.

o

walking, disturbance of ground nesting birds and reptiles. Image 29. The treasure box.

o Development of displays and materials highlighting seasonal issues for )
use on pop up patrols, such as information on responsible dog , —

Page 83



B.1.4.iii Other materials

"\ The Havitat pite
(and other decaying wood),
gurmham Beeches

K a0l T tional Nature Resetve,
e Nationa .
\\ y L~ The €arth

Peac Visitor,

Temporary signs were created to target issues on the
ground. Seasonal signs included grazing, fire and bird : . : B i

. . . . . — o gt but the fallen branches you have been using are our homes.
feeding while others supported practical mitigation work. o ‘Dead hedges’ help Sveey time peonie move ot g them, - ot vs

Literally. we need €0 live aeep in the decaying wood to be
protect this fragile safe from predators or ve die, The p(ants and fungi
nature reserwe. o Growing on and in the wood get danmaged too.

e of the reasons Burnham Beeches is 3 nature
resecve is because of the things that live on and around
the decaying wood. Some of Us are fafe of endangered
Species. Even Us common minibeasts ate stilt important
pacts of the fooa chain - ve have vhole famities of birds
2na mammals vho depend on us.

Image 30. This sign at a dead hedge explains the benefit
of staying on the main path in this part of the reserve.

So please, leave the sticks on the ground, and dot
build any more dens at the National Nature Reserve.

Image 31. An A5 child-friendly laminated sign has been

Yours gratefotly,

left where dens have been frequently built. All bar one of E«o@ﬁ@&t& -
these has remained in place without dens being rebuilt. 2w N

PS: you can use the map on the link to fing places
40 90 where the wildife 18 not €0 heavity proteceec,  [RING

B.1.5 Activities and events

All events, walks and engagement weeks have a common aim of raising
visitors’ awareness on the importance of Burnham Beeches, educating
visitors on how to visit Burnham Beeches respectfully to reduce
disturbance (for example, sticking to the main paths or not building dens),
and promoting other locations for visitors to explore. It is worth noting
that the aim of these walks, events and engagement weeks is not to
speak to as many people as possible or bring in more people to the
reserve, but to instead talk to those who are already visiting and use
Burnham Beeches on a regular basis.

Image 32. Educating Farnham
Common Junior School about
Burnham Beeches during WWII.

SN ™

e Summer engagement week 2023 was the first engagement week
conducted by the CERs. The aim of this week was to trial a range
of low preparation activities and to assess the effectiveness of
various pop-up locations. Activities during the week included a
bug hunt, nature art using homemade clay and a space to take
time in noticing nature which involved inviting visitors into a quiet
area to sit down and listen to the natural sounds around them.
Over the week, 216 engagements were made.

Image 33. Crafting Creatures event
during the summer engagement

e Autumn engagement week 2023 focussed on highlighting the
week 2023.

importance of ancient trees, decaying wood and fungi. This
week tied in with National Tree Week and included multiple
pop-ups with displays and a walk at Burnham Park to show their
tree trail.

e Spring engagement week 2024 had a theme of disturbance to
make visitors aware of the species (reptiles, ground nesting birds)
coming out of hibernation or breeding, and the importance of
keeping to the paths, especially at this time. The week brought
together the whole Ranger team for various pop-ups with a
display and for patrols. 88 people were engaged with over the

week. Image 34. Game created for

o school/youth groups to stop them
e Farnham Common Infant school, which is a local school, came to from running, shouting or stepping

visit to conduct a bug hunt. The CER ensured that the 59 children o pgth.
understood the importance of Burnham Beeches for
invertebrates and explained why activities such a den building are not allowed at the reserve.

Page 84



The CER has been supporting the Slough CER with walks on the reserve such as ‘Waggy Walks’ which
aims to educate dog walkers on the PSPOs and help them better understand the on and off lead areas.

A guided walk for 10 of the Land Management team from Berks, Bucks and Oxon Wildlife Trust
(BBOWT) provided contact with professionals experiencing similar impacts.

The CER supported a visit from Farnham Common Junior School (60 children) to explore the value of
Seven Ways Plain and its history and the children were encouraged to explore the area respectfully.

Guided walk with 36 Beavers. The CER rewarded them for following the undamaging the nature reserve
rules through a simple game that made them think about how species such as mice need to be quiet to
survive (see image 34).

Recommendations

Continue and consolidate activities and events that continue to educate visitors to the nature reserve.
Move more walk and talks onto surrounding areas.
Use weekends for pop up patrolling at various locations at Burnham Beeches using the cargo bike.

Offer frequent or repeat youth and school group visits and offer support at a green space closer to them.

B.2 WORK OUTSIDE THE RESERVE

The aim of CER work in the wider community is to reduce pressure on the National Nature Reserve by
encouraging residents within the 5.6k zone of influence to make greater use of their local green spaces and
rights of way.

It should be noted that CER focus on outreach differs between Buckinghamshire and Slough. Although each
Ranger takes responsibility for initiatives within their respective local authority, they support each other on the
presumption that residents of each development will benefit from green space use in both Buckinghamshire and

Slough.

With the exception of Wilton Park and Huntercombe Walk, the residential
® developments comprise a large number of small developments spread

a ‘:? 8/ [ across the 5.6km zone of influence surrounding Burnham Beeches.
Outreach events/activities and promotion of alternative green
spaces/routes targeting residents of the small or individual developments
is likely to be through community meeting points and local schools.

(og the Horlicks Quarter; the Borough Council is investing in its existing green

& ’ B ars Within Slough, the 106 payment is exclusively from the development of
ELAB ST spaces to meet the needs of new residents. The Slough CER is targeting

NS : residents through work with the Quarter’s concierge service, which

S 9. provides a range of activities for residents.

Image 35. Map of developments. Purple icons indicate S106 payments have been made. Blue icons indicate the planning
application has been made.

Page 85



B.2.1 Fieldwork and liaison around Burnham

The first tranche of work linked to Burnham, aiming to identify spaces that might appeal to the residents of

Huntercombe Walk (165 properties, 45 occupied as of Dec. 2023) and/or
Berkley Place (28 flats, 13 occupied as of December 23). It was

anticipated some of these spaces might have potential for promotionto @
residents of the Britwell Estate and surrounding area.

A set of linked green spaces was identified fairly early on, ° o
comprising Cocksherd Wood, Lynch Hill Park/Lammas Meadow and
Haymill Nature Reserve.

Cocksherd Wood is a remnant of ancient woodland managed by The ' sumnam ™
Evergreen Trust. It is possible to walk a short circuit here.

Lynch Hill Park/Lammas Meadow is an attractive open space with

Burnham Beeches

Cherry Orchard

Nature Park Berkeley

Place
~

Cocksherd Wood D g

»~ Lynch Hill Park

Park
KEY

Haymill — Path walked,

nature safe

reserve __ Path walked,
it A pavement

some scrub that is a potential place to redirect dog walkers to. T s — Poh wolkeo,

unsafe

Haymill Nature Reserve is wet woodland surrounding ponds and ﬁl Huntercombe Walk o
reedbeds. b =  Jeor
All three sites are owned by Slough Council but managed with the help //'/\

of external organisations. Links have been made with the Evergreen
Green Trust (Cocksherd Wood), and BBOWT (Haymill Nature Reserve). Image 36. Green areas and routes
Slough Council is supportive of any measures to increase local use of identified in and around Burnham.

these spaces.

green space

The area to the south of Huntercombe
Place contains footpaths linking to the
Visits were also made to Burnham Park, Cherry Orchard, and Thames Path and Jubilee River
several paths walked.

As the map shows, it is possible to reach all these spaces (and also Burnham Station) on foot, although
some sections use pavements beside fairly busy roads. Furthermore the route from Huntercombe Walk
has a small uphill gradient which many might find off-putting. Nevertheless, there is potential to
promote use of these spaces not just to residents of new developments but also of the area of Slough
immediately to the south of the Beeches.

Informal advice was given to Burnham Parish Council regarding the management of the Cherry Orchard
reserve, which is currently mainly used by people walking their dogs.

The Council is revising a booklet of circular walks within the Parish (several of which include the
Beeches); this is an opportunity to ensure the walks through the Beeches follow surfaced paths and the
Ranger has offered to walk and check these sections and some of these routes in the wider countryside,
feeding back any revisions or clarifications to the Council.

Advice was given to the Evergreen Trust regarding funding opportunities for conservation work in
Cocksherd Wood.

Recommendations

Promoting the Cocksherd Wood to Burnham route to the residents of Berkeley Place.
Follow up on Burnham Parish Council walks.

Further exploration of the area to the south of Huntercombe Walk, looking at areas of accessible green
space identified on Natural England’s green infrastructure map and looking for routes down to the
Thames Path.

Page 86



o If these exist, production of a leaflet or other resource promoted via the Parish Council, local
library, community centre/hub/Facebook group and directly to Huntercombe Walk and other
developments in the Burnham sector.

e Linking Huntercombe Walk initiatives with any work by the Slough CER.

B.2.2 Fieldwork and liaison around Burnham Beeches

Fieldwork around the Beeches began in autumn 2023. Here the priority was to identify walks and additional
green spaces not just for residents of new . Church wood
developments but also for existing residents, who make {-—\\/[m'

up the bulk of regular visitors to the NNR. Research on
surrounding green spaces has been conducted using OS il
maps, existing staff knowledge and Natural England’s i
green infrastructure map.

Portman
- Burley
Estate

Burmham |
: %\ Beeches

Image 37. Green areas and routes identified in
Farnham Royal Parish around Burnham Beeches.

Stoke

KEY L Common

e Meeting with Farnham Royal Parish Council RB—
regarding routes from Hedgerley to link down o
to Burnham, and link to planned improvements ki
to the Shakespeare Way. The Parish Council is o
considering whether it will be possible for the i
patches of woodland under their care to be
‘offered’ as an alternative place for families
found building dens at the Beeches. It was
agreed that Temple Dell, a parish-managed space located close to Farnham Common Infant and Junior
Schools, would be a suitable location for schools-based activities (see B.2.4).

Path walked,
pavement

e Avisit to Littleworth Common (a Site of Special Scientific Interest) showed it provides a similar
landscape to the Beeches, suggesting it might prove an occasional alternative for local visitors; car
parking is, however, limited. Furthermore, the condition of the footpath linking the two sites suggested
the path between Littleworth Common and Burnham Beeches is already heavily and regularly used;
some sections were extremely slippery and muddy. Due to the status of this site, it is not desirable to
push large numbers of visitors here.

e Improved waymarking of both the permissive and statutory paths in the Portman-Burtley estate is
needed. The Portman-Burtley estate is part of the SAC due to its wildlife value and therefore it is not
desirable to push huge numbers of visitors here.

e Footpath reconnaissance found problems relating to path condition on all routes, with some sections
flooded. This may well have been due to the persistent bouts of torrential rain, but this seems likely to
be a continuing problem. The existing level of use is making many of the paths uninviting and needing
wellingtons or sturdy footwear, therefore unsuitable for the casual recreational use that the majority of
visitors to the Beeches are seeking.

e |n addition to the properties that have made S106 payments, there are many re-developments around
the Beeches where much larger houses have replaced relatively small dwellings. It seems likely that
some of these account for the many new visitors to the Beeches.

e There is no off-road walking route close to the Parsonage Lane development, shown on the south of
Image 37.

Page 87



Recommendations

e Further fieldwork to identify the best circular routes from Farnham Common, Farnham Royal, Hedgerley
and Stoke Poges.

e Liaison with Buckinghamshire Council to resolve any access or waymarking issues along these routes.

e Liaison with Portman-Burtley to improve waymarking of any permissive sections of these routes.

e Promotion of the circular walking routes and local green spaces via parish websites, local community
centre/hub/Facebook group and walks in the Beeches’ events programme.

e Promotion of the above directly to new developments in this sector, e.g. by flyer.

e Working with the information team to resolve difficulties in making resources available through the City
of London website.

B.2.3 Events and activities

It is worth noting that when attending
events away from Burnham Beeches,
the CERs now have separate uniform
that does not state ‘Burnham Beeches
and Stoke Common’ on them so that
members of the public aren’t made
aware of the nature reserves when it
is not necessary.

«- Lowland heath
¢

Both CERs attended the Stoke Poges
fete, seeing this as an opportunity to
work with the Friends of Stoke Common to direct local residents to the
nearby heathland (also owned and managed by the City of London) within
easy walking distance of the village. Care was taken to emphasise the
nature value of this reserve and need to protect ground-nesting birds
when visiting. 76 people were spoken with at the stall, including the local
MP.

Image 38. Stoke Poges Fete.

European Special Area of Conservation

Site of Special Scientific Interest

Nafional Nature Res:

Burmham Beeches

Image 39. Farnham Common
Orchard Day.

Farnham Common Orchard Day was a chance to influence those living closest to Burnham Beeches, with the
display emphasising both the positive and negative impacts of community use of the Reserve. The CERs spoke to
108 people, most of whom were overwhelmingly positive about the Beeches and mitigation efforts. The CER also
spent time talking about community issues with other stall holders, including representatives of Farnham Royal
Parish Council, Farnham Common School, the local Guides and Farnham Common Library.

As part of the autumn/winter engagement week, the CER led a guided
walk around Burnham Park’s tree trail. This was a trial first walk on an
external site; it aimed to build the relationship with Burnham Parish
Council and trial targeting an extremely local audience. The walk was
publicised by flyers at Huntercombe Walk, posters in Burnham Library,
Tesco and community hall, on Eventbrite, and on Burnham and the
Beeches Facebook pages. Of the 8 participants, 4 found it through
searching for nature walks on Eventbrite, 1 from a poster, and 2 from
following the Beeches. Although numbers were small, links were made :
with a volunteer with BBOWT and the organiser of the Wycombe District  mqge 40. Guided walk at Burnham
Ramblers. Park about the tree trail.

The CER also supported the Slough CER with walks and event at the Horlicks Quarter, aiming to promote use of
Slough parks and reaching 32 residents.

Page 88



Other community events attended included a health initiative by the local GP surgery, a library coffee morning,
and joining a ‘Tilly’s Trotters’ walk (a new Simply Walk group coming to the Beeches each week).

Recommendations

e Attendance in 24/25 at Farnham Common Orchard Day, Stoke Poges Horticultural Show (with FOSC),
Burnham Donkey Derby, Burnham Park Wellbeing event and similar community events as they arise.

e Further walks away from Burnham Beeches (already planned through the Beeches event programme).

e Using a variety of publicity for walks and events, and monitoring in order to target walks/events at local
residents.

e Liaising with Tilly’s Trotters to ensure routes stay on surfaced paths.

e Visiting Farnham Common Community hub, a Friday morning drop in, on a more regular basis.

B.2.4 Schools and youth groups

The CER has been interested in working with schools and youth groups that are very local to Burnham Beeches
or those that frequently visit. When working with these groups on the nature reserve the aim is to educate them
and to push mitigation messages through a fun and engaging way. However, there is scope to work with these
groups at other green spaces that may be closer to them. The CER has explored these spaces to see whether
they are suitable for schools or youth groups.

Recommendations
e Hold a session at a nature reserve local to 1°t Holtspur Scouts/Beavers/Cubs.

e Support sessions for the Hedgerley Scouts/Cubs in woods at the back of the Scout hut (which they
already use).

e Run a series of sessions at Farnham Common Junior School with each year group and help the children
use their school outside space to create better wildlife habitats in the grounds.

e  Work with Farnham Common Infant School at their local greenspaces where activities such as den
building and bug hunts can be conducted whilst being taught about the importance of being respectful.

Page 89



OTHER

a) Links with other groups and organisations

Burnham Beeches is just one of many areas affected by visitor pressures.
Efforts have been made over the year to learn from the experiences of
others, and to begin to share our own.

Visits were made to three of the areas contacted in 2023: Thames Basin
Heaths, the South Downs National Park and the Solent Special Protection
Area (Bird Aware Solent). A return visit by members of the Thames Basin
Heath team provided an opportunity to share our own experience.
Although sharing experiences with other SAMM s projects has been
extremely useful, the project at Burnham Beeches is very different to
others. Burnham Beeches is a small nature reserve with a high density of
visitors, whereas other SAMM s projects are working across multiple large
areas so visitor numbers are more spread out. It also became apparent
that the presence of a SANG has helped other projects immensely and
reduced pressures to the highly valued nature sites.

Image 41. Visit to Thames Basin

The CERs have joined SCCAMP (the Southern Counties Canine Access .
Heaths Partnership.

Management Partnership). As a result, the CERs are learning from and
sharing experiences of dog control and ways to educate dog walkers
about being responsible and respecting nature.

A walk for the Land Management team from Berks, Bucks and Oxon Wildlife Trust (BBOWT) provided contact
with professionals experiencing similar impacts on nature reserves often more akin to Burnham Beeches

Other walks or presentations were given to officers from Natural England, Buckinghamshire Council and the
Burnham Beeches Consultation Group.

Recommendations

e Visit to BBOWT sites.

e Lliaise with those in charge of the SAMMs project at Ashridge
Estate (National Trust) and organise visits there and at
Burnham Beeches.

e Liaise with those in charge of the SAMMs project at Epping
Forest and organise visits there and at Burnham Beeches.

e  Maintain links with SCCAMP and other SAMMs projects.

e Attend annual mitigation conferences.

e Maintain and grow links with Buckinghamshire Council
Country Parks’ Team, with particular reference to Image 42. Leading a walk for the
opportunities to link with development of the new South Land Management Team from
Bucks Little Country Park and the possible redevelopment of ~ BBOWT.

Little Marlow Lakes Country Park as a Suitable Alternative
Natural Greenspace.

Page 90



b) Social media and press work

The Slough CER has taken the lead for social media but the Bucks CER
has also created regular social media to promote positive
recreational behaviour, highlight issues at Burnham Beeches and
promote alternative destinations. This messaging aims to target
those already visiting Burnham Beeches rather than attracting new
visitors.

Over the past year Burnham Beeches’ social media has transformed
from only information about the reserve to posts that are specific to
mitigation aims (see image 50). The main aim of social media is to
educate followers on how important Burnham Beeches is and how
they can help protect the reserve. All social media platforms are
monitored and information such as engagements, reach and
impressions are recorded on a weekly basis. This enables the CERs to
understand which types of post are performing particularly well in
comparison to others. Facebook is used more frequently and all
information is posted on Facebook (e.g., events as well as
mitigation messages) in order to reach a more local audience and

to prevent attracting visitors from further afield.

Image 43. Post-Christmas message,
anticipating the seasonal rise in
occasional visitors who may not be
familiar with restrictions on the reserve.

01/04/23 - New Total Total
31/03/24 Followers Impressions | Engagements
X (Twitter) 37 53,363 1,388
Facebook 124 141,620 10,489
Instagram 44 8,594 1,185
(Starting

06/23)

c) Training and development

Training was targeted at opportunities to inform or deliver engagement work. The importance and diversity of
saproxylic species is one of the reasons why Burnham Beeches is such an important site.

e One day course on the importance of dead and decaying wood.
e Causes of tree failure.

e Creativity conference (online attendance at a number of seminars of interest for activity development).

Page 91



Project 4: Visitor Surveys

Project 4 is specified in the SAMMS as a major survey every ten years, to determine the total number of visitors
and visitor use. The last detailed count of visitors to Burnham Beeches was carried out in 2015/16; it is planned
to repeat this every 10 years to calibrate the automatic car counters. The next survey will be carried out in 2025
The external consultants will guide the work but the practical work will be carried out by staff, volunteers and/or
contractors. One option under consideration is to use a contractor to analyse data collected by mobile phones
carried by visitors to replace some aspects of previously used methods.

Project 5: Monitoring visitor impacts on soils and the ecology of the SAC

A monitoring strategy has been drawn up by Footprint Ecology, working with the Conservation Officer, Head
Ranger and Community Engagement Rangers. It recommends a number of improvements to some of the existing
monitoring and five new monitoring actions. The report produced is a monitoring strategy for Burnham Beeches
and specifically relates to recreation mitigation work. The report aims to establish a prioritised list of measures
and set out further detail as to how they would work and fit into a long-term monitoring ‘package’.

Existing monitoring

e Incident log

e Transects counting dog faeces

e Visitor interviews

e Visitor distribution

e Tree health and condition

e CER Ranger patrol time and engagement

Proposals for new monitoring

The new monitoring actions (see table below) will be undertaken alongside the existing monitoring listed above.
The new monitoring actions will commence in May 2024, starting with path condition survveys to provide a
baseline to work from in following years. Most other actions, except for the soil sampling, will be started in
2024 and some will be undertaken with help from volunteers. The CER will put together a plan to outline when
each action will be completed, who they will be done by and the deadlines for reporting.

New monitoring actions:

Monitoring action Done-by 1%t year to be Frequency
undertaken

a. Report and spreadsheet Staff 2024 Annual
structure

b. Path condition survey Staff 2024 Repeated every other

year

c. Follow-up monitoring path | Staff 2024 Annual
management/interventions

d. Additional fixed-point Staff 2024 Repeated every other
photography of paths year
outside of RAG areas

e. Soil sampling Staff or volunteers and | 2025 Repeated every 5

laboratory years

f. Vegetation wear on Staff or volunteers 2024 Annual
common

g. Species monitoring Staff or volunteers 2024 Annual

Page 92


https://corpoflondon.sharepoint.com/sites/TheCommons/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?FolderCTID=0x0120007E98525E9507A64280DBBA0290C4B19E&id=%2Fsites%2FTheCommons%2FShared%20Documents%2FBurnham%20Beeches%2FCommunity%20Engagement%20Rangers%2FFootprint%20Monitoring%2FBurnham%20Beeches%20Mitigation%20Monitoring%20Strategy%20290224%2Epdf&viewid=51742b60%2Db3af%2D445e%2D86fa%2D8c6b643761c2&parent=%2Fsites%2FTheCommons%2FShared%20Documents%2FBurnham%20Beeches%2FCommunity%20Engagement%20Rangers%2FFootprint%20Monitoring

Project 6: Production of access plan/carrying capacity study

A review of sustainable visitor numbers at Burnham Beeches (Liley et al. 2022) was commissioned from
Footprint Ecology to identify what level of recreation use at Burnham Beeches might be sustainable in
the long term and what steps might be necessary to achieve this level of recreation: this is being used
to inform the new visitor access strategy.

A draft of a new Sustainable Visitor Access and Mitigation Strategy is in progress, with completion
expected 24/25 with the final document produced by Footprint Ecology.

PRIORITIES FOR 2024/25

Project 1 priorities

No action planned for 2024/25.

Project 2 and 3 priorities

To continue regular patrols, aiming to encourage positive outcomes on the reserve through regular one-
to-one engagement and delivery of core messages. This will include weekend and out-of-hours patrols.
To carry out regular visitor monitoring, including car park counts, visitor behaviour transects, dog
transects and ‘flag the poo’ transects. This will be used to inform work programming and help assess the
impact of CER action.

To keep accurate records of patrol engagement and outreach using Survey123, including a qualitative
assessment of their impact, amending work programming as required.

To continue developing and trialling core messages and materials tackling the main issues caused by
visitor activities.

To visit more SAMMs projects to learn from their experience of developing and delivering similar
campaigns. These visits will include various Wildlife Trust sites, Ashridge estate and Epping Forest. This
will enable us learn from and provide information to others managing discreet sites/nature reserves who
will have a similar aim to our project.

To develop and undertake more regular on- and off-reserve activities that deliver campaign messaging.
To support the above with regular social media posts reflecting the spectrum of visitor/recreation
related pressures affecting Burnham Beeches and creating context for mitigation measures.

To build on existing partnerships and create new partnerships with site owners/managers of alternative
green spaces to find ways to promote their sites to new residents that complement each site’s
objectives, prioritising those sites closest to the two major developments, Huntercombe Walk and
Wilton Park.

To work with schools and community points close to Burnham Beeches and/or developments suitable
for outreach activities.

To keep records of and monitor all engagement activities, adjusting work priorities accordingly.
Continue to carry out practical work as in 23/24 as opportunities arise, working alone and with
volunteers.

Work with the other staff and visitor data to draw up a map of which paths should be retained and
prioritise closures and measures to encourage visitors to use particular paths, and use this to plan future
practical work.

Investigate ways to waymark desired routes.

Liaison with information team regarding routes of any trails produced.

To continue to dismantle dens and engage with public, as required.

To log locations and take pictures of dens, and a) target information and b) work with the Conservation
Officer to agree removal of decaying materials to less accessible areas of the reserve.

Page 93


https://www.footprint-ecology.co.uk/reports/Liley%20et%20al.%20-%202022%20-%20A%20review%20of%20sustainable%20visitor%20numbers%20at%20Burnham.pdf

e To work with the Ranger team to ensure a consistent approach.

e Further development of ancient tree and deadwood resources with:

o Taxidermy specimens, such as an owl or woodpecker, to raise interest.

o Bowls made from different woods, containing the relevant nuts or berries that help support
wildlife on the Reserve.

o Duplicate treasure boxes, for use with school groups.

o Note cards for the treasure box, to enable other staff or volunteers to use the display.

o Development of displays and materials highlighting seasonal issues for use on pop up patrols, such as
information on responsible dog walking, disturbance of ground nesting birds and reptiles.

e Continue and consolidate activities and events that continue to educate visitors to the nature reserve.

e Move more walk and talks onto surrounding areas.

e Use weekends for pop up patrolling at various locations at Burnham Beeches using the cargo bike.

e Offer frequent or repeat youth and school group visits and offer support at a green space closer to them.

e Promoting the Cocksherd Wood to Burnham route to the residents of Berkeley Place.

e Follow up on Burnham Parish Council walks.

e Further exploration of the area to the south of Huntercombe Walk, looking at areas of accessible green
space identified on Natural England’s green infrastructure map and looking for routes down to the
Thames Path.

o If these exist, production of a leaflet or other resource promoted via the Parish Council, local
library, community centre/hub/Facebook group and directly to Huntercombe Walk and other
developments in the Burnham sector.

e Linking Huntercombe Walk initiatives with any work by the Slough CER.

e Further fieldwork to identify the best circular routes from Farnham Common, Farnham Royal, Hedgerley
and Stoke Poges.

e Liaison with Buckinghamshire Council to resolve any access or waymarking issues along these routes.

e Liaison with Portman-Burtley to improve waymarking of any permissive sections of these routes.

e Promotion of the circular walking routes and local green spaces via parish websites, local community
centre/hub/Facebook group and walks in the Beeches’ events programme.

e Promotion of the above directly to new developments in this sector, e.g. by flyer.

e Working with the information team to resolve difficulties in making resources available through the City
of London website.

e Hold a session at a nature reserve local to 1% Holtspur Scouts/Beavers/Cubs.

e Support sessions for the Hedgerley Scouts/Cubs in woods at the back of the Scout hut (which they
already use).

e Run a series of sessions at Farnham Common Junior School with each year group and help the children
use their school outside space to create better wildlife habitats in the grounds.

o  Work with Farnham Common Infant School at their local greenspaces where activities such as den
building and bug hunts can be conducted whilst being taught about the importance of being respectful.

e  Maintain links with SCCAMP and other SAMMs projects.

e Attend annual mitigation conferences.

e Maintain and grow links with Buckinghamshire Council Country Parks’ Team, with particular reference to
opportunities to link with development of the new South Bucks Little Country Park and the possible
redevelopment of Little Marlow Lakes Country Park as a Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace.

e To carry out outreach work to reach new residents, building a relationship with the Huntercombe Walk
and Wilton Park developments.

e To develop a flexible welcome pack that can be modified and targeted to both the large and the
individual developments across the zone of influence.

e To trial ways to reach the developments of one or two individual properties.

Project 4 priorities

No action planned for 2024/25.

Page 94



Project 5 priorities

e Produce a plan and timeline that blends exiting monitoring with the proposal identified in 23/24

e Identify what can be carried out by the CERs, what can be carried out by other staff or volunteers and
what might require expertise from contractors.

e Start/carry out most new monitoring actions in 2024, except for the soil sampling which will commence
in 2025.

Project 6 priorities

Further work on the Sustainable Visitor Access and Mitigation Strategy will be undertaken, bringing together and
summarising the effort and actions to date that aim to manage and/or reduce visitor impacts. It will refer to the
SAMMS and the CERs and mitigation activities. The strategy will also aim to identify further options should
visitor impacts be shown, despite the mitigation measures of Projects 1-3, to be negatively impacting the SAC.

Page 95



APPENDICES:

Appendix A — Zones of influence around Burnham Beeches

(o] 1 2km N

| I

LEPUS CONSULTING

FLANNING & URBAN SUSTAINABILITY

18ath Street, Cheitenham, GLSO IYE
T: 01242 525 222

www.lepusconsulting.com

Burnham Beeches SAC
5.6km Zone of Influence

500m presumption against development

PROJECT:
CLIENT:
DRAWING:
DRAWING No:
. DRAWN:

fo o ) CHECKED:
3 SCALE:
DATE:

© Crown copyright and database rights (2018) Ordnance Survey 0100052373

LC-584_Chiltern_&_South_Bucks_R22
Chiltern and South Bucks District Councils
Strategic recreation mitigation strategy
Figure 1

ES

NJD

1:70,000

06/02/20

BURNHAM BEECHES SAMMS: progress report to Buckinghamshire Council

Page 96

(April 2023 - March 2024)



/6 abed

Appendix B — Strategy Projects and Costs, from Burnham Beeches SAMMS supplementary planning document.

Project Description

Project 1:

Provision of electronic
interpretation

Unit Cost

£17,000.00

Frequency

Once every 10
years

Occurrence Total Cost

over 80 years

Funding
Duration (prices
provided in
perpetuity based
on 80 years)

2020/21 - 8
2100/01

£136,000.00

Rationale and justification

Bespoke interpretation to help visitors during their
visit to better understand the consequences of
their actions.

Information will be linked electronically to visitor
location. This will allow visitors to understand the
areas within which they are walking. For instance,
information will be provided to indicate ‘dog on
lead’ areas or sensitive trees etc.

This is an area where there is currently no
provision but where future provision is required to
mitigate additional impacts from Local Plan
development.

Project 2:

Events and promotion of
activities aimed
specifically at raising
public awareness of
recreation pressure and

This project will be
implemented by
additional Ranger
resource (see project 3).

alternative places to visit.

£2,800.00

Annually

2020/21 - 80
2100/01

£224,000.00

Targeted Visitor events to improve visitor
understanding of the pressures at Burnham Beeches
and how these can be mitigated.

Suitable events might include those aimed at dog
owners or more general open days to explain the
importance of the nature reserve and the work
carried out to manage it.

Prices assume one large or two smaller events per
year.

Costs are based on similar events hosted at
Burnham Beeches and other local sites managed by
the City of London Corporation.

Buckinghamshire Council

29




Project Description Unit Cost Frequency Funding Occurrence Total Cost Rationale and justification
Duration (prices over 80 years
provided in
perpetuity based

on 80 years)

Project 3: £52,118.00 Annually 2020/21 - 80 £4,169,440.00 » Ranger post to raise awareness of visitor
2100/01 impacts, including help with enforcement of

SAC Engagement Public Space Protection Orders, promotion of

Ranger/SAC sustainable transport, responsible dog

ownership, impact of recreation activities on
wildlife to manage additional impacts from
Local Plan development.

»  This role may include community outreach, to

schools and local events.

This role will also ensure engagement with

volunteers to help raise awareness of visitor

impacts with additional visitor numbers from Local

Plan.

» Costs are based on a full- time Ranger. Note: full
time Ranger costs are based on Grade C post within
City of London Corporation including all employee
related costs e.g. uniform, training etc.

Ambassador (new
member of staff).

86 obed
\7

Buckinghamshire Council
30



66 abed

Project Description Unit Cost Frequency Funding Occurrence Total Cost Rationale and justification
Duration (prices  over 80 years
provided in
perpetuity based

on 80 years)

Project 4: £10,000.00 Every 10 years | 2020/21 - 8 £80,000.00 »  Visitor surveys will be undertaken to determine the

2100/01 total number of visitors and visitor use. This will
Visitor surveys target the additional visitors expected to be
(numbers & visitor generated by development set out within the Local
activities). Plan.

»  Surveys will help to inform future revisions of the
mitigation strategy.

»  Surveys will be delivered by external consultants.

»  Practical work may be by staff, volunteers, or
contractors.

Buckinghamshire Council
31



Project Description

Unit Cost

Frequency

Funding
Duration (prices
provided in
perpetuity based

on 80 years)

over 80 years

Total Cost

Rationale and justification

Project 5: £20,000.00 Every 10 years | 2020/21 - £160,000.00 A provisional list of surveys is as follows:
2100/01 »  Path condition survey.
Monitoring visitor »  Follow-up monitoring of path
impacts on soils and management/interventions.
the ecology of the SAC. » Additional fixed-point photography outside of
RAG areas.
»  Soil sampling.
» \Vegetation wear on common (annual)
U » Species monitoring.

Q

(Q .

o) » Surveys will be conducted by staff, volunteers or

= contractors.

o » Surveys will be reported on in a 10 yearly

© monitoring report.
Project 6: £15,000 1 2020/21 - £15,000.00 » Produce visitor access strategy for Burnham

2021/22 Beeches including an assessment of visitor carrying

Production of access capacity.
plan / carrying capacity
study.
Total for 80 years £4,784,440.00

Buckinghamshire Council

32




Strategic Access
Management and

Monitoring Strategy

Mitigation Total

Total

£4,784,440.00

Projected number
of new homes

2,364

Cost to each Home

£2,023.87

P1 £136,000.00
P2 £224,000.00
P3 £4,169,440.00
P4 £80,000.00

P5 £160,000.00
P6 £15,000.00

TOT abed

Buckinghamshire Council

33



Appendix C — Map of Burnham Beeches showing areas covered by either order 2 (dogs on leads), order 3 (dogs on lead by direction), or order 4 (dogs exclusion
area) of the Public Spaces Protection Orders relating to dog walking.

Order 1: Fouling by dogs

Please make sure you pick up all poo that your dog
drops, wherever you are in Burnham Beeches. Please
also ensure that you dispose of it properly by using one of the bins
provided or taking it home.

Area covered by order 2
Area covered by order 3

~=eeees Boundary between areas for orders 2 & 3

Area covered by order 4

— Site boundary

Orders 1 & 5 apply throughout the site. Order 2: Dogs on leads

If you are in the areas marked 2 on the map you must
keep your dog on a lead no longer than 5m in length.

The Moat

Order 3: Dogs on leads by direction

Dogs must be under effective control at all times in
Burnham Beeches. If your dog is off a lead in the area
marked 3 on the map and an authorised officer judges that it is not
under effective control, they will ask you to put it on alead. Please
make sure you always carry a lead (not more than 5m in length)
when you walk your dog at Burnham Beeches.

20T abed

Dr
(5}

.‘ Bedford Driv

& Order 4: Dogs exclusion area

Please do not allow your dog to enter the no dogs area
_ . at the café (marked 4 on the map). If you have a
S :: ﬂ recognised assistance dog because of a disability, you are exempt.

@ Crown copyright and database rights $ (o7 e
2014 Crdnance Swvey 1000023243

Order 5: Maximum number of dogs

Each dog walker can bring a maximum of four dogs onto
MAX 4 Burnham Beeches at one time.

Buckinghamshire Council
34



Appendix D — Burnham Beeches patrol monitoring using Survey123.

10:27 Thu 11 Apr

X Patrol Monitoring Data

Name of individual filling in this form *

Location of patrol *

Date of patrol *

Start time of patrol *
©

End time of patrol *

O

Pick the options that best describe the weather conditions during the patrol:

Raining

C\W
Sum
=)}
HD(‘D
ColdA
Wi
Haw

Snowing

Did you dismantle any dens? *
Yes

No

How many visitors did you engage with? *

How many peaple were spoken ta (full conversation).

Did you dismantle any dens? *
® Yes
No

How many dens did you dismantle? *

How many visitors did you engage with? *
How many peaple were spoken to (full conversation),

How many visitors did you greet? *

E.g., Hello/gacd moming/good afternoon otc.

How many negative behaviours did you witness that weren't addressed? *

This could be due to the visitor being too far aw

y etc, This should be 1 per negative behaviour

1

What and how many negative behaviours were witnessed?

Pleas= pick which negative behaviours were witnessed during the patrol and how many of sach

Doo off lead in area 2

Buckinghamshire Council

35

What and how many negative behaviours were witnessed?

Please pick which negative behaviours were witnessed during the patrol and how many of each

Dog off lead in area 2

Dog not under effective control
Cyclist off tarmac roads

Horse rider off tarmac roads
Littering

Dog in cafe exclusion area

Owner not picking up after dog

More than four dogs brought onto
the reserve with one person

Foraging

Den building

Fouling left (bagged or not)

BBQ debris

Fire debris

Quad bikes/cther vehicles on site
Drones

Non-authorised filming

Climbing ancient trees

Additional comments about the patrol




Appendix E — Burnham Beeches patrol engagement using Survey123.

Note: when some topics of conversation are chosen, e.g., PSPOs, another question will appear asking whether the visitor was aware of the rules before the

conversation.

10:27 Thu 11 Apr

X Burnham Beeches Patrol Engagement

Name of individual filling in this form *

Jordan.Payne Col.

Location of interacticn
O

Date and time of interaction *

=}

How many peocple did you interact with? *

E.q., Was there ane persan in the group or five?

| | | |
B
What was mmain topic of conversation? *

Select one. (Q

Genermfor'mamon about BB/SC e.g., history of site, management etc.
Wildlif

PSPO d

\nforrqg about the dogs on lead areas

Information about the dogs off lead areas

Daog fouling

Information about dogs under effective control

Informatian about maximum number of dogs per person
Specific directions around BB/SC

Soil erosion & trampling

Information about other green spaces in the surrounding areas
Infarmation about CERs e.g., what is being surveyed

Litter

Livestock

Information Point

Cyeling

Buckinghamshire Council

10:27 Thu11 Apr

Burnham Beeches Patrol Engagement

Cyeling

Events

Horse riding

Cafe

General chat - about weather, walkers' dog, ete.

Other

Please tick if there was any other topic(s) of conversation had during the interaction.

Select multiple if necessary,

General information about BB/SC e.g., histary of site, management ete.
Wildlife

PSPO issued

Infarmation about the dogs on lead areas

Information about the dogs off lead areas

Dog fouling

Information about dogs under effective control

Information about maximum number of dogs per person
Specific directions around BB/SC

Soil erosion & trampling

Information about other green spaces in the surrounding areas
Information about CERs e.g., what is being surveyed

Litter

Livestock

Information Point

Cycling

Events

Horse riding

Cafe

General chat - about weather, walkers' dog, etc

Other

10:28 Thu 11 Apr

X Burnham Beeches Patrol Engagement

Did you give any leaflets to the visitor(s)? *
® Yes

No

How many leaflets did you give the visitor(s)? *

Which leaflets did you give to the visitor(s)? *
BB Map
Walking your dog at BB
Events Guide
Historical Trail
Geological Trail
Cycling / Horse riding
Wood Pasture
Pollards
Heathland
Fungi
Dead / Decaying wood
Vision
Grazing
Dog fact sheet

Other

Has the visitor(s) been spoken to by a ranger before? *

Yes - already once today
Yes - on another day
No

Don't know

Was the visitor aware of the wildlife value of BB/SC? *

Yes

36



10:28 Thu 11 Apr

X Burnham Beeches Patrol Engagement

Dog fact sheet

Other

Has the visitor(s) been spoken to by a ranger before? *

Yes - already once today
Yes - on another day
No

Don't know

Was the visitor aware of the wildlife value of BB/SC? *

Yes
No

Don't know

Was the visitor(s) receptive to the key message? *

Yes
No
Don't know

No key message mentioned

abed

How was the interaction with the visitor(s)? *

Positive

GOT1

Neutral

Negative

Did the visitor state any positive remarks?

l.e. about the management of the reserve, if we have been nice etc

Is there anything else important about the interaction not captured in other questions?

Buckinghamshire Council

37



Appendix F - Map of Burnham Beeches showing both dog transect areas. Route 1 covers those areas where dogs are required to be on lead. Route 2 covers those
areas where dogs are required to be on lead if requested but must always be under effective control.

‘]l Route1 ___ ——
N\ Start §

Buckinghamshire Council
38



Appendix G — Map of ‘Flag The Poo’ areas at Burnham Beeches highlighted in yellow.

+ Ymio

D The Pound
© Crown copyright and database rights /] (Scheduled Ancient Monument]
2014 Ordnance Survey 1000023243 /

Buckinghamshire Council

39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108



BURNHAM BEECHES

PROGRESS UPDATE REPORT

s SECTION 106 PLANNING OBLIGATIONS
YEAR 2 (APRIL 2023 - APRIL 2024

) 7o )
\/ www.slough.gov.uk
CITY Page 109 SI
LONDON oug

Borough Council




Contents
1 Introduction to Burnham Beeches ............ ... 3
2 Slough Heat and Power Development 106 ..........ccciuiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieceeeeeeeanns 4
2.1 PrOJECT OVEIVIEW et e e e e eens 4
2.2 BUAG T e 4
2.3 Project oUtiNE ONA PrOGIESS . .niniieeee e e e ae s 5
3 Horlicks Quarter Mitigation Strategy .......ccouiuieiiiiiiiiiiiicrrccr e 6
3.1 PrOJECT OVEIVIEW et 6
B 2 BUA G T e 6
3.3 Project oUtiNe ONA PrOGIESS . .ininiiie e e e a e 7
3.3 PATTOIS et e 7
3.3.2 MONITOIING ottt 9
3.3.3 Practical mitigation ... 12
3.3.4 Message and resource development ... 15
3.3.5 Events aNd ACHVITIES ..ininieii e 20
3.4 WOrk OUTSIAE the TESEIVE ... it 21
3.4.1 Fieldwork and ligison around SIOUGN ........coiiiiiiii e 21
3.4.2 Events aNd ACHVITIES cvnininiiii e 22
3.4.3 SChoOIs ANA YOUT GrOUPS ...viiiniiiiiietee e e e 23
3.5 Links with other similar ProjeCts ..., 24
3.6 Training aNd deVelopPmMENT ... 24
3.7 VIS O SUNVBYS et e 24
3.8 Monitoring visitor impacts on soils and the ecology of the SAC ........................ 25
A PrioriHies fOr 2024725 .......nnonneiiiiiiiiiiiiieie et tiettetsetseesetseesetsessensessessessensensensens 26
4.1 Work in and for BUrnham BEECNES ........iuiiiiiiiii i 26
7 I 1Y Yo 01} {1 ] o T P 26
4.2 Work in and fOr SIOUQN ....ee e 27
L o] o= 4 Lo [ Tod =X 3PN 28

Pag)gej_s]g@:io’re Report: Section 106 Planning Obligations
Reporting Period: Year 2 (April 2023 — April 2024)



1 Infroduction to Burnham Beeches

In 2005, Burnham Beeches, a primarily wooded area
in southern Buckinghamshire, was designated as a
Special Area of Conservation (SAC). Burnham
Beeches was designated as a SAC to protect the
‘beech forest on acid soil" habitat, and the mosses,
lichens, insects and other invertebrates found on
and within its ancient trees which are of European
importance. All SACs are protected under the
Conservation of Habitats and Species regulations
(2017), providing these areas the highest degree of
protection available in law.

Image 1. Burnham Beeches, Special Area of
Conservation, National Nature Reserve and

The northern part of the SAC is private woodland, Site of Special Scientific Interest.

only accessible by public footpaths and a small

number of permissive paths. The southern part, Burnham Beeches National Nature Reserve
(NNR), is a Public Open Space owned and managed by the City of London Corporation as a
charity. There are multiple habitats within the nature reserve, including wood pasture,
heathland, grassiand, mire and valley mire, ponds and streams.

To protect the nature reserve, Burnham Beeches NNR is managed through a series of 10-year
management plans, drawn up with and consented by Natural England. The current Burnham
Beeches management plan runs from 2020 to 2030.

Although only 220 ha (approximately one square mile), the nature reserve receives
approximately 600,000 visits each year, with an estimated 35-40% of those visits bringing at
least one dog. The nature reserve is extremely vulnerable to damage from overuse as well as
from external stresses such as drought, fire or pollution.

Evidence from Footprint Ecology (Report: Urban Development and Burnham Beeches SAC)
acknowledged that additional visitors to Burnham Beeches NNR, generated through
additional local housing development, will harm the integrity of the SAC. To alleviate the
projected impact, no new dwellings are permitted within 500 m of the boundary of the SAC.
All new developments in the former South Bucks District Council area within a 5.6 km ‘zone of
influence’ (see Appendix A for map) of the SAC are required to make a financial contribution
to Buckinghamshire Council which is tfransferred to the City of London Corporation to be spent
on mitigation to protect the nature reserve from additional damage by visitors.

Slough Borough Council does not have a local plan nor a separate mitigation strategy and
therefore mitigation for the impact of additional visitors to Burnham Beeches as a result of
housing development within the borough has been on a case by case basis and tied to
individual developments.

A Section 106 (s106) agreement, also known as Planning Obligations, is a legal agreement that
ensures a local community (in this instance Burnham Beeches SAC) is unaffected by any
developmental prospects. To date there are two s106 agreements linked to particular
developments at Slough Power Station and the Horlicks Quarter. Both have provided funding
for two separate projects (detailed below) seeking to limit possible negative impacts of those
developments on Burnham Beeches SAC.

Page 111


https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/Green-Spaces/burnham-beeches-2020-to-2030-management-plan.pdf
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/Green-Spaces/burnham-beeches-2020-to-2030-management-plan.pdf
https://www.footprint-ecology.co.uk/reports/Liley%20et%20al%202012%20-%20Burnham%20Beeches%20and%20Urban%20Development.pdf

2 Slough Heat and Power Development 106

2.1 Air quality monitoring project overview

Burnham Beeches National Nature Reserve received £10,791.31 from Scottish and Southern
Electricity through a section 106 agreement with Slough Borough Council. This was as a result
of extensive upgrading and modernisation work occurring at the Power Station on Slough
Trading Estate. The sum of money received was to be spent on air quality in relation to
Burnham Beeches. Discussions were had with Natural England and the Centre for Ecology and
Hydrology (CEH), as well as Slough Borough Council in order to decide how to spend this
funding to the best effect.

Each SAC has a site improvement plan listing features that might threaten the integrity of the
nature reserve. Where there are some concerns over nifrogen deposition (as with Burnham
Beeches), Natural England recommend that a Shared Nitrogen Action Plan (SNAP) is
produced. Currently plans for SNAPS at several SACs are in progress but none have been
completed. Following guidance from Natural England it was decided to use the s106 funding
to start the first steps towards producing a SNAP. Previous measurements of nitrogen levels are
rather out of date so in order to start this process, more measurements were desirable.
Therefore, it was agreed that the best use of the funding would be to monitor ammonia and
nifrogen dioxide at as many sites as possible within the budget for a year, and then collate the
available information and to produce an up to date report regarding levels of nitrogen in and
around the SAC. Opportunity was taken to add some Burnham Beeches local risk funding to
slightly expand the project (see below).

2.2 Budget - 2022/24

Description Cost

1 year of ammonia monitoring on four sites £7470

1 year of nifrogen dioxide monitoring for four sites £2419.59
Administration and production of final report by CEH £6,077.71
Total £15,973.30
Breakdown of funding Total
Funding from Slough S106 (including inflation) £10,791.31
Contribution from Burnham Beeches local risk budget £5181.99

Page 112



2.3 Project outline and progress

Monitoring started in June 2022 and continued until
the end of May 2023 when CEH analysed the data
and produced a report. This also incorporated other
available information.

Four monitoring points for ammonia were set up
and four monitoring points for nitrogen dioxide (as
shown in image 2). In addition, Burnham Beeches
has one location in the National Ammonia
Monitoring Network, so this provided additional

information. Some of the ammonia and nitrogen ‘ o
dioxide samplers are co-located, and others are Image 2. Map showing the locations of
separated out. Locations included areas where the monitoring points across the SAC.

previous information indicates that there may be

concern over nitrogen levels; others were placed in areas where levels might be expected to
be lower. As the SNAP will cover the whole SAC, some of the monitoring sites are located on
land owned by the Portman Estate, with their permission.

As an additional part of the project, Burnham Beeches has taken the opportunity to place
monitoring points in the area where there are the best populations of rare lichens (lichens are
known to be very sensitive to air quality). There was an ammonia and
nifrogen dioxide monitoring point at about head height, which is the
level at which most of the rare lichens have been found, and
another situated high up in the canopy of trees to see how the
nitrogen levels differ, and if the trees are filtering out some of the
pollutants.

In order to maximise the amount of data available, and to include
the monitoring points in relation to lichens, we were able to add
some local risk funding to the budget in 2022/23. Because the costs
of each air quality sampler decrease with the number of samples
taken, it was considered worthwhile to add some extra monitoring
points if possible.

Lichens can also be used to evaluate levels of nitrogen at a much

coarser level, using an observational method looking at species Image 3. Ammonia and
found on the trunks of frees and their twigs. The Burnham Beeches nitrogen dioxide being
Ecovolunteer group and some staff have received fraining from monitored at a single point.

Plantlife and it is this method is being used to look at the lichens
across Burnham Beeches, focusing especially on areas where the air quality samplers are
located. This is something that could be repeated in future years.

The final report found that the levels of nitrogen dioxide and ammonia are generally lower
than anficipated. When evaluating the levels of nitrogen by looking at species of lichen, this
indicated that the air quality is more heavily polluted. The difference in these results could be
due to alegacy effect. A webinar was held to discuss the results of the air quality levels and
lichens, and now there are discussions ongoing with Natural England on what the next steps
are as it is likely a SNAP is not as high of a priority as previously thought.

Page 113



3 Horlicks Quarter Mitigation Strategy

3.1 Project overview

With no local plan, nor formally agreed mitigation strategy for Burnham Beeches regarding
development within the Slough Borough Council area, the potential impact of each planning
application is considered separately. In 2020 a large development on the former Horlicks
factory by Berkeley Homes was approved following agreement to fund a community
engagement Ranger to mitigate the impact from residents visiting Burnham Beeches. The aim
of this post is to help residents engage with their local public open spaces and educate visitors
to Burnham Beeches about negative impacts of recreation. An additional obligation was for
the developer to provide an information pack for residents giving information about public
open space in the Slough area.

Payment was not required from the developer until the initial residents began to occupy the
new dwellings and City of London Corporation received this from Slough Borough Council in
July 2022.

The SAMMs Community Engagement Ranger (CER) was appointed in January 2023. The
Community Engagement Ranger will be responsible for delivering multiple projects. The
objectives of this post are:

1. To raise awareness of visitor impacts/impacts of recreation activities on wildlife.

2. To help enforce Public Spaces Protection Orders and promote responsible dog
ownership.

3. To manage additional impacts from local development (Horlicks Quarter) by providing
information to residents on other green spaces in Slough to visit.

4. To engage with volunteers to help raise awareness of visitor impacts and promote
volunteering opportunities at Burnham Beeches.

It is worth noting that there are two CERs at Burnham Beeches. The additional CER is funded by
Buckinghamshire Council from payments made by various developments across the former
South Buckinghamshire district. Both Rangers are employed by the City of London Corporation
and are based at the Burnham Beeches office. They work closely together, with the relevant
officer taking responsibility for outreach work in their respective local authority areas. They will
support each other delivering their respective work programmes — each has different skills and
will, as a result, bring more benefits to the delivery of both schemes/agreements than possible
working as a lone CER.

The Buckinghamshire CER left the post at the end of January 24 due to personal reasons. As of
April 1 2024, the vacant Buckinghamshire position was filled by the Slough CER. The vacant
Slough CER position has subsequently been filled and the new CER started in their new position
on April 15 2024. This means that the slough CER post was vacant for just 14 days.

3.2 Budget

The s106 contribution collected must cover expected expenditure for five years of hiring a full-
time ranger and project delivery. The five year agreement, ending in 2028, totals £264,696.91.
This figure is an indexed starting figure from SBC dated April 2022 i.e. original figure of £242,111+

Page 114



6.5% to reflect any passage of time since the agreement was made prior to the appointment
of the post. The 2.5% indexing is included in the figures below from Year 2 onwards.
Recruitment of the full-time ranger post began 09/2022 with employment beginning 16/01/23.
NB: Actual total spend in 12 months of 2023/24 = £47,380.67

Year | Spend Year 1* Breakdown (23/24 + 2.5 months of 22/23) Spend

1* £50,188 CER Salary - 2.5 months 2022/23 £8654.55
2 £51,443 CER Salary - 12 months 2023/24 £46,661.84
3 £52,729 Total salary cost - 14.5 months £55,316.39
4 £54,047 CER recrvitment 2022/23 £437.05

5 £55,399 Other staff costs - £2160.49
Total | £264.696.91 (equipment/phones/training/uniform) 22/23

Other staff costs - £408.78
(equipment/phone/iPad/training/uniform) 23/24

Total CER Year 1* spend - (14.5* months ) £58,322.71

Total project money still available for the remaining 4 | £206,374.20
years

3.3 Project outline and progress

3.3.1 Patrols

Four regular patrol routes have been
established, which are patrolled on different
days and times each week. The schedule
ensures equal coverage of the on-lead and
off-lead areas.

Patrols are either undertaken with the
Buckinghamshire CER or alone; these have
been on foot or by e-bike. When on foot, the
CER also deals with any litter; this not only has
a positive practical impact (studies have
shown that 2+ pieces of litter tends to attract
additional litter) but also offers a talking point
that leads into conversations about other
issues affecting the reserve.

The most common reasons to intervene with

negative behaviour on the reserve relate to Image 4. Map of four patrol routes across
breaches in the Public Spaces Protection Burnham Beeches.

Orders (PSPOs). Appendix B shows the PSPO

Page 115



areas. In these instances, visitors have been given verbal advice about the on and off lead
areas and the fragility of the reserve, and maps/ supporting literature where needed. Where
necessary, the CER has ensured dogs have been put on lead. All incidents are recorded
immediately after the PSPO breach and later recorded on a central log with further action
(formal letter or enforcement action) being authorised by the Head Ranger/Assistant Director,
as required by the Burnham Beeches PSPO enforcement protocol.

Other interventions have related to:

o fires

e visitors approaching or feeding grazing livestock
e fungipicking

e oOff-road cycling

e quad bike incursion

¢ moving deadwood and den-building

Engagement has also included chatting or answering questions about wildlife, reasons for
visiting or responding to particular needs such as giving directions. Where possible, core
messages have been infegrated into these conversations. As the CER's knowledge of the
wider area has grown, it has also been possible to suggest other places visitors might enjoy
visiting.

Over 99% of engagement has been positive, even when enforcing PSPOs.

Patrol engagement April 2023 to April 2024

e 296 hours and 25 minutes of patrol from 01/04/2023 to 09/01/2024 (manual/handwritten
surveys).

e 66 hours and 27 minutes of patrol from 10/01/2024 to 31/03/2024 (surveying using
Survey123).

e Total of 362 hours and 52 minutes of patrol from 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024.

e An average of 30 hours of patrol per month.

PSPO enforcement April 2023 to April CERs have enforced 42.75% of the total number of
2024 PSPOs enforced by the whole Ranger tfeam in
2023/24.

No. intferventions by CERs | 236

No. intferventions by all 552
team members

Page 116



3.3.2 Monitoring

Patrol engagement

Version 3 of patrol monitoring includes the following:

Observations for

01/04/23 -
09/01/24
Number of visitors (the number of people seen at Burnham Beeches, 8288
including from a distance where there is no opportunity for engagement).
Number of dogs (the number of dogs seen at Burnham Beeches). 2173
Visitors exhibiting positive behaviour (for example, a dog is on-lead in the 8041
on-lead areaq).
Visitors exhibiting negative behaviour (for example, a visitor walking off the | 281
path).
Positive engagement with visitors. 2704
Negative engagement with visitors (for example, a conversation where the | 6

visitor disagrees with the Public Spaces Protection Orders).

The routes, frequency and monitoring of patrols has been evolving over the first year.
Information from meetings with other SAMMS in 23/24 and data from existing transects has
helped to inform the final procedures. Data in the key areas (as above) has been gathered on
an ongoing basis, however from the 10" of January 2024, a new patrol monitoring system has
been used (Appendix C). This new way of monitoring using Survey123 (an ArcGIS application)
does not include the number of visitors or dogs seen, but records more information about the
types of engagement, problems observed and mitigation. This method of monitoring also
enables the CERs to monitor patrols in wet weather conditions and no exira time is needed to
upload the data to a spreadsheet after the patrol. The CERs now use two surveys whilst on

paftrol:

¢ One that is monitoring the whole patrol which includes information such as date, time,
weather conditions, location, number of visitors greeted, number of dens dismantled,
and the number of negative behaviours witnessed (such as dog fouls not picked up).

e The second survey is more focussed on engagement when on patrol and records
information about conversations with visitors (Appendix D). This survey records
information such as the number of visitors interacted with, location, the main topic of
conversation, whether the visitor was aware of a particular issue such as soil erosion,
whether the visitor was aware of rules in place, and if the visitor was aware of the

wildlife value of Burnham Beeches.

Page 117




10

Patrol monitoring using Survey123: Observations for
10/01/24 -
31/03/24

Number of visitors greeted (hello, good morning) 630

Number of visitors engaged with (full conversations had with visitors) 287

Number of negative behaviours withessed (dog fouling not picked 81

up, foraging)

It is clear from this first year of monitoring that the issues affecting the National Nature Reserve
are only occasionally those of overtly negative behaviour such as graffiti, littering or aggressive
dogs. Although there is an on-going issue with dogs being off- lead in the on-lead areaq, or
being far from the paths, or not under effective control in the off-lead area, these represent a
relatively small proportion of the dogs walked on the reserve. Damage seems to result largely
from the volume of footfall in relation to the fragility of the Beeches and conversations indicate
lack of visitor awareness and/or interest about the value of the reserve or consequences of
overuse (47% of visitors spoken to since 10/01/24 were aware of the wildlife value of Burnham
Beeches). Fewer than 1% of the visitors seen were walking through undisturbed vegetation with
the majority being on some kind of existing trail. The main topic of conversation had with
visitors was a general chat (33% of engagements since 10/01/24) which could be about the
walker's dog, the weather or a catch up. The next most common topic of conversation was
regarding PSPOs, whether that was discussing the rules or enforcing the rules (16% of
engagements since 10/01/24).

The new monitoring technique will enable the CERs to adapt messaging and create materials
specific to topics that visitors are unsure about, providing a more targeted approach to
mitigation.

Other monitoring

Two ‘dog transects’ are carried out each month. These follow two set

routes around the reserve (Appendix E), and count the number, gender

mix and approximate age of visitors in each section of the route, the

. number of dogs and whether these dogs are on or off-lead. Data from
24 transects conducted by the CERs in 2023/24 adds to records dating

# back to 2015 and is used to inform the three-yearly review of Public

# Space Protection Orders. It will now also be used to also help assess the

impact of the CER presence.

bl Three new ‘flag the poo’ transects (counting the number of dog faeces
Tt s left and placing flags next to them to raise awareness) have been

Image 5: ‘Flag the Poo’sign ~ €stablished af Burnham Beeches: the first and second are along

board at the main entrance the two footpaths at the main entrance; the third is a stretch of

to Burnham Beeches. The path leading intfo Egypt Wood (Appendix F). The data from these

board includes information  fransects, conducted quarterly, will add to the data collected

about dogs and their fouls.  from the two transects at Stoke Common and the two existing

Page 118



long-term dog poo transects which have shown a significant reduction in fouling in both the
on-lead and off-lead areas.

In area 2 at Stoke Flag The Poo at Stoke Common
Common, the number of i

fouls being flagged has 40

decreased, however the 35 \/
number of fouls being
flagged in area 1 has
remained high since July
2023. This could be due
to area 1 being the most
common enfrance used
by visitors at Stoke
Common. Further
messaging needs to be ——Ared ] mfrea 2
created to help stop dog

fouls being left.

Number of dog fouls flagg ed
Y

24/04/2023 o/7/2023 14/10/2023 12/1/2024

The number of dog fouls
flagged at Burnham
Beeches has decreased
since the start of Flag The
Poo in May 2023.

Flag The Poo at Burnham Beeches

[
B n

[y
[ X]

Whilst conducting Flag
The Poo at Burnham
Beeches and Stoke

Common, many visitors : \
approach the CERs to .

[y

Number of dog fouls flagg ed

ask questions about the U 14/05/2023 10/5/2023 3/11/2023 10/2/2024
flags and primarily how Dste

awful it is to see so many —freal ——Area2 Area 3

flags.

Page 119



12

3.3.3 Practical mitigation

Trampling and erosion

One of the main issues affecting the reserve is the number of
desire lines (tracks created by visitors walking the line that
seems natural to them) that were created or widened over
Covid lockdowns, when an estimated additional 250,000 visits
were made to the Beeches. Many are continuing to widen as
paths become muddy. As a result, vegetation and soil
damage is occurring across the maijority of the reserve.

Action included: Image é: This stretch of dead hedge
protects an area of woodland
e Creating 5 dead hedges across the entry points to damaged by visitors cutting
block desire lines off surfaced paths and protect through from one surfaced track to

vulnerable areas. T
e Identifying further areas for the Burnham 1. JP | S - ﬁ ’
Beeches volunteers to dead-hedge to reduce W e NG

path edge erosion. ' :

e Creating informal path blocks using fallen or cut
material

e Roping off particularly vulnerable areas for the
winter months.

e Supporting practical action with signage and

ial media to explain why action is n . o N
social media fo expla y action'is needed Image 7: Winter ground conditions

e Improvement of path sections so all main exacerbate the impact of footfall, hence
paths are clearly marked and accessible. some areas are closed.

Recommendations

e Confinue to carry out practical work as in 23/24
as opportunities arise, working alone and with
volunteers;

e Work with the other staff and visitor data to
draw up a map of which paths should be
retained and prioritise closures and measures to
encourage visitors to use particular paths, and
use this to plan future practical work;

Image 8: Blocking a desire line, helped by
staff and students from Berkshire College

e Investigate ways to waymark desired routes;

e Infegrate actions with the new monitoring of Agriculture.
proposals;

e Link with any frail information produced by the information team.

Page 120



Damage to decaying wood

Much of the ecological value of Burnham Beeches relates to
the animals, plants, fungi and lichens that depend on decaying
wood for part or all of their life cycles. The scarcity, diversity and
number of these species was a factor in the designation of
Burnham Beeches as a Special Area of Conservation, and the
subsequent need for the SAMMS. It is therefore critical that there
is mitigation action to protect the volume and quality of this
habitat.

Dead and decaying wood is found in the ancient frees, in
standing and fallen or felled dead trees, in habitat piles built of
cut wood and in the fallen branches that have been left where
they fell.

. . . L Image 9. Decaying wood
Damage to this habitat and the associated wildlife is caused provides shelter and food for

mainly by visitors climbing on or in the ancient trees or by rare and endangered species.
visitors moving sticks and logs, primarily to build dens.

Protecting ancient trees

The Beeches tree management programme already includes
measures to deter visitors from getting too close to the ancient
trees. These include creating barriers around vulnerable trees
from cut material, or re-routing paths. The CER input has been
primarily information-based.

In January 2024, however, the CERs created a solution to a
particularly vulnerable tree; this was adjacent to a busy path
and showing accelerated disintegration from the number of
people standing in or on it for a ‘selfie’. This temporary barrier
will be replaced by a palisade fence, and may be used for
other trees at high-risk.

Image 10. Protecting the ‘Fairy
Tree’.

Dens

Den building is seen as a fun, harmless activity, and is
indeed promoted as a way to encourage families to
enjoy being outdoors. It is, however, not appropriate at
Burnham Beeches. Although the wood may appear to
be undamaged, movement changes light and
moisture conditions needed by the animals, plants,
fungi and lichens that had colonised the wood in its
original location.

Image 11. A dismantled den. Each den uses a large number
of logs and sticks and causes severe localised habitat
disruption.

Page 121



14

It is therefore vital that action is taken to protect particularly vulnerable trees and that dens
are spotted and dealt with promptly to raise awareness that this activity is not permitted.

Image 12. Some dens use fresh Image 13 and 14. The sticks used in this den were used fo block a
materials too. Many attract desire line. Friendly signage explains the importance of this habitat
litter. and asks visitors to leave it in place.

All the dens found have been dismantled and the wood either scattered around the
surrounding habitat or built info a habitat pile. Where visitors have been seen building a den,
the CER Ranger has explained the value of the wood and nature reserve to both the adults
and the children, and encouraged them to help dismantle the den carefully and to fry to
replace the wood where they found it.

Prior to the creation and use of Survey123, the number of dens dismantled this year was not
recorded formally, although it is estimated to be in the region of 25+, with 5 direct interventions
with families. Since January with the use of Survey123, 13 dens have been dismantled and
recorded, along with images and the locations of each den.

Recommendations

e To continue to dismantle dens and engage with public, as required.
e To work with the Ranger team to ensure a consistent approach.

e Tolog locations and take pictures of dens, and a) target information and b) work with
the Conservation Officer to agree removal of decaying materials to less accessible
areas of the reserve.

Page 122



3.3.4 Message and resource development

In 22/23 the following key points were identified for on-site information/interpretation and
integration info one-one conversations with visitors.

Core message

Simple supplementary information to increase understanding
that Burnham Beeches is a National Nature Reserve

The number of visitors
here is damaging the
nature reserve

Burnham Beeches is one of the most important places for wildlife
in Europe.

Stay on the main paths

The number of visitors is causing damage to soil structure:
erosion and compaction is affecting the nature reserve.

Pick up after your dog

Nutrients impact on the nature reserve.

This is part of the
nature reserve where
dogs need to be on a
lead at all times

The nature reserve is heavily used; the on-lead area is a ‘safe
space’ not just for wildlife but for our many visitors who may not
like dogs.

Always keep your dog
in sight

Information about the variety of wildlife on the nature reserve
that may be disturbed; impacts of fouling out sight.

In 23/24, the additional key points were added.

Core message

Simple supplementary information to increase understanding
that Burnham Beeches is a National Nature Reserve

We understand you
love being here and
don’t mean any harm.

This is one of the most important places in Europe for certain
species and habitat. It is only one square mile, very popular, and
the number of visitors puts it in danger of being loved to death.

Keep your dog
alongside.

A dog doesn’t have to chase wildlife to disturb it. Every time an
animal is disturbed, it stops it from resting, feeding or breeding.

This includes small birds, mammals and invertebrates you don't
see.

Do not climb in or on
the ancient trees.

There are things living in and around decaying wood that
depend on it for all or part of their life cycle. Many are rare or
endangered. The mix of species suggest these woods have
been here since the Ice Age. They are only here because the
habitat is so old. This is the 3@ most important place in the UK for
saproxylic species.

Leave logs and sticks
on the ground. No
den-building.

As above. Plus, once wood has been moved, the light and
moisture conditions are not those needed by the things living
there. It can never be put back in exactly the right place.

Page 123

15



16

Do not approach or These are working animals, not pets. They are helping the
feed the cows or reserve become better for wildlife using a traditional method.
ponies. They create a better mix of plants for wildlife than mowing or

cutting. Plus safety and nutrition information.

No fires or BBQs; no The value of NNR, as above.
litter.

Over the course of the year, the CER has researched the facts and figures underpinning these
statements to be able to construct meaningful ‘arguments’ to underpin information delivery.
Information aims to be as specific as possible so that visitors understand not just what is
required but also why restrictions or changes in behaviour are required and how these will
benefit the nature reserve.

I The maijority of information materials produced this
T pe——— —= year have included the five core behaviours we

Staying on the main paths.

Five easy way. from a distance instead of X o e . .
you cagherin e revroccaecsao o want to encourage, aiming to establish a baseline

Lo o .
protect i€ nafie awareness of appropriate behaviour.

reserve.

; B The focus now is to:
Leaving fallen or stacked Keeping your dog alongside.
;o:dllgsdlllsundnoiu:lwn il disturb wildife jus! by | . .. H
7 | 5 0ocie s a) make it easy for visitors to be aware of what is

i{j s W S | needed and how to comply. Note: this work needs
to be linked with practical measures; at present, for
Image 15: Display ending with the core example, it is not always easy to tell which
behaviours. unsurfaced paths are the main paths.

b) recognise the mismatch between visitor
expectations (a park for recreation) and reality (a highly fragile and important area of
conservation);

c) raise awareness and love of the things that make Burnham Beeches unique.
Note: this work supplements and overlaps with that of the existing information team.

The following approach is used for all resource development, from flyers to guided walks, to
ensure that all action is meaningful.

Whilst some materials are purely informational, others are interpretative, aiming to link the
visitor's experience with the needs of the reserve. All aim to incorporate:

(a) What feature/species/ habitat is being impacted by a particular behaviour;
(b) Why action is needed (usually why a particular feature/species/habitat is important;
(c) What the threat is, e.g. frampling, disturbance, fire;

(d) How visitors can help.

Page 124



17

Displays at the information point

The information point is in the busy café area on the Main Common, and next to the toilet
block. Although small, it has a display case, three notice boards and a leaflet rack. The display
case and largest notice are available to the CERs for seasonal displays. Since the departure of
the Buckinghamshire CER (who was responsible for the displays), the Slough CER has created a
display to raise awareness on the issues of walking off path, cycling and horse riding off the
tarmac roads and entering areas that are blue roped.

Image 16. Information point
case display about the
impacts of walking off path
and why we blue rope areas.

Image 17. Information point
display about the soil erosion
and trampling.

4 WHY ARE
"HEALTHY SOILS |
IMPORTANT? !

Portable materials

In order to display information across the nature
reserve in different areas and target a wider
audience, a portable table was purchased. However,
the table was difficult fo carry on foot or by bike
across the reserve. Therefore, a cargo bike was
designed and purchased to solve this problem and
help transport materials and displays to different parts
of Burnham Beeches. The CERs aim to use the cargo
bike regularly, especially during seasonal
engagement weeks. The bike also enables the CERs
to target specific problem areas and places where
there is higher visitor pressure. The design shows
visitors the various habitats within Burnham Beeches
and highlights key aspects of the reserve such as the
ancient pollards, decaying wood and fungi.

Image 18. Cargo bike.

It was agreed that the most important areas to target
through interpretative and information materials were
the ancient frees and decaying wood. Although they
are a highly visible part of the reserve, conversations
with visitors suggest that understanding of their
importance is minimal. The Buckinghamshire CER
created a display to explore how the previous Image 19. Ancient free display.
community use of Burnham Beeches created the

Page 125



ancient pollards. It details the value and variety of
wildlife that depends on the old trees and the
associated decaying wood.

Throughout the year, the CER has created multiple
displays to highlight the wildlife at Burnham Beeches
and the ways in which visitors can help us to protect
the reserve. For autumn and winter engagement
activities, a fungi display was created to explain
what fungiis, the features of fungi, and the types of
fungi that can be found at Burnham Beeches. The
display also stated that fungiis not allowed to be
picked at Burnham Beeches or Stoke Common.

The CER created a display about birds that can be
found at Burnham Beeches and things visitors can do
at home to help birds. This came about due to bird
houses and bird food being left in Burnham Beeches
and messages on the display

Image 21. A ‘Building for birds’ display at a Meet the
Ranger event at Burnham Beeches.

A display on disturbance was created in time for
spring engagement week 2024. The display included
information about what can be disturbed at
Burnham Beeches, why we have rules such as ‘no
drones’ at Burnham Beeches and how visitors can
help reduce disturbance at the reserve.

Image 22. A disturbance display created for spring
engagement week 2024.

Recommendations

18

cinati

Image 20. A fungi display created by the
Slough CER, also used for autumn/winter

engagement to expand wildlife
messaging.

b
' L RERA
»_
ﬁ
==

e Development of displays and materials highlighting seasonal issues for use on pop up
patrols, such as information on responsible dog walking, disturbance of ground nesting

birds and reptiles.

Page 126



19

Other materials

Temporary signs were created to target issues on
the ground. Seasonal signs included grazing, fire
and bird feeding while others supported
practical mitigation work.

41\ The Habitat pile
(and other decaying wood),

\}&"ﬁ“ Burnham Beeches

3 P National Nature Resetve,
Attt 2
\\d .7 The €arth

Deac visitar,

we are Sorcy the Rangers have taken your den down,
— et T Lut the fallen branches you have been using are cur homes.
‘Dead hedges’ help Every time people move or drag them, it... disturbs us,

i Literally, we need €0 live deep in the decaying wood to be
protect this fragile ¢ safe from predators of ve die, The plants and fungi
nature reserwe. A groving on and in the wood get damaged too.

Image 23. This sign at a dead hedge explains
the benefit of staying on the main path in this
part of the reserve.

one of the reasons Burnham Beeches is 3 nature
reserve is beeause of the things that live on and around
the decaying vood, Some of Us are rare of endangered
species. Even us cofmmon fminibeasts ate still important
pats of the food chain - we have vhole famities of birds
and mammals vhe depend on us.

So please, [eave the sticks on the ground, and don't
build any more dens at the National Nature Resetve,

Image 24. An A5 child-friendly laminated sign
has been left where dens have been frequently
built. All bar one of these has remained in place
without dens being rebuilt.

Yours gratefutly,

N Bucky the dtay Butte

-
M YL
P2 you can use the map on the Unk to fing places
1o 90 where the wildlifz 18 not so heavity protected,

Social media and press work

The Slough CER has taken the lead for social media tfo promote
positive recreational behaviour, highlight issues at Burnham
Beeches and promote alternative destinations. This messaging aims
to target those already visiting Burnham Beeches rather than
attracting new visitors.

Image 25. Post-Christmas message, anticipating
the seasonal rise in occasional visitors who may not
be familiar with restrictions on the reserve.

Over the past year Burnham Beeches’ social media has
transformed from only information about the reserve to posts that
are specific to mitigation aims (see image 25). The main aim of social media is to educate
followers on how important Burnham Beeches is and how they can help protect the reserve.
All social media platforms are monitored and information such as engagements, reach and
impressions are recorded on a weekly basis. This enables the CERs to understand which types
of post are performing particularly well in comparison to others. Facebook is used more
frequently and all information is posted on Facebook (e.g., events as well as mitigation
messages) in order to reach a more local audience and to prevent attracting visitors from
further afield.

01/04/23 - 31/03/24

New Followers

Total Impressions

Total Engagements

X (Twitter) 37 53,363 1,388
Facebook 124 141,620 10,489
Instagram (Starting 06/23) | 44 8,594 1,185

Page 127



20

3.3.5 Events and activities

All events, walks and engagement weeks have a common aim of raising visitors’ awareness on
the importance of Burnham Beeches, educating visitors on how to visit Burnham Beeches
respectfully to reduce disturbance (for example, sticking 10 the e 2

main paths or not building dens), and promoting other %
locations for visitors to explore. It is worth noting that the aim of
these walks, events and engagement weeks is not to speak to
as many people as possible or bring in more people to the
reserve, but to instead talk to those who are already visiting
and use Burnham Beeches on a regular basis.

e Summer engagement week 2023 was the first

engagement week conducted by the CERs. The aim Image 26. Crafting Creatures
of this week was to trial a range of low preparation event during the summer
activities and to assess the effectiveness of various engagement week 2023.

pop-up locations. Activities during the week included

a bug hunt, nature art using homemade clay and a space to take time in noticing
nature which involved inviting visitors into a quiet area to sit down and listen to the
natural sounds around them. Over the week, 216 engagements were made.

¢ Autumn engagement week 2023 focussed on highlighting the importance of ancient
trees, decaying wood and fungi. This week tied in with National Tree Week and
included multiple pop-ups with displays.

e Spring engagement week 2024 had a theme of disturbance to make visitors aware of
the species (reptiles, ground nesting birds) coming out of hibernation or breeding, and
the importance of keeping to the paths, especially at this time. The week brought
together the whole Ranger team for various pop-ups with a display and for patrols. 88
people were engaged with over the week.

e The CER has recently started monthly dog walks for local visitors at the nature reserve.
These ‘Waggy Walks’ started in January and aim to help dog walkers know which
areas are on- or off-lead and understand why we have PSPOs relating to dog walking
in place. The first walk was a great success with

¢ The CER has also been supporting the Buckinghamshire CER with activities and walks
on the reserve such as for a bug hunt with a local infant school, a visit from a local
junior school who explored the history of Burnham Beeches during World War ll, and
multiple visits from Beaver and Scout groups.

Recommendations

e Continue and consolidate activities and events that continue to educate visitors to the
nature reserve.

¢ Move more walk and talks onto surrounding areas.

o Use weekends for pop up patrolling at various locations at Burnham Beeches using the
cargo bike.

e Offer frequent or repeat youth and school group visits and offer support at a green
space closer to them.

Page 128



21

3.4 Work outside the reserve

The aim of CER work in the wider community is to reduce pressure on the National Nature
Reserve by encouraging residents within the 5.6k zone of influence to make greater use of their
local green spaces and rights of way.

It should be noted that CER focus on outreach differs between Buckinghamshire and Slough.
Although each Ranger takes responsibility for initiatives within their respective local authority,
they support each other on the presumption that residents of each development will benefit
from green space use in both Buckinghamshire and Slough.

Within Slough, the 106 payment is exclusively from the development of the Horlicks Quarter;
the Borough Council is investing in its existing green spaces to meet the needs of new
residents. The Slough CER is targeting residents through work with the Quarter’'s concierge
service, which provides a range of activities for residents, and through work with The Slough
Hub.

3.4.1 Fieldwork and liaison around Slough

The CER has remained in contact with the Slough Parks team to discuss volunteering
opportunities in Slough, ways in which the CER can help them and also the progress of Upton
Court Park as a Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG). The CER also reached out to
all three Slough Parish Councils (Britwell Parish Council, Wexham Parish

Council and Colnbrook with Poyle Parish Council). Further contact GET

which involved an in-person meeting occurred only with Wexham INVOLVE
Parish Council. The CER met with the Clerk fo discuss opportunities for ~ ;  voneers
residents of Slough to join various walks and activities in and around g
their local greenspaces. The Clerk agreed to help promote any such
activities on the ‘Slough Borough Council’ social media platforms. ,
Much of the CERs work in Slough has been coordinated alongside The |
Slough Hub who are a not for profit social enterprise that aims to
enhance the mental, physical and economic well-being of Slough
residents. The Slough Hub work closely with part of the Horlicks Quarter
due to being funded by Sovereign Housing Association who offer
shared ownership in some of the properties at the Horlicks Quarter.

wvith Slough Parks
ni

ining

Image 27. A leaflet

After extensive research in the first year of the project, the CER has created by the CER to
familiarised themselves with the majority of the greenspaces in promote volunteering at
Slough. The CER has planned three walking routes through various Slough'’s greenspaces.

greenspaces in Slough and has produced leaflets to showcase

these walks. The CER visited 27 greenspaces in Slough and took photographs of each to be
included in the digital welcome pack that has been produced for Horlicks residents. The digital
welcome pack is a guide on the abundance of greenspaces on the doorsteps of the residents
and provides a brief description of each greenspace including whether there is parking or
toilets and it also states how long it would take the residents to get to each greenspace,
whether that's by cycling, walking or using public fransport such as the bus or train.

Page 129


https://corpoflondon.sharepoint.com/sites/TheCommons/Shared%20Documents/Burnham%20Beeches/Community%20Engagement%20Rangers/Slough/Horlicks/Horlicks%20residents%20digital%20welcome%20pack.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=Bbyyfa

Step into nature with
' plenty of greenspaces on
: your doorstep!

‘welcome ‘o this exciting new guide on the abundance of

~ greenspaces righ on your deorstep of the Horlicks Quarter, Slough.
Siluated in the hearl of Siough, Ihis vibrant new development is
sumounded by ¢ plethora of green areas that are perfect for
relaxation, recreation, and connecting with nature,

| Using this guide, discover  variely of parks, nature reserves, and
. open spaces thal are ideal for picnics, oulcoor workauls, or simply
unwinding cfter ¢ long day.

L Afew things o bear in mind:

+ Some of these greenspaces are a walkable distance away from
the Horlicks Quarter. Other greensoaces might be betler 1o fravel
to by bike or public transport. All fransport options from the
Horlicks Factory to cach grecnspace will be highlighted in this
guide using the icors below with tmings specified.

* Distences of specific waks are fypical wak lengths, not necessarily
Ihe longest walk possble.

. Key'to this guide:

0 Free car pork £ suraced paths Cyeling dstonce

Image 28 and 29. ‘Step into Nature’ digital welcome pack on
greenspaces in Slough for Horlicks residents.

Recommendations

e Continue working with community groups in Slough to

22

STEP INTO
NATURE

4.36 Kilometre Walking Route

ith Slough Borough Council

z
4
E|
E]
L
E
z
g
3
3
E
3
2
H
-
3
3
£
a

SALTHILE

55:52 436

Duration Distance

(km)

m///\\%\

Image 30. One of the leaflets
promote a walking route through
parks in Slough.

organise various walks, events and activities. Research other groups in Slough that may

conduct similar activities to the CER.

o Keep in contact with Slough Parks to give and receive updates.

e Research and promote other walks around Slough, for example, routes around the

Jubilee River.

3.4.2 Events and activities

It is worth noting that when
attending events away from
Burnham Beeches, the CERs
have separate uniform that
does noft state ‘Burnham
Beeches and Stoke Common’
on them so that members of the
public aren't made aware of
the nature reserves when it is
not necessary.

ey

Image 31. Stoke Poges Fete.

Both CERs aftended the Stoke Poges fete, seeing this as an
opportunity to work with the Friends of Stoke Common to
direct local residents to the nearby heathland (also owned
and managed by the City of London) within easy walking
distance of the village. Care was taken to emphasise the

Site of Special Scientific Interest

Eutopean Special Area of Conservation
WNationol Nature Reserve

2 Burnham Beeches

Image 32. Farnham Common
Orchard Day.

nature value of this reserve and need to protect ground-nesting birds when visiting. 76 people

were spoken with at the stall, including the local MP.

Page 130



23

Farnham Common Orchard Day was a chance to influence those living closest fo Burnham
Beeches, with the display emphasising both the positive and negative impacts of community
use of the Reserve. The CERs spoke to 108 people, most of whom were overwhelmingly positive
about the Beeches and mitigation efforts. The CER also spent time talking about community
issues with other stall holders, including representatives of Farnham Royal Parish Council,
Farnham Common School, the local Guides and Farnham Common Library.

The CER has planned and guided multiple walks for residents at
the Horlicks Quarter alongside The Slough Hub, aiming to
promote the use of Slough parks. From the end of September to &
the beginning of November 2023, four walks were planned
around Slough’s green spaces from the Horlicks Quarter. Due to
bad weather conditions, only two walks went ahead and only 4
people in total attended. The CER has planned six more walks in
spring 2024 where the weather should be better for more
people to attend.

WALK YOUR
WAY TO 10,000
STEPS

Discover the green spaces on your doorstep in Slough while
improving your health with a challenge of 10k steps a day! For
all of the below walks, meet at Aquifer Gardens for 6pm.
Walks will roughly be one hour. We will return back to Aquifer
Gardens around 7pm

DATES:

The CER attended the Horlicks Summer Party and had a
stall/display which promoted various Slough parks, activities to
do in the parks and volunteering opportunities. The CER spoke
to 32 residents.

Berkeley LT Slotgh SOVERE‘IGN>$.,A—

Other community events attended included a health initiative
by the local GP surgery, a library coffee morning, and joining @
‘Tilly's Trotters’ walk (a new Simply Walk group coming to the
Beeches each week).

Image 33. Advertisement for
guided walks in spring 2024.

3.4.3 Schools and youth groups

The CER research all primary and secondary schools in Slough and sent an email to all of the
primary schools to offer nature-based sessions at their school or in a nearby green space. The
first school that responded to the offer was Cippenham School. The CER arranged to attend
the school quarterly and teach the children about seasonal topics. The most recent session
held in March was based around ‘International Day of Forests’ and the children were taught
about what forests are, where they are in the UK and what can be found in UK forests. The CER
then took the children outside in their school grounds to have a go at some bark and leaf
rubbing. The 30 children thoroughly enjoyed their first session and the CER will be going back
to the school during insect week at the end of June to continue these education sessions.

Page 131



24

3.5 Links with other similar projects

Burnham Beeches are just one of many areas affected by visitor
pressures. Efforts have been made over the year to learn from the
experiences of others, and to begin to share our own.

Visits were made to three of the areas contacted in 2023: Thames
Basin Heaths, the South Downs National Park and the Solent Special
Protection Area (Bird Aware Solent). A return visit by members of the
Thames Basin Heath team provided an opportunity to share our own
experience. Although sharing experiences with other SAMMs
projects has been extremely useful, the project at Burnham Beeches
is very different to others. Burnham Beeches is a small nature 7
reserve with a high density of visitors, whereas other SAMMs Image 34. Visit to
projects are working across multiple large areas so visitor numbers ~ Basin Heaths Partnership.
are more spread out. It also became apparent that the presence

of a SANG has helped other projects immensely and reduced pressures to the highly valued
nature sites.

The CERs have joined SCCAMP (the Southern Counties Canine Access Management
Partnership). As a result, the CERs are learning from and sharing experiences of dog control
and ways to educate dog walkers about being responsible and respecting nature.

Recommendations

¢ Maintain links with SCCAMP and other SAMMs projects.

e Aftend annual mitigation conferences.

e Liaise with those in charge of the SAMMs project at Ashridge Estate (National Trust) and
organise visits there and at Burnham Beeches.

e Llidise with those in charge of the SAMMs project at Epping Forest and organise visits
there and at Burnham Beeches.

3.6 Training and development

Training was targeted at opportunities to inform or deliver engagement work. The importance
and diversity of saproxylic species is one of the reasons why Burnham Beeches is such an
important site.

¢ One day course on the importance of dead and decaying wood.
e Causes of tree failure.

3.7 Visitor surveys

A maijor survey will be conducted every ten years to determine the total number of visitors and
visitor use. The last detailed count of visitors to Burnham Beeches was carried out in 2015/16; it
is planned to repeat this every 10 years to calibrate the automatic car counters. The next
survey will be carried out in 2025 and will be led by the Buckinghamshire CER and the Slough
CER will support. The external consultants will guide the work but the practical work will be
carried out by staff, volunteers and/or confractors. One option under consideration is to use a

Page 132



25

confractor to analyse data collected by mobile phones carried by visitors to replace some
aspects of previously used methods. The Slough CER will also be involved in helping with a
detailed visitor count for Upton Court Park, Slough in 2024.

3.8 Monitoring visitor impacts on soils and the ecology of the SAC

A monitoring strategy has been drawn up by Footprint Ecology, working with the Conservation
Officer, Head Ranger and Community Engagement Rangers. It recommends a number of
improvements to some of the existing monitoring and five new monitoring actions. The report
produced is a monitoring strategy for Burnham Beeches and specifically relates to recreation
mitigation work. The report aims to establish a prioritised list of measures and set out further
detail as to how they would work and fit info a long-term monitoring ‘package’.

Existing monitoring

e Incidentlog

e Transects counting dog faeces

e Visitor interviews

e Visitor distribution

e Tree health and condition

e CER Ranger patrol time and engagement

Proposals for new monitoring

The new monitoring actions (see table below) will be undertaken alongside the existing
monitoring listed above. The new monitoring actions will commence in May 2024, starting with
path condition survveys to provide a baseline to work from in following years. Most other
actions, except for the soil sampling, will also be conducted in 2024 and some will be
undertaken with help from volunteers. As this is a Buckinghamshire-funded project, the
Buckinghamshire CER will lead and put together a plan to outline when each action will be
completed, who they will be done by and the deadlines for reporting, and the Slough CER will
be helping to deliver the monitoring.

New monitoring actions:

Monitoring action Done-by 1styear to be | Frequency
undertaken
a. Report and spreadsheet structure | Staff 2024 Annual
b. Path condition survey Staff 2024 Repeated every other
year

c. Follow-up monitoring path Staff 2024 Annual
management/interventions

d. Additional fixed-point photography | Staff 2024 Repeated every other
of paths outside of RAG areas year

e. Soil sampling Staff or volunteers and 2025 Repeated every 5

laboratory years
f. Vegetation wear on common Staff or volunteers 2024 Annual
g. Species monitoring Staff or volunteers 2024 Annual

Page 133


https://corpoflondon.sharepoint.com/sites/TheCommons/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?FolderCTID=0x0120007E98525E9507A64280DBBA0290C4B19E&id=%2Fsites%2FTheCommons%2FShared%20Documents%2FBurnham%20Beeches%2FCommunity%20Engagement%20Rangers%2FFootprint%20Monitoring%2FBurnham%20Beeches%20Mitigation%20Monitoring%20Strategy%20290224%2Epdf&viewid=51742b60%2Db3af%2D445e%2D86fa%2D8c6b643761c2&parent=%2Fsites%2FTheCommons%2FShared%20Documents%2FBurnham%20Beeches%2FCommunity%20Engagement%20Rangers%2FFootprint%20Monitoring
https://corpoflondon.sharepoint.com/sites/TheCommons/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?FolderCTID=0x0120007E98525E9507A64280DBBA0290C4B19E&id=%2Fsites%2FTheCommons%2FShared%20Documents%2FBurnham%20Beeches%2FCommunity%20Engagement%20Rangers%2FFootprint%20Monitoring%2FBurnham%20Beeches%20Mitigation%20Monitoring%20Strategy%20290224%2Epdf&viewid=51742b60%2Db3af%2D445e%2D86fa%2D8c6b643761c2&parent=%2Fsites%2FTheCommons%2FShared%20Documents%2FBurnham%20Beeches%2FCommunity%20Engagement%20Rangers%2FFootprint%20Monitoring

26

4 Priorities for 2024/25

4.1 Work in and for Burnham Beeches

To continue developing and ftrialling core messages and materials tackling the main
issues caused by visitor activities.

To develop and undertake more regular on- and off-reserve activities that deliver
campaign messaging.

To support the above with regular social media posts reflecting the spectrum of
visitor/recreation related pressures affecting Burnham Beeches and creating context for
mitigation measures.

To continue regular patrols, aiming to encourage positive outcomes on the reserve
through regular one-to-one engagement and delivery of core messages. This will
include weekend and out-of-hours patrols.

Continue to carry out practical work as in 23/24 as opportunities arise, working alone
and with volunteers.

Work with the other staff and visitor data to draw up a map of which paths should be
retained and prioritise closures and measures to encourage visitors to use particular
paths, and use this to plan future practical work.

Investigate ways to waymark desired routes.

Integrate practical mitigation actions with the new monitoring proposals.
Link with any trail information produced by the information team.

To continue to dismantle dens and engage with public, as required.

To work with the Ranger team to ensure a consistent approach.

To log locations and take pictures of dens, and a) target information and b) work with
the Conservation Officer to agree removal of decaying materials to less accessible
areas of the reserve.

Development of displays and materials highlighting seasonal issues for use on pop up
patrols, such as information on responsible dog walking, disturbance of ground nesting
birds and reptiles.

Continue and consolidate activities and events that continue to educate visitors to the
nature reserve.

Use weekends for pop up patrolling at various locations at Burnham Beeches using the
cargo bike.

Maintain links with SCCAMP and other SAMMs projects.

Attend annual mitigation conferences.

Liaise with those in charge of the SAMMSs project at Ashridge Estate (National Trust) and
organise visits there and at Burnham Beeches.

Licise with those in charge of the SAMMSs project at Epping Forest and organise visits
there and at Burnham Beeches.

4.1.1 Monitoring

To keep records of and monitor all engagement activities, adjusting work priorities
accordingly.

Page 134



27

To carry out regular visitor monitoring, including car park counts, visitor behaviour
transects, dog transects and ‘flag the poo’ tfransects. This will be used to inform work
programming and help assess the impact of CER action.

To keep accurate records of patrol engagement and outreach using Survey123,
including a qualitative assessment of theirimpact, amending work programming as
required.

Support the production a plan and timeline for necessary monitoring — both existing and
new.

Start all new monitoring actions in 2024, except for the soil sampling which will
commence in 2025.

4.2 Work in and with Slough

To promote Slough Parks and volunteering opportunities in Slough on social media.
To build on existing with partnerships with Slough Parks, Slough Hub and other
organisations to find ways to promote green spaces in Slough to new residents at the
Horlicks Quarter.

To further build a partnership with Berkeley Homes and the Horlicks Quarter through
outreach activities and events.

Research and promote other walks around Slough, for example, routes around the
Jubilee River.

To continue work with Cippenham school and identify other schools and community
groups in Slough that are suitable for activities.

To help Slough Borough Council conduct visitor counts at Upton Court Park.

Page 135



5 Appendices

28

Appendix A — Zones of influence around Burnham Beeches

o 1 2

km N
| I @

LEPUS CONSULTING

INING & URBAN SUSTAINABILITY

18ath Street, Cheitenham, GLSO IYE
- 01242 525 222
www.epusconsulting.com

Burnham Beeches SAC
5.6km Zone of Influence

500m presumption against development

PROJECT:
CLIENT:
DRAWING:
DRAWING No:
DRAWN:
3R, CHECKED:
g SCALE:
iRy ) DATE:

© Crown copyright and database rights (2018) Ordnance Survey 0100052373

LC-584_Chiltern_&_South_Bucks_R22
Chiltern and South Bucks District Councils
Strategic recreation mitigation strategy
Figure 1

ES

NJD

1:70,000

06/02/20

BURNHAM BEECHES SAMMS:

Page 136

progress report to Buckinghamshire Council
(April 2023 - March 2024)



/€T abed

29

Appendix B — Map of Burnham Beeches showing areas covered by either order 2 (dogs on leads), order 3 (dogs on lead by direction), or
order 4 (dogs exclusion area) of the Public Spaces Protection Orders relating to dog walking.

- Order 1: Fouling by dogs
Please make sure you pick up all poo that your dog
= drops, wherever you are in Burnham Beeches. Please

also ensure that you dispose of it properly by using one of the bins
provided or taking it home.

Area covered by order 2
Area covered by order 3

~=eeees Boundary between areas for orders 2 & 3

5 Area covered by order 4

— Site boundary

Orders 1 & 5 apply throughout the site. Order 2: Dogs on leads

If you are in the areas marked 2 on the map you must
keep your dog on a lead no longer than 5m in length.

The Moat

cAUlitE,
i\

K2
®

Dukes Dive Order 3: Dogs on leads by direction

Dogs must be under effective control at all times in
Burnham Beeches. If your dog is off a lead in the area
marked 3 on the map and an authorised officer judges that it is not
under effective control, they will ask you to put it on alead. Please
make sure you always carry a lead (not more than 5m in length)
when you walk your dog at Burnham Beeches.

A X

& Order 4: Dogs exclusion area

Please do not allow your dog to enter the no dogs area
at the café (marked 4 on the map). If you have a
recognised assistance dog because of a disability, you are exempt.

x

@ Crown copyright and database rights o7 B <
2014 Crdnance Survey 1000023243 ?

Order 5: Maximum number of dogs

wh
” Each dog walker can bring a maximum of four dogs onto
MAX 4 Burmmham Beeches at one time.




Appendix C — Burnham Beeches patrol monitoring using Survey123.

10:27 Thu 11 Apr

X Patrol Monitoring Data

Name of individual filling in this form *

Location of patrol *

Date of patrol *

Start time of patrol *
C)

&)

End time of patrol *

G

Pick the options that best describe the weather conditions during the patrol:

Raining
Clou

Sy

Wi
P
Co
Wlm
Hailing

Snowing

Did you dismantle any dens? *
Yes

No

How many visitors did you engage with? *

How many people were spoken to (full conversation).

Did you dismantle any dens? *
® Ves
No

How many dens did you dismantle? *

How many visitors did you engage with? *

How many peaple were spoken to (full conversation).

How many visitors did you greet? *

Eg. Hellofgood morming/good aftemoon etc

How many negative behaviours did you witness that weren't addressed? *

This could be due to the visitor being too far

y ete. This should be 1 per negative bel

‘What and how many negative behaviours were witnessed?

Please pick which negative behaviours were witnessed during the patrol and how many of each

Docaff lead in ares 2

20

What and how many negative behaviours were witnessed?

Please pick which negative behaviours were witnessed during the patrol and how many of each

Dog off lead in area 2

Dog not under effective control
Cyclist off tarmac roads

Horse rider off tarmac roads
Littering

Dog in cafe exclusion area

Owner not picking up after dog

More than four dogs brought onto
the reserve with one person

Foraging

Den building

Fouling left (bagged or not)

BBQ debris

Fire debris

Quad bikes/ather vehicles on site
Drones

Non-authorised filming

Climbing ancient trees

Additional comments about the patrol

30

3+




31

Appendix D — Burnham Beeches patrol engagement using Survey123.

Note: when some topics of conversation are chosen, e.g., PSPOs, another question will appear asking whether the visitor was aware of
the rules before the conversation.

10:27 Thu 11 Apr 10:27 Thu11 Apr 10:28 Thu 11 Apr

X Burnham Beeches Patrol Engagement x Burnham Beeches Patrol Engagement X Burnham Beeches Patrol Engagement
Name of individual filling in this form * Cycling
) Did you give any leaflets to the visitor(s)? *
Jordan.Payne Col €3] Events € yonglieany visttorts)
@® Yes
Horse riding
Location of interaction No
Cafe
O m General chat - about weather, walkers' dog, etc. How many leaflets did you give the visitor(s)? *
i Other
Date and time of interaction *
= [©) Please tick if there was any other topic(s) of conversation had during the interaction Which leaflets did you give to the visitor(s)? *
Select multiple if necessary. BB Map
How many pecple did you interact with? * General information about BB/SC e.g., history of site, management etc Walking your dog at BB
£.g., Was there one person in the group or five? Wil
faite Events Guide
| | | | | 1 PSPO issued Historical Trail
10

B V)
What was mmain topic of conversation? *

selectene. (QQ

Genermfor'mauon about BB/SC e.g., history of site, management etc

Information about the dogs on lead areas
Information about the dogs off lead areas
Dog fouling

Information about dogs under effective control

Geological Trail
Cycling / Horse riding

Wood Pasture

s , Pollards
. Information about maximum number of dogs per person Homthland
(V5] Specific directions around BB/SC Fung

\nforrr@ aboutthe dogs on lead areas

Information about the dogs off lead areas

Dag fouling

Information about dogs under effective contral
Informatian about maximum number of dogs per person
Specific directions around BB/SC

Soil erosion & trampling

Soil erosion & trampling

Information about other green spaces in the surrounding areas
Information about CERs e.g., what is being surveyed

Litter

Livestock

Information Point

Dead / Decaying wood
Vision

Grazing

Dog fact sheet

Gther

Has the visitor(s) been spaken to by a ranger before? *

Cycling

Information about other green spaces in the surrounding areas Yes - already once today
Events

Informaticn about CERs e.g., what is being surveyed Yes - on another day
Horse riding

Litter No
Cafe

Livestack Don't know

Information Point

Cycling

General chat - about weather, walkers' dog, etc

Other

Was the visitor aware of the wildlife value of BB/SC? *

Yes




32

10:28 Thu 11 Apr

X Burnham Beeches Patrol Engagement

Dog fact sheet

Other

Has the visitor(s) been spoken to by a ranger before? *

Yes - already once today
Yes - on another day
No

Don't know

Was the visitor aware of the wildlife value of BB/SC? *

Yes
No

Don't know

Was the visitor(s) receptive to the key message? *

Yes
No
Don't know

No key message mentioned

abed

How was the interaction with the visitor(s)? *

Positive

Neutral

0)74)

Negative

Did the visitor state any positive remarks?

l.e. about the management of the reserve, if we have been nice etc

Is there anything else important about the interaction not captured in other questions?




33

Appendix E - Map of Burnham Beeches showing both dog transect areas. Route 1 covers those areas where dogs are required to be on
lead. Route 2 covers those areas where dogs are required to be on lead if requested but must always be under effective control.

.1b

~ Route 2\\
- \
“Sta

\
o=
=

|
s




2T abed

© Crown copyright and dotabase rights
2014 Ordnance Survey 1000023243

34

The Pound
/I J D (Scheduled Ancient Monument]

BURNHAM BEECHES SAMMS: progress report to Buckinghamshire Council
(April 2023 - March 2024)
34



Agenda Item 9

Committee(s): Dated:
Epping Forest and Commons — For Decision 18/07/2024

Subject: Proposal for a Conference on the Biodiversity of | Public
Pollarded Trees.

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate | e Flourishing public

Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly? spaces

e Leading sustainable
environment

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or N

capital spending?

If so, how much? ENA

What is the source of Funding?

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the NA
Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: For Decision

Emily Brennan, Natural Environment Director

Report authors:

Helen Read, Conservation Officer, Burnham Beeches
Geoff Sinclair Assistant Director, The Commons

Summary

The land held by the City of London Corporation (“City Corporation”) as charity
trustee at Burnham Beeches, Epping Forest and Ashtead Common are
amongst the most important veteran trees sites in Europe. In 1991 and 1993 the
City Corporation hosted two conferences on veteran and pollarded trees which
are still recognised as bringing national attention to the cultural and wildlife
importance of veteran trees. The City Corporation continues to be seen as a
world leader in the management of veteran and pollard trees.

This report describes a proposal for hosting a two-day conference in association
with Ancient Tree Forum (ATF) on the biodiversity and conservation of veteran
trees. The conference would be based on an established ATF business model
for these events and would be low cost or revenue neutral but will require a
significant amount of staff time in planning, preparing and presenting at the
conference. It will however allow the City Corporation to share its considerable
experience in the biodiversity and conservation of veteran trees as well as
bringing together wider expertise in this area continuing the City Corporation’s
long-standing role as a world leader in this area of biodiversity conservation.

Recommendation(s)

Members are asked to:

e Agree to officers from the Burnham Beeches and City Commons to work with
the ATF to host a conference at Burnham Beeches on the biodiversity and
conservation of veteran trees.

Page 143



Main Report

Background

1.

Since 1878 the City Corporation has been responsible for managing around
56,000 ancient trees. Ancient trees, with their associated distinctive decay
and mycorrhizal fungi, saproxylic fauna and epiphytic fauna and flora are
more abundant in Britain than elsewhere in Northern Europe. The wood-
pasture habitats, in which these trees largely grow in the UK, are outstanding
in the northern European context with the City Corporation’s Burnham
Beeches, Epping Forest and Ashtead Common amongst the most important
wood-pasture sites in Europe.

Veteran trees provide unique habitats for a wide range of rare species and the
City Corporation’s population of veteran trees is home to many species of
international conservation importance. These species and the trees on which
they grow are facing a diverse range of threats including the impact of climate
change, new pests and diseases, fragmentation of habitat, increased nitrogen
levels and other stresses.

Specialist City Corporation arboricultural and ecological staff have pioneered
approaches to managing the conservation of ancient trees. In March 1991
and September 1993, the City Corporation hosted two national conferences
on Pollard and Veteran Tree Management. These conferences are
recognised as bringing to national attention the cultural and wildlife
importance of veteran trees and, ultimately, gave rise to the Ancient Tree
Forum, the national body dedicated to the long-term future of this unique
element of our countryside. The City Corporation continues to be seen as a
world leader in the management of veteran and pollard trees.

Our knowledge and understanding of the physiology, ecology and cultural
importance of veteran trees has developed substantially over the last 30
years. During this period there has been a big expansion in veteran tree
conservation across a widening number and range of organisations in the UK,
across Europe and wider afield. The first conference featured keynote
presentations on the biodiversity of pollarded trees by renowned experts such
as Francis Rose on lichens and Peter Hammond on invertebrates. The
biodiversity of pollarded trees has however not been thoroughly addressed
since then despite important work having been undertaken in the UK,
including the City Corporation’s open spaces, and abroad. Conferences
hosted by other organisations have focussed more on traditional/heritage
aspects or detailed tree physiology and its implications for management.

To improve our understanding of the biodiversity needs of veteran trees and
how best we can ensure their resilience in an era of rapid climate change, it is
proposed that a conference of veteran tree experts and practitioners be held
at Burnham Beeches.

Page 144



Current Position

The ATF organise an occasional program of national and International
seminars and it is proposed that the City Corporation collaborates with the
ATF on organising a seminar, based from Burnham Beeches, addressing the
biodiversity of veteran and pollarded trees.

These ATF seminars are highly popular and well attended drawing people
from across the UK and beyond. Outside of officer time they are organised on
a financial cost neutral basis with attendee fees set to ensure costs are
covered.

Options

8.

Option 1 That officers work with the ATF to host a conference at Burnham
Beeches on the biodiversity and conservation of veteran trees. This option
is recommended

Option 2 That officers do not progress proposals for a conference at Burnham
Beeches on the biodiversity conservation needs of veteran trees This option
is not recommended

Proposals

10.

11.

12.

It is proposed that in association with ATF a two-day conference be held. This
would involve one day based at a local conference venue followed by a day at
the City Corporation’s Burnham Beeches National Nature reserve. As well as
external presenters, COL staff would also be giving presentations on COL
experience and leading workshops on COL practice across their sites.

An evening conference social event is also proposed. Based on former ATF
events these are usually barbecues which could be based from the Burnham
Beeches Café area. This would also allow the opportunity for networking and
potentially a guest speaker to present.

The number of delegates is proposed to be between 100-150 with spaces
reserved for City Corporation apprentices, staff, trade press and a number of
students atdiscounted places.

Key Data

Corporate & Strategic Implications

Finance Implications

13.

Overall, this is proposed to be a cost neutral project with attendee fees priced
to match the financial costs. A start up budget to book venues and catering
will be required from existing local risk resources however this will be
relatively low. Promotion of the conference will be through well-established
veteran tree social media networks and ATF e-newsletters and through their

Page 145



14.

local groups. These have been successfully used for similar events in the
past.

The cost of producing an electronic conference proceedings would be priced
into the overall conference attendance fee.

Resource Implications

15.

16.

17.

Officer time for planning, organising, and presenting at the conference will be
required. These would be integrated within the relevant officers annual
Performance management process. The ATF have an established conference
management process and would be responsible for the delegate booking and
management process.

Planning and organising 10 officer days over 18 months. Four COL staff
presenting 12 days (time for preparing, take down and presenting),
Conference logistics over the two days in 2025 (15-man days). In addition, we
anticipate significant volunteer support.

There will be a need for some (minor) funding for producing materials relating
to the presentations (especially if outside) plus gazebo/marquees which may
be able to borrowed from he Natural Environment Division.

Strategic Implications

18.

Theme 2 of the Natural Environment Division strategy is ‘to increase the
resilience of our open spaces within a wider interconnected natural
landscape’. The conference will help to improve knowledge and
understanding on the managing for the resilience of the City Corporation’s
56,000 veteran trees.

Equalities Implications

19.

20.

Supported places will be made available for students and City Corporation’s
arborist and countryside management apprentices.

Accessibility assessments will be required for the both the conference venue
and site visit.

Climate Implications

21.

This project will contribute to our knowledge of improving the resilience of
veteran tree biodiversity to climate change.

Legal Implications

22.

None

Page 146



Risk Implications

23.  The conference will need to have a risk management process put in plac
which will be developed in consultation with City Corporations Health and
Safety team.

Charity implications

24, Burnham Beeches & Stoke Common is a registered charity (number 232987).
Charity Law obliges Members to ensure that the decisions they take in relation to
the Charity must be taken in the best interests of the Charity.

Security implications

25. None

Conclusion

26.  Continuing the established role of the City Corporation’s role as a world leader
in conservation of veteran and pollarded trees conservation a two-day
conference on the biodiversity of veteran trees is proposed.

27.  The conference would be based on an established low cost/revenue neutral
business model of the ATF with who it is proposed the conference would be
run with. It will require significant amount of staff time over the next 18 months
which has been estimated at 37 officer days.

Appendices

None

Helen Read

Conservation Officer

T: 01753 647 358
E: helen.read@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Geoff Sinclair

Assistant Director, The Commons
T: 01753 647358

E: geoff.sinclair@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 147


mailto:helen.read@cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:geoff.sinclair@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 148



Agenda Item 10

The Grotto, Wanstead Park Update

Committee(s): Date(s):
Epping Forest & Commons Committee 18/07/2024
Subject: Public

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?

e Diverse Engaged
Communities

e Vibrant Thriving
Destination

e Flourishing Public
Spaces

e Providing
Excellent
Services

e Leading
Sustainable
Environment.

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or capital
spending?

Yes

If so, how much?

Option A: £355k-£403k
(including £296k - £336k
for works)

Option B: £1.09M-£1.2M
(including £910k-£1M
for works).

What is the source of Funding?

Not yet known, however
discussions with
Chamberlains Dept
have commenced.

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the
Chamberlain’s Department?

No

Report of:
Emily Brennan, Natural Environment Director

Report author:
Rob Shakespeare, Head of Heritage & Museums,
Environment Department

For Decision

Summary

This report updates Members with actions being taken and planned to remove
Wanstead Park Grotto from the Heritage at Risk Register (HARR) and ensure that it
has a funded Conservation Management Plan in place, which will protect it for the

future.

Repair proposals, having been progressed to date under the Cyclical Works
Programme, have resulted in costed options produced by an appointed heritage

consultant.

Page 149




This report summarises the work to date, the current position, the options and
confirms that the repair of the Grotto will enter the gateway process as a project from
Autumn 2024.

Recommendations

It is recommended that Members:

e Approve the continuation and completion of a Restoration and Maintenance
Plan (RMP) for the Grotto, which will identify the specific repairs and
maintenance regime that will support its removal from the Heritage at Risk
Register, as per Option A in this report. Also, authorise officers to secure
listed building consent for the delivery of the repairs identified in the RMP.
These activities are fully funded through the Cyclical Works Programme.

e Authorise officers to seek and secure full funding for Option A in coordination
with related projects that are also seeking funding across Wanstead Park.

e Advise officers on the further pursuit of Option B, namely the reinstatement of
original fabric and restoration of features within the structure and
enhancement of the immediate setting of the Grotto.

e Note the repair of the Grotto will enter the gateway process as a project from
Autumn 2024 and will be subject to this Committee’s scrutiny, as per
corporate project procedure.

Main Report
Background

1. The Grotto in Wanstead Park was built in 1762 and, at the time, was a key
feature in the grounds of Wanstead House, which survived the demolition of the
house itself.

2. In 1882, Wanstead Park was sold to the Corporation of London and opened as a
public park. In 1884 the Grotto was severely damaged by a fire, which left only
the front facade and a few other sections of the building standing. The remaining
ruin retained its special architectural and historic interest, and it was granted
Grade Il listed status in 1954.

3. Despite ad hoc conservation works, surveys and reports from the 1970s to
2000s, the Grotto was placed on the Heritage at Risk Register (HARR) in 2018. A
Conservation Management Plan (CMP) was produced in 2019 and approved by
EFCC on 16 November 2020, but works were paused due to the onset of the
pandemic. The CMP prioritised the creation of a Restoration and Maintenance
Plan (RMP), identifying repairs and costs associated with removing the Grotto
from the HARR.

4. In 2021, the Heritage of London Trust in partnership with Friends of Wanstead
Parklands were successful in securing a grant from the Corporation to

Page 150



consolidate the Landing Stage (a structure that forms an apron around the base
of the Grotto on its lakeside elevation), because of its rapidly deteriorating
condition.

5. To date, activities at the Grotto have been led by the Heritage Estate team within
City Surveyors as part of the corporate Cyclical Works Programme. From
February 2023, officers within the Culture & Projects Section have been acting as
client on behalf of Epping Forest charity. At the same time, a project board of
relevant Corporation officers and stakeholders was established to provide advice.

6. Key external stakeholders include Historic England, Natural England, London
Borough of Redbridge, The Friends of Wanstead Parklands and Heritage of
London Trust.

7. As asset owner, Epping Forest charity, has a duty to undertake repairs and
establish a maintenance plan for the Grotto to seek its removal from the HARR.
Historic England has advised that to be removed from the HARR, the Grotto
should be structurally sound, fabric repairs to be completed and a maintenance
plan put in place.

8. In 2022 and 2023, preliminary works to the landing stage and the retrieval,
documentation and storage of stone from the lakebed were undertaken, along
with structural investigations, which revealed the need to stabilise the lean of the
main facade.

Current Position

9. Using the results of the surveys and research undertaken, heritage consultants
Alan Baxter Associates were appointed in February 2024 to produce a restoration
and maintenance plan (RMP) for the Grotto. £85k from the Cyclical Works
Programme was allocated to complete the RMP.

10.In March 2024 £150k was allocated through the Cyclical Works Programme
towards the repair of the Grotto. In addition, a grant of £14k from HOLT towards
works to the Landing Stage remains available. In total, £164k is currently
available to undertake the repair and restoration of the Grotto.

11.As part of the production of the RMP, costed repair options were produced and
shared with stakeholders, including Historic England to seek their guidance on
the extent of repair and restoration works considered necessary to remove the
Grotto from the HARR. These options are described below.

12. A Wanstead Park Programme Board was established in June 2024. Its purpose
is to review and coordinate programmes, fundraising and communications
associated with several interdependent activities within the park, including the
repair of the Grotto; reinstatement of the pumping system within the water bodies;
the ecological value of the Grotto and; improvements to the historic park
landscape linked to a parkland plan. Whilst coordination between these activities

Page 151



took place on an informal basis, going forward, coordination will take place
through the Wanstead Park Programme Board.

13.In April 2024, costed options for the repair and restoration of the Grotto were
presented to Historic England, HOLT and Friends of Wanstead Park, together
with officers from the City Surveyors Department and Environment Department.
Three repair/restoration options were presented, plus three options for structural
support. These were:

a.

b.

Option 1: Short-term surface repairs with no improvement to the Grotto’s
maintenance regime

Option 2: As per Option 1 plus repairs to address internal and structural
defects and an improved maintenance regime

Option 3: As per Options 1 and 2, plus the restoration of specific features
such as the stone steps adjacent to the main facade, re-profiling of
window arches and reinstatement of some of the original fabric.

14.The consultant’s findings and stakeholder feedback can be summarised as

follows:

a. None of the options fall within the existing repairs budget of £164k
b. Further funding needs to be identified to undertake the restoration works

C.

required for the Grotto to be removed from the HARR

Historic England considered that, as a minimum, repairs as described in
Option 1 with elements of Option 2, would be sufficient to remove the
Grotto from the HARR.

HOLT and Friends of Wanstead Parklands expressed a strong
preference for the more ambitious, and costly, options 2 and 3, with HE
advising a wider parkland approach.

All participants expressed a preference for the partial reconstruction of
brick walls along the footprint of the original boathouse, perpendicular to
the Grotto facade, to provide the necessary structural support.

Raising the water level in Ornamental Water will take place as soon as
the appropriate licence is obtained from the Environment Agency as part
of a project to reinstate the pumping system between the water bodies in
the park. This is expected to be achieved in Winter 2025/2026, providing
a window of circa 18 months for works to the Grotto to be delivered
without the additional challenge of working next to water.

15. Following the workshop, the project team and consultant team updated the repair
options based on the feedback received, providing more detail on risks, project
timeframes and fundraising opportunities. These options are presented below,
with further information provided in Appendix 1.

Options
Option | Description Risk Cost
Range
Option Essential repairs to remove Whilst this option is £355k-
A the structure from the considered sufficient | £403k
Heritage at Risk Register, to remove from HARR | (including

Page 152




plus internal and structural it doesn’t result in a £296k -
repairs required to maintain comprehensive £336k for
the Grotto in good condition restoration; Exceeds works and
for the longer-term. This current budget. an
includes the development of estimated
a ten-year maintenance plan. 20% for
associated
consultant
fees and

staff costs).

Option Essential and recommended | Whilst this option is £1.09M-

B repairs in Options A, plus the | considered sufficient | £1.2M
restoration of specific to remove from HARR | (including
features, such as the stone and results in a £910k-£1M
steps adjacent to the main comprehensive for works
facade, re-profiling of window | restoration, it an
arches and reinstatement of | significantly exceeds | estimated
some of the original fabric current budget and 20% for
onto the facade. Enhance the | significantly increases | associated
immediate setting of the the complexity and consultant
Grotto within the landscape timescale of the fees and

and waterscape.

works.

staff costs).

16.The indicative project programme for Option A would be circa 21 months from
July 2024 to completion of works in April 2026, assuming all funding and
consents are in place. This would include an opportunity between June 2025 and
October 2025 to complete repair works on the Landing Stage and the lakeside
elevation of the Grotto in dry conditions, prior to the raising of the water level in
Ornamental Water in Winter 2025/26.

17.For Option B, the indicative programme is estimated to be circa 27 months from
July 2024 to completion of works in October 2027, assuming all funding and
consents are in place. Works on site would commence in wet conditions,
following the raising of the water level in Ornamental Water.

18.The project board met on 7 May 2024 to consider Options A and B. External
stakeholders remained in favour of a more ambitious restoration that would
require financial support from National Lottery Heritage Fund or Natural England
to address the significant funding gap. However, Historic England noted that
Option A would also provide a satisfactory solution to enable removal from HARR
and HE are supportive of Option A. The project board agreed that both options be
put to Members of this Committee for their consideration.

19. Since the project board in May, Alan Baxter Associates have continued to
progress the development of the RMP with a focus on prioritising the essential
works to remove the Grotto from the HARR as per Option A. Additional
consultant work would be required to update the RMP to support the delivery of

Page 153



Option B. The cost of this additional consultant work would exceed the existing
£85k budget allocated through the Cyclical Works Programme and would need to
be incorporated into the overall fundraising target for that option.

20.With confirmation that cost of any option to repair/restoration of the Grotto will
exceed £250k, this activity now constitutes a project under the corporate project
procedure. It needs to enter the gateway process and be scrutinised by Members
from this point onwards. Therefore, the reason for engaging Members now is:
a. officers now understand the likely repair cost meets the threshold for a
corporate project and
b. that further work on the RMP is predicated on a specific repair option, the
scope and subsequent delivery of which needs Committee approval.

Proposals

21. Officers now seek the views of this Committee on current options to maintain and
restore the Grotto.

22.A second stakeholder workshop is planned to review further progress by the
consultant team on the production of the RMP.

23.Subject to this Committee’s views on the options as presented, the project team
will now develop and pursue a fundraising strategy to bridge the current funding
gap. This work will be coordinated by the Wanstead Park Programme Board, to
ensure that fundraising activities across the suite of Wanstead Park projects are
complementary.

24.To date, officers have identified funding routes, both internal and external,
including the timetables for relevant grant applications and have also commenced
discussions with the Chamberlains Department, to inform our approach with
National Lottery and Natural England on the process to seek and secure funding
for the options presented. For option A, which could be funded either by the
Corporation, subject to its priorities or through a stream-lined grant application
process, this can be progressed using existing officer resources. For option B,
which will require a much larger external grant, this will require a dedicated
resource to research, prepare, advocate and monitor the more complex grant
application process.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

Strategic implications — The activities, projects and works outlined in this report
directly contribute towards the achievement of five of the six outcomes set out in the
City of London Corporate Plan 2024-29, including: Diverse Engaged Communities,
Vibrant Thriving Destination, Flourishing Public Spaces, Providing Excellent Services
and Leading Sustainable Environment. At Departmental level, the management of
heritage assets in our care continues to support the Environment Department’s
vision to Shape Sustainable Future Environments through its Primary and

Page 154



Supporting Aims and Objectives and contribute to the outcomes identified in the
Natural Environment Division’s strategic framework.

Financial implications — A funding gap of circa £350k based on the preferred option
(option 2), to deliver the necessary repairs to support removal of the Grotto from
Historic England’s Heritage at Risk Register has been reported to Chamberlain’s
Department. A number of funding sources will now need to be explored within a
coordinated fundraising strategy to ensure that the project is fully funded.

Resource implications — Officers from the Culture and Projects Section can continue
to provide client-side support to Epping Forest charity in order to progress these
repairs as a project within the gateway process, however, charity funding would need
to be sought to cover the associated staff costs. Subject to the option(s) pursued,
dedicated fundraising expertise may need to be commissioned with the costs of this
needing to be met.

Legal implications — As the asset owner of Wanstead Grotto, Epping Forest charity
has a duty to effect repairs and maintenance to support its removal from the HARR.

Risk implications — The Grotto is statutorily protected and its current condition and
listing on the Heritage at Risk Register is a reputational and health & safety risk to
the Corporation. There are additional risks associated with each option as presented,
not least, the current funding gap for each respective repair option.

Equalities implications — As a project within the corporate gateway process, the
repair of Wanstead Grotto will be subject to an Equalities Impact Assessment and be
conducted in accordance with our public Sector Equality Duty 2010 and all relevant
Corporation policies and procedures.

Climate implications — Extreme weather events will continue to impact on heritage
assets particularly those that are within open spaces. Hence it is critical to have
these sites cyclically surveyed and appropriately maintained.

Security implications — None at present

Conclusion

25.The Grotto’s current condition and listing on the Heritage at Risk Register is a
reputational and health and safety risk to the City Corporation, at a time when it is
promoting itself as a custodian of public assets. It's removal from the HARR
would be a significant demonstration of how we maintain and enhance flourishing
public spaces.

26.The restoration of The Grotto is a complex project, with a number of key
stakeholders and heritage and environmental considerations, which all have the
potential to increase the duration, risks and costs associated with the project.

27.Guided by Members, officers will continue to work with national and local
stakeholders to ensure that our shared ambitions for maintaining and enhancing
The Grotto within the wider Parkland Plan can be delivered on a sustainable
basis.

Appendices

Page 155



e Appendix 1: Presentation of Options A and B to Project Board (May 2024)

Rob Shakespeare

Head of Heritage & Museums, Natural Environment Division
T: 020 7332 1818

E: rob.shakespeare@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Simon Glynn

Assistant Director, Culture and Projects, Natural Environment Division
T: 020 7332 1095

E: simon.glynn@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 156


mailto:rob.shakespeare@cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:simon.glynn@cityoflondon.gov.uk

. The
pa ‘ Grotto
™ ' Wanstead Park

Project Board Meeting
07 May 2024




8GT abed

« Options Presentation
» Options Decision

* Next Steps/AOB

The Project Board is asked to decide which of the options should be
further detailed and progressed towards submission for statutory approval.

Repair costs stated are preliminary estimates. They include contingencies
and predicted inflation to Q2 2025. They do not include costs for
professional fees beyond RMP, fundraising, community engagement,
contract administration, landlord insurance etc.



6GT obed

3 Options were presented at Workshop 1:

Option 1, with a cost range of £340k - £370k, comprised the essential
repairs required to remove the heritage asset from the Heritage at Risk
Register (HARR) - but would not necessarily warrant it remaining in good
condition in the long-term. The proposed short term ‘surface’ repairs would
not address concealed defects and root causes of deterioration, leaving the
Grotto vulnerable to future decay. They would not lead to a reduction in the
projected maintenance regime, the lack of which has contributed to the
asset’s listing on the HARR.

Option 2, with a cost range of £510 - £560k, comprised the essential
repairs to remove the structure from the Heritage at Risk Register, plus
internal and structural repairs required to maintain the Grotto in good
condition for the longer-term.

Option 3 with a cost range of £910k - £1m, comprised the essential and
recommended repairs in Options 1 and 2, the restoration of the stone steps
adjacent to the main fagade, re-profiling of window arches and reinstating
some of the original fabric to the main facade.



Outcomes
from
Workshop 1

The workshop agreed that a combination of Option 1 and Option 2,
including in-depth repairs to the front facade to reduce its maintenance
burden, would represent the sustainable minimum level of intervention that
we need to make. This is presented as Option A today.

Option 3 was a desirable option for many of the stakeholders in the
workshop. It is presented as Option B.

None of the options was within the existing repairs budget of £164k.



A range of options for the structural support of the Grotto was presented at
the workshop.

The preferred structural support option was for the creation of return walls
adjacent to the Grotto fagade built on the alignment of the original
boathouse walls.

It was confirmed at the workshop that all the structural support options

presented could be technically delivered in conjunction with any of the repair
or restoration options presented.

Options for
Structural
Support




Lentle )
cleaning of ~-Damaging repairs _
.. o - remowveq
surrace v ¥,
Landing stage = ) d{

.U
S
(@) repaired

C-_‘:":?:T:_ﬂ&.'.ff + .J.-' .
oy°
N

| Invasive Vegetation

Removal

Repoint open joints

replaced with new A AR Simplified
saft canning \ N
soft capping \ \ ' maintenance
I\l '\._ A
e Y ) Flagstones
< - .\L ll.-\ / relaid level
am ! \
A \
o
by ¥
)
-
; N o 4
Structural ~ \ . (‘j,{_//____ Stone « ina
stabilisation Y { v consol )
L
P\
g \
Safe access
) " restored
Graffiti removed = restored o
—
2 . -
auUncrng & Capping
Flaunching & capping
- —
renewed Salvaged materia
cleaned

Designed to remove the asset from the HARR, it also addresses underlying
defects within the difficult-to-reach front facade. This will make
maintenance easier, large repair less frequent and ensures the asset
remains off the HARR.

Key Proposed Works:

Structural stabilisation as required (in brickwork)

Invasive vegetation removed

Essential repairs to the entire site

To the front facade also:

Cleaning of the surface to reveal hidden defects

Removal of inappropriate materials & repairs which are contributing to
fabric deterioration

Dismantling and reconsolidation of the most vulnerable areas of fabric
in areas where maintenance access will be limited (i.e. at height)
Flaunching renewed (existing capping retained)

Existing Flagstones re-laid level

Potential replacement of overgrowth with soft capping

For information, the original Option 2 also included:

Replacement of structurally sound but visually inappropriate past repairs
Works listed to the front facade extended to whole ruin



Repair Costs: £460k - £500k

Funding: COL £150k HOLT £14k GAP: £296k - £336k

Programme: Delivered by end of 2025 subject to funding and dependencies with
other Wanstead projects

Risks: Lack of funding; funding more likely as part of a wider Parkland scheme.
Increase in scope & costs on site due to hidden defects
Some stakeholder disappointment

F%ding & Programme Benefits: Programme still partly deliverable whilst Ornamental Waters is dry
) éaCk of COL funding will 2:::l| sune | suly | avg | sept | oer | nov | pee 2.1:1:5 Feb |March | april | May [ sune | suy | aue | sept | et | wow | Dec 2:):.6 Feb | March | April
delay programme RMP Detailing Proposals
- Potential to seek smaller e
Funding - COL
grant e.g. HLF (larger Funding - HLF enquiry | Application| Permission to Start
one would delay E:::Dn — Prep | Tender Decision
programme further) but Pond Reflooding (TBC) 1 x 1 x 1 x 1 x1x 1w
this would potentially
rule out funding for the Funding Route | Funding Route Il
wider Parkland. COL Capital Works: £296k - £336k COL Capital Works: £46k - £86k (deadlines as for Route 1)
- Lack of staff resource to Application: August/ September HLF Capital Works: £250k
deal with funding Decision: December for next FY Grant Scheme: Grants up to £250k

application. Deadlines: Rolling



Dm 1aging repairs

Cleaning of
T "'I" nge stone // emoved
- reinstater

N einetatament

Remuaor \..-il

Repoint open

Simplifie

\.'-. maintenance

\ h
\ Flagston
3 ".\'\.
\ relaid level
‘i:&- .. StONE C appings
consolidated

I-e"uw-lli".

removed ! treated

Graffiti removed

Flaunching & capping

renswed

Designed to remove the asset from the HARR and to enhance the
significance and readability of the Grotto’s front facade. Includes the works
outlined in Option A and re-captures some of the facade’s impact on the
waterside.

‘ & Key Proposed Works:
[ - Structural stabilisation as required (in brickwork)

Invasive vegetation removed

Essential repairs and addressing underlying defects to the entire site

To the front facade also:

- Cleaning of the surface to reveal hidden defects

- Reinstating missing fabric to restore the Grotto’s original grandeur

- Concealing inner wall with sponge stone, aligning with the original
construction materials and maintaining historical authenticity

- Reinstating the undulating profile to recapture the unique character of
the front facade - extent TBC

- Restoring flint cladding into the historic recesses, preserving and
enhancing the Grotto’s aesthetic appeal

- Reinstating sponge stone surrounds to openings, removing harsh lines
and restoring the organic form of the facade

Existing Flagstones re-laid level

Potential replacement of overgrowth with soft capping



Likely Additional Scope

Repair Costs:
Works:

£1m+

Further restoration of front facade
Improve public access

Improve biodiversity

Potential removal of fence

Repair Costs:

Funding:
Programme:
Risks:

Benefits:

£910k - £1m

COL £150k HOLT £14k GAP: £746k - £836k

Delivery by end of 2027 subject to funding

Lack of funding; small pool of potential funders & need to compete
against schemes nationwide; funding more likely as part of wider
Parkland scheme.

Higher costs from additional scope to attract funding

Higher development costs to cover fundraising

Lack of staff to deliver larger project

Higher professional fees (beyond RMP) to develop full technical design
Longer planning process or lack of statutory permissions as restoration
proposals can be divisive

Underlying defects increase scope & costs

Considerably longer programme (12-18 months for additional scope)
Some additional delivery costs once pond flooded

Project likely attractive to funders

Higher impact for same/similar COL budget

Better outcomes for public & heritage asset; positive impact also on
HARR Park & Conservation Area and community engagement
Potential to phase works to follow Option A if COL made additional
matchfunding available (as part of Wanstead Park funding application?)



Funding & Programme

2024 2025

2026 2027

timy | dame | duty | Aug | Seps | Ot | mov | Dec | ten [ Fen [march| aprit | bawy [ eme

AMP Detailing Proposals

Landl - LBC
Prep Decision

Landing Stage - Works

Funding - COL £10-15k

Funding - HLF Capital tender EQI | prep Development Phase Application| Permissicn to Start)

|Fune - coL capital
Fu

|FurtQigr Design Render

LeO pre-app

W Site

Pon@Rflcoding (TBC)
Ne))

X X X X x x Wilwlw W W W X X X L3 x x W W lw W W W x X

COL funding:

Fundraising Consultant: £10-15k
Budget Source: TBC

Landing Stage: £35-50k
Budget Source: Existing

Capital Works: £100-200k for 20% match-funding
Budget Source: COL Capital Works:

Application: August/ September

Decision: December for next FY

Funding e.g. HLF:

Development & Delivery: £800k - £1m

Grant Scheme: Grants over £250k

Deadlines: Quarterly, 15 August 2024 for decision by end of December 2024
21 November 2024 for decision by end of March 2025

An alternative funding route would be Natural England's Countryside Stewardship
Scheme (CSS) HE1: Historic and archaeological feature protection grants. Funding
deadlines are not currently available. Implications on a potential future Wanstead Park
CSS application would need to be considered.




/9T abed

May 2024: Project Board to provide their steer on the
options as presented

May/June 2024: Project team to brief Members of Epping

Forest and Commons Committee and seek their views (as
roject cost now meets threshold for scrutiny by CoL
ommittees).

May/June 2024: Project team and fund_—raisi_n? sub-grou
to undertake further research and enquiries into potentia
funding sources.

June 2024: Wanstead Park Programme Board _
established to review active projects with dependencies or
links to the Grotto project and make its recommendations
on their respective programmes, scope, budgets and
funding sources.

July 2024: Recommended option(s) and next steps for
’%\ls prqgtect to be reported to Epping Forest and Commons
ommittee.



89T abed

Thank you




Agenda Item 11

Committee(s) Dated:
Epping Forest & Commons 18 July 2024
Subiject: Public
Revenue Outturn 2023/24 — Epping Forest and

Commons

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s
Corporate Plan does this proposal aim to impact | n/a
directly?
Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or | No
capital spending?

If so, how much? n/a

What is the source of Funding? n/a

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the n/a
Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: For Information
Chamberlain

Natural Environment Director
Report author:
Clem Harcourt — Chamberlain’s Department

Summary

This report compares the revenue outturn for the services overseen by your
Committee in 2023/24 with the final budget for the year. Overall, there was an
underspend of £50k for the services overseen by your committee compared
with the final budget for the year as set out below.

Final Outturn Variation
Budget Better/
(Worse)
£000 £000 £000
Local Risk
Interim Executive Director Environment (4,883) (4,886) (3)
City Surveyor (1,127) (773) 354
Total Local Risk (6,010) (5,659) 351
Central Risk (577) (585) (8)
Recharges (2,083) (2,376) (293)
Total Net Expenditure (8,670) (8,620) 50

Explanations for significant budget variances with the final budget are detailed
in the report in paragraphs 5 to 9.

The Interim Executive Director Environment had an overall local risk overspend
(excluding City Surveyor) of (E3K) for activities overseen by your Committee.
The Interim Executive Director also had a net local risk underspend totalling
£40k on activities overseen by other Committees within his remit, after adjusting
for unspent carry forwards from 2022/23. The Interim Executive Director
Environment is proposing that his maximum eligible local risk underspend of

Page 169



£37k be carried forward into 2024/25, none of which relates to your Committee.
The Interim Executive Director is also proposing that £36k is carried forward in
unspent Priorities Investment Pot (PIP) monies related to your Committee.

Recommendation(s)

Note the report and the proposed carry forward of £36k PIP underspending into

2024/25.

Main Report

Budget Position for 2023/24

1. The 2023/24 original budget for Epping Forest & Commons services
overseen by your Committee (received in November 2022) was (£7.482m)
net expenditure. This budget was endorsed by the Court of Common
Council in March 2023 and was subsequently updated for approved net
increases of (£1.188m), resulting in a final net expenditure budget of
(£8.67m). This is primarily explained by the following:

(£793k) uplift to your Committee’s local risk resource base following
implementation of the new staffing structure across the Natural
Environment Division;

(E368k) central contingency funding to meet cost of living pay rises to
staff effective from July 2023 and centrally funded apprentices;

(E210k) funding from Finance Committee contingencies to support
work on known dangerous trees at Epping Forest;

(E164k) additional recharges from the Natural Environment Directorate
and Learning Team following implementation of the new staffing
structure across the division;

(E136k) funding from central contingencies to cover the cost of energy
price rises;

(E72k) increased costs relating to the corporate contract for Integrated
Facilities Management overseen by the City Surveyor following
implementation of the new contract;

(E67K) central risk carry forward funding from 2022/23 relating to
unspent Priorities Investment Pot (PIP) monies for projects at Epping
Forest and Burnham Beeches;

£459k local risk transfer to capital budgets relating to the purchase of
a range of vehicles at Epping Forest; and

Page 170



2.

o £209k contribution from Epping Forest’s local risk budget to part fund
the Great Gregories Yard Future Proofing Buildings capital project.

A reconciliation between the original budget and the final budget is shown in
Appendices 1 and 2.

Revenue Outturn 2023/24

3.

Actual net expenditure for your Committee's services during 2023/24
totalled (£8.62m), an underspend of £50k compared with the final net
expenditure budget of (E8.67m).

A summary comparison with the final agreed budget for the year is
tabulated below, split between Epping Forest (table 1) and The Commons
(table 2). In the tables, income, increases in income, and reductions in
expenditure are shown as positive balances, whereas brackets are used to
denote expenditure, increases in expenditure, or shortfalls in income. Only
significant variances (generally those greater than £50k) are commented
on. A more detailed comparison with the final budget can be found in
appendices 3 and 4.

Table 1: Comparison between 2023/24 Revenue Outturn and Final Budget —
Epping Forest (see Appendix 3)

Original Final Outturn | Variation | Para
Budget Budget Better/ Ref
(Worse)
£000 £000 £000 £000

Local Risk
Interim Executive Director
Environment (2,534) (3,248) (3,248) 0
City Surveyor (896) (971) (524) 447 5
Total Local Risk (3,430) (4,219) (3,772) 447
Central Risk (444) (521) (511) 10
Recharges (1,448) (1,598) (1,841) (243) 6,7
Total (5322) | (6,338) | (6,124) 214

Reasons for Significant Variations

5.

The £447k underspend on budgets managed by City Surveyors is largely
attributable to a £411k underspend on Cyclical Works Programme (CWP)
expenditure due to the rephasing of projects falling under the CWP. This
included projects such as works at the Copped Hall Estate. The CWP is a
three-year rolling programme reported to the Projects and Procurement
Sub-Committee quarterly, where the City Surveyor will report on financial
performance and phasing of the projects. Under the governance of the
programme, variances on budgets are adjusted for the life of the programme
to allow for the completion of works which span multiple financial years. This

Page 171




was in addition to an underspend of £36k relating to reduced building
repairs and maintenance and cleaning costs managed by the City Surveyor
compared to budget.

The (£243Kk) net overspend in recharges was largely attributable to increased
recharges from the IT Division of (E261k) as well as additional net recharges
from other corporate departments (£98k). This overspend was partly offset by
increased income for recharges to City Fund for Woodredon and Warlies £91k
due to a higher than anticipated net cost for this division of service largely as
a result of reduced rental income.

During 2023/24, a review of central support services recharges was carried
out. This involved updating the basis of apportionment for all recharges
following the Target Operating Model (TOM) and Governance Review along
with trying to make them more transparent and fairer across all services. The
updated basis has led to several variations to the original budget across
committees, but overall total recharges have remained within the total original
envelope: City Fund Original Budget (£29.9m) vs Outturn (£27.9m), and City’s
Estate Original Budget (£24.2m) vs Outturn (£22.9m). Any variation/increase
in costs are met from the deficit funding and have no effect on front-line
services. The full review has not yet been formally approved by Members as
work is ongoing as how to the new basis will affect 2024/25 budgets. Once
the review is fully adopted, the 2024/25 budget will be reviewed and updated
where necessary and the paper on the review made available.

Table 2: Comparison between 2023/24 Revenue Outturn and Final Budget —
The Commons (see Appendix 4)

Original Final Outturn | Variation | Para
Budget Budget Better/ Ref
(Worse)
£000 £000 £000

Local Risk
Interim Executive Director
Environment (1,471) (1,635) (1,638) (3)
City Surveyor (159) (156) (249) (93) 8
Total Local Risk (1,630) (1,791) (1,887) (96)
Central Risk (50) (56) (74) (18)
Recharges (480) (485) (535) (50) 9
Total (2,160) (2,332) (2,496) (164)

Reasons for Significant Variations

8.

There was a total overspend of (E93k) on budgets managed by the City
Surveyor at The Commons. This was primarily attributable to an additional
(E57K) incurred in extra CWP expenditure, predominantly at Burnham
Beeches, due to a rephasing of projects falling under the three-year rolling

programme. This was in addition to a (E36k) overspend on budgets

Page 172




managed by the City Surveyor for repairs and maintenance and cleaning
primarily relating to the City Commons.

Total net recharges were (E50k) overspent compared with the final budget
at The Commons. This was largely due to additional recharges from the IT
Division of (E67k) compared with budget, which was partly offset by lower
than anticipated recharges from other corporate departments £27k. As
stated in paragraph 7, a review of recharges from support services
departments was carried out during 2023/24 resulting in variations
compared with budget for a number of service areas.

Local Risk and Central Risk Carry Forward to 2024/25

10.

11.

12.

Chief Officers can generally request underspends of up to 10% or £500,000
(whichever is the lesser) of the final local risk budget to be carried forward,
so long as the underspending is not fortuitous and the resources were for a
planned purpose that was prevented from happening during the year. Such
requests are subject to the approval of the Chamberlain in consultation with
the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of Resources Allocation Sub
Committee. In accordance with Financial Regulations, any overspends are
carried forward in full and are met from the agreed 2024/25 budgets.

The Interim Executive Director Environment had a net local risk overspend of
(E3K) on the activities overseen by your Committee. The Interim Executive
Director Environment also had a net local risk underspend totalling £40k on
activities overseen by other Committees within his remit, after adjusting for
unspent carry forwards from 2022/23. The Interim Executive Director
Environment is proposing that his maximum eligible local risk underspend of
£37k be carried forward, none of which relates to activities overseen by your
Committee.

The Interim Executive Director Environment has also submitted the following
Priorities Investment Pot (PIP) central risk carry forward requests amounting
to £36k which relate to your Committee:

e £34k unspent expenditure associated with the Epping Forest
Licences, Leases and Wayleaves project; and

e £2k unspent expenditure associated with facilitating the
‘Biodiversity net gain’ project at Burnham Beeches.

Conclusion

13.

This report presents the revenue outturn position for 2023/24 and the carry
forward bids relating to unspent PIP budgets into 2024/25 for Members to
note.

Page 173



Appendices

e Appendix 1 - Movement between Original 2023/24 Budget and 2023/24
Final Budget (Epping Forest)

e Appendix 2 - Movement between Original 2023/24 Budget and 2023/24
Final Budget (The Commons)

e Appendix 3 - Comparison between 2023/24 Revenue Outturn and Final
Budget — Epping Forest

e Appendix 4 - Comparison between 2023/24 Revenue Outturn and Final
Budget — The Commons

Clem Harcourt
Finance Business Partner (Natural Environment)
Chamberlain’s Department — Financial Services

E: Clem.Harcourt@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 174


mailto:Clem.Harcourt@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Appendix 1 - Movement between 2023/24 Original Budget and

2023/24 Final Budget — Epping Forest

£000
Original Budget (All Risks) (5,322)
Original Net Local Risk Budget (Interim Executive Director (3,430)
Environment & City Surveyor)
Interim Executive Director Environment
Adjustments to local risk resource base following implementation (760)
of staffing restructure within Natural Environment Division
Central contingency funding to cover the cost of the pay award (286)
effective from July 2023
Funding from Finance Committee contingencies to support works (210)
on known dangerous trees
Central contingency funding to cover increased energy costs (123)
Funding from Natural Environment Directorate to meet costs of 3)
Battery Energy Storage System (BESS) scoping report
Transfer to capital budgets for purchase of vehicles incurred 459
during 2023/24
Local risk contribution to part fund Great Gregories Yard Future 209
Proofing Building Project
City Surveyor
Adjustments to budgets for building repairs and maintenance and (75)
cleaning following introduction of new corporate contract for
Integrated Facilities Management
Final Net Local Risk Budget (Interim Executive Director (4,219)
Environment & City Surveyor)
Central Risk
Original Central Risk Budget (Interim Executive Director (444)
Environment)
Agreed carry forward funding from Priorities Investment Pot for (61)
Licenses, Leases and Wayleaves project
Central risk funding for Supplementary Revenue Project (16)
expenditure incurred during 2023/24
Final Central Risk Budget (521)
Recharges
Original Recharges Budget (1,448)

Page 175




Additional recharges from Natural Environment Directorate and (159)

Learning Team following staffing restructure within Natural

Environment Division

Adjustments to Woodredon and Warlies recharges to City Fund 9
Final Recharges Budget (1,598)
Final Budget (All Risks) (6,338)

Page 176




Appendix 2 - Movement between 2023/24 Original Budget and
2023/24 Final Budget — The Commons

£000

Original Budget (All Risks) (2,160)
Original Net Local Risk Budget (Interim Executive Director (1,630)
Environment & City Surveyor)
Interim Executive Director Environment

Central contingency funding to cover cost of pay award effective (82)

from July 2023

Unidentified savings at West Wickham & Coulsdon Commons (33)

met through savings achieved from staffing restructure across

Natural Environment Division

Funding from Natural Environment Directorate to cover costs (22)

related to Ash Dieback and Oak Processionary Moth

Funding from Natural Environment Directorate to meet costs of (14)

Commons HUQ Survey

Central contingency funding to cover cost of energy price rises (13)
City Surveyor

Adjustments to budgets for building repairs and maintenance and 3

cleaning following implementation of new corporate contract for
Integrated Facilities Management

Final Net Local Risk Budget (Interim Executive Director (1,791)
Environment & City Surveyor)

Central Risk
Original Central Risk Budget (Interim Executive Director (50)
Environment)
Carry forward funding from Priorities Investment Pot in relation to (6)
Facilitating ‘Biodiversity net gain’ project at Burnham Beeches
Final Central Risk Budget (56)
Recharges
Original Recharges Budget (480)
Additional recharges from Natural Environment Directorate (5)
Final Recharges Budget (485)
Final Budget (All Risks) (2,332)

Page 177



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 178



Appendix 3 - Comparison between 2023/24 Revenue Outturn and
Final Budget — Epping Forest

Original Final Revenue Better/
Budget  Budget Outturn (Worse) Note
£000 £000 £000 £000

LOCAL RISK
Interim Executive Director
Environment
Epping Forest (2,506)  (3,100) (3,117) a7
Epping Forest — Countryside
Stewardship Scheme 0 0 0 0
Chingford Golf Course 72 128 121 @)
Wanstead Flats (124) (291) (180) 111 1
Woodredon & Warlies 24 15 (72) (87) 2
Total Net Expenditure (2,534) (3,248) (3,248) 0
City Surveyor
City Surveyors Repairs and Maintenance (286) (361) (325) 36
Cyclical Works Programme (610) (610) (199) 411 3
Total City Surveyor Local Risk (896) (971) (524) 447
TOTAL LOCAL RISK (3,430) (4,219) (3,772) 447
CENTRAL RISK
Epping Forest (416) (477) (467) 10
Wanstead Flats (28) (44) (44) 0
TOTAL CENTRAL RISK (444) (521) (511) 10
RECHARGES
Insurance (76) (77) 77) 0 4
Support Services (379) (383) (508) (125) 4
Surveyor's Employee Recharges (300) (300) (273) 27 4
IT Recharges (118) (113) (374) (261) 4
Recharges Within Fund (Directorate, Democratic Core,
and Learning) (515) (674) (684) (20)
Recharges Across Fund
Woodredon & Warlies (10) 1) 90 91 5
Structural Maintenance (50) (50) (15) 35
TOTAL RECHARGES (1,448) (1,598) (1,841) (243)
TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE (5,322) (6,338) (6,124 214

Reasons for Significant Variations

1. The Wanstead Flats division of service was £111k underspent compared with
the final budget for 2023/24. This was largely attributable to savings in
employment costs of £127k as a result of staffing vacancies whilst posts in the
new staffing structure have been recruited. The underspend was partly offset
by (£16k) additional equipment, furniture and materials costs due to extra
purchases being required during 2023/24.

Page 179



. There was a total overspend on the Woodredon and Warlies local risk budget
of (£87k) due to reduced income of (£56k) largely explained by lower than
expected income generated from rents compared with the final budget. This
was in addition to an extra (E21k) being required in grounds maintenance
costs.

. Expenditure relating to projects falling under the Cyclical Works Programme
(CWP) at Epping Forest was £411k underspent compared to budget. This can
be explained by the re-phasing of works for a range of various projects
including works at the Copped Hall Estate.

. Central recharges for 2023/24 were overspent by a total of (E359k) at Epping
Forest compared with the final budget. This is largely explained by additional
IT recharges of (E261k) as well as higher central support costs for other
corporate departments of (£98k). This followed a review of central recharges
during 2023/24 which led to the updating of the apportionment bases used to
calculate the recharges which resulted in variances across a number of
service areas.

. There was a £91k variance in relation to the recharge for the net cost of
Woodredon and Warlies to City Fund. This can be explained by an overspend
in this division of service, resulting in increased recharges being incurred by
City Fund.

Page 180



Appendix 4 - Comparison between 2023/24 Revenue Outturn and
Final Budget — The Commons

Original Final Revenue Better/ Note

Budget  Budget Outturn (Worse)

£000 £000 £000 £000
LOCAL RISK
Interim Executive Director
Environment
Burnham Beeches (485) (538) (520) 18
Stoke Common (24) (27) (26) 1
City Commons (962) (1,070) (1,092) (22)
Total Net Expenditure (1,471) (1,635) (1,638) 3)
City Surveyor
City Surveyors Repairs and
Maintenance (159) (156) (192) (36)
Cyclical Works Programme 0 0 (57) (57) 1
Total City Surveyor Local Risk (159) (156) (249) (93)
TOTAL LOCAL RISK (1,630) (1,791) (1,887) (96)
CENTRAL RISK
Burnham Beeches (49) (55) (63) (8)
City Commons (1) (D (1)) (10)
TOTAL CENTRAL RISK (50) (56) (74) (18)
RECHARGES
Insurance (29) (29) (22) 3) 2
Support Services (182) (182) (158) 24 2
Surveyor's Employee Recharges (39) (39) (36) 3 2
IT Recharges (58) (58) (125) (67) 2
Recharges Within Fund (Directorate & Demaocratic
Core) (182) (187) (194) )
TOTAL RECHARGES (480) (485) (535) (50)
TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE (2,160) (2,332) (2,496) (164)

Reasons for Significant Variations

1. The additional expenditure for budgets managed by the City Surveyor is
largely attributable to an overspend of (E57k) on the Cyclical Works
Programme (CWP). This primarily relates to a re-phasing of projects
falling under the CWP at Burnham Beeches.

2. Total central recharges for The Commons were (£43k) overspent
compared with the final budget for 2023/24. This is predominantly
explained by additional IT recharges of (E67k) being incurred partly offset
by reduced recharges of £27k for other corporate departments. Please
note that a review of central recharges took place during 2023/24 which
led to the updating of the apportionment bases used to calculate the
recharges which resulted in variances across a number of service areas.

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 182



Agenda Iltem 15

Document is Restricted

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 16a

Document is Restricted

Page 189



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17

Document is Restricted

Page 193



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 201



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 203



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4a *Action Log
	5 2024/25 Committee Appointments
	Appendix 1 SEF 08-23 Epping Forest Consultative Committee - Terms of Reference - Revised Sep 2022 v2 JML edit (1)
	Appendix 2 Final Ashtead Common Consultative Committee TOR - April 2022 Amend (1)
	Appendix 3 Final WW & Coulsdon Commons ToR (1)
	Appendix 4 Final BBSCCG TOR  April 2022 Amends (1)
	Appendix 5 EF Deer Management Oversight Group - ToR - 17 10 22 (1)

	6 *Update on the Work of the Heritage Trust
	7 *Epping Forest - Assistant Director's Update
	8 *The Commons - Assistant Director's Update
	Appendix 1 Financial performance dashbord July 2024 vrs 2 (1)
	Appendix 2 Buckinghamshire 23-24 SAMMs report (1)
	Appendix 3 Slough S106 Progress Update Report 23-24 (1)

	9 Proposal for a Conference on the Biodiversity of Pollarded Trees
	10 The Grotto, Wanstead Park Update
	Appendix 1 -Presentation on Options A and B (1)

	11 *Revenue Outturn - 2023/24
	Epping Forest and Commons Outturn 2023-24 Appendix 1 FINAL (1)
	Epping Forest and Commons Outturn 2023-24 Appendix 2 FINAL (1)
	Epping Forest and Commons Outturn 2023-24 Appendix 3 FINAL (1)
	Epping Forest and Commons Outturn 2023-24 Appendix 4 FINAL (1)

	15 Non-Public Minutes
	16a *Action Log
	17 Request for the Provision of a Deed of Grant Easement
	Appendix.1 387 Plan (1)
	Appendix 2. 387 High Rd Street Scene (1)
	Appendix 3 387 High Road Easement Savills Report (1)


